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INTRODUCTION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The investigation of the New Jersey School Boards
Association (NJSBA) has been a lengthy and diffi-
cultone. It began with the public revelation in 1987
that an adjunct of the Association, the Insurance
Group, because of bad investments had lost nearly a
million dollars in premium funds entrusted to it by

local boards of education. But as the investigation

progressed, it became apparent that the investment
losses were only a symptom of much deeper prob-
lems that went far beyond the Insurance Group to
the leadership of the Association itself.

Specifically, the Commission has found that Ex-
ecutive Director Octavius T. “Ted” Reid, Jr., through
his manipulation of the Association’s Board of Di-
rectors, the Board’s Executive Committee, the
Trustees of the Insurance Group and the profes-
sional staff of the Association, is primarily respon-
sible for the conditions at the Association. But the
Commission also found that over the years, various
officers of the Association abdicated to the staff
oversight responsibilities that were theirs. In short,
they allowed themselves to be manipulated —
sometimes knowingly, sometimes naively — but at
all times with little apparent concern for the taxpay-
ers’ funds that were squandered. .

. The investigation revealed that Reid to this day
takes credit for every success of the NJSBA, espe-
cially passage of any legislation related to the Asso-
ciation’s mission, but refuses to accept responsibil-
ity for problems, diverting blame instead to others.
A case in point is his claim that he engineered
passage of the 1983 legislation permitting school
boards to pool their assets to buy insurance, a2 wor-
thy bill that stabilized insurance coverage for local

boards at a time when many had had difficulty
obtaining adequate coverage. In testimony before
the SCI, Reid referred to enactment of the new law
as “another legislative accomplishment” of his. But
when an issue arose as to the wording of the statute
regarding the permissibility of certain kinds of in-
vestments, Reid professed ignorance as to how that
language got into the statute. Further, he denied
knowledge of a state proscription of any but the
safest kinds of investments, brushing off the matter
with an expression to which he frequently resorted
in his testimony, “It was never an issue.” .

The Commission also determined that Reid’s
credibility as a witness before the SCI is question-
able. On virtually every key issue, his testimony
was at variance with other principal participants,
especially when it came to accepting responsibility
for things that went wrong. At other times, he was

-evasive or forgetful when the line of questioning

mvolved conduct that was his alone

Moreover, the investigation revealed that time
and again Reid misled the Association’s directors or
the Insurance Group’s trustees. At other times, he
withheld information that would have been material
to matters before them. For instance, when Reid
decided to retain Dan Druz, a securities broker from
Dean Witter Reynolds, to handle investments for
the Insurance Group, he told the trustees four months
after the fact. But he never told the trustees thathe
had had a personal brokerage account with Druz
several years earlier, nor did he ever tell them that
during the period when Druz worked for the Insur-
ance Group, Reid asked for and received a $12,000

_personal loan from him. And for more than a year,
~ he continually referred to Druz as an “investment

consultant” instead of as a broker who was earning



thousands of dollars in commissions. When he and
Druz decided to invest in more speculative instru-
ments, he did not inform the trustees, nor did he
properly control Druz’s penchant for, in effect,
‘gambling in the market with Insurance Group funds
and turning the Group into a personal money ma-
chine for Druz’s brokerage firm. And when those
investments began going sour— to the tune of more
than $800,000 — he told a trustee who 1nqu1red that
things were “never better

Meanwhile, Reid managed to secure for himself
a generous compensation package that included a
$92,000 salary, an insurance policy, annual contri-
butions toward an IRA despite his membership in
the State pension system, unrestricted use of an
NJSBA car and virtually unlimited use of an ex-
pense account that went all but unmonitored by the

fiscal staff of the Association or the Association’s

officers. His expenses were approved by a subordi-
nate and by the Executive Committee, which never
saw detailed vouchers, just dollar amounts. When
the, Association bought him a new car, instead of

asking to purchase the old one as was common prac--

tice, he asked the Association to give it to him. And
when they refused, he simply took it home — and
kept it until the president found out about it nine
months later. In testimony before the Commission,
Reid justified his extravagant lifestyle by frequent
invocation of the lofty goals of the Association, yet
he never mentioned the municipal school boards
and their taxpayers who unwittingly supported him.

Reid also invoked these goals and his concentra-

. tion on the “big picture” as reasons for his delega-

" tion to the staff of mundane matters such as expense
vouchers, travel advances and the details of admin-
istrative housekeeping. It was this “big picture,” no

doubt, that kept him out of the office for about a
- third of the working days over a three-year period,

and that required him to dine in many of the best

restaurants in New Jersey — and in other states as -

well—during his frequent travels to places such as
San Francisco, Vancouver, New Orleans, the Virgin

Islands and Paris. For the 37-month period from -

July 1, 1985 through July, 1988, Reid 'submitt'e_d
expense vouchers totaling more than $130,000.

-During that period, Reid also received a total of

almost $35,000 in travel advances. At one time in
1987, his outstanding advance balance reached a
high of $16,000. Much of the advance funds’ were
never properly accounted for. '

" The Commission staff found that Reid submit-
ted expense vouchers years late, agam claiming he

~ was too busy with more important matters. In July.

1988, for example, Reid submitted vouchers total-
ing more than $53,000 for three years worth of
expenses he said had not been reimbursed. A former
NISBA president also submitted about $5 000 worth
of vouchers three years late.

Reid often double-billed the Association for
meals and other expenses. In at least one case, he
even triple-billed the Association for a single lunch..
In another case, he submitted different receipts for
the same dinner as justification for meals in two dif-
ferent cities— Vancouver and New Orleans. Inyet
another case, he submitted on his expense voucher
travel expenses of another Association staffer that
had already been paid. The auditing firm of Ernst &
Whinney disallowed about $4,700 in expenses as

~ being either double billings or questionable because-

of insufficient documentation. And the SCI staff
found an additional $20, 000 in duphcatc or ques-'

tlonable expenses.

Many of the meals Reid sought payment for
were questionable. In a limited check to verify
business lunches or dinners Reid claimed to have
had with various officials, the SCI staff found many
of those claims to be false. Of 48 meals checked;
only five appear to have been legitimate. All those
persons Reid said were at the other 43 meals denied

~ either being there or that Reid had paid for their
meals. The Commission also determined thatdocu- -

ments and signatures were fabricated, minutes were
doctored and tapes and records sought during the in-
vestigation disappeared or were destroyed. These
and other matters uncovered during the investiga-



tion will be referred to the Attomcy General’s office
for further review.

~As a taxpayer-supported agency, the NJSBA
“claims tax-exempt status and enjoys governmental
exemptions from certain statutes, yet it does not
"adhere to any kind of governmental-type practices
in terms of record keeping or limitations on ex-
penses. Nor does it submit to fiscal oversight by
public agencies. The only exception is the oversight
by the State Insurance Department mandated by the
‘statute that authorized creation of the Insurance
Group. But that oversight, which came too late to
prevent more than $800,000 in investment losses, is
limited to insurance matters and does not extend to

~ other Association activities.

Since the disclosure in 1987 of the losses, and
the suspension and reinstatement of Reid and Dol-
ores Jarvie (the Association comptroller and Insur-
ance Group treasurer), the Group has'made remark-
able strides, under the leadership of Carolyn Smith
and Eugene Burns, in asserting its independence
from the Association, changing its procedures to
protect the integrity of its investments and profes-
sionalizing its staff.

_ Similarly, the Association has taken some steps
to reform itself. Some credit should go to former
President Joseph Zemaitis. Initially, his overindul-
gent stewardship allowed conditions at the Associa-

tion to deteriorate, but his assertive actions follow-

ing disclosure of the losses led both to unpleasant
confrontations with Reid and with his fellow direc-
-tors and to the beginning of reform. More credit is
dué the current president, Jeremiah Regan, who has
tried vigorously to bring his fellow directors to the
realization that the NJSBA is financed by public
monies and should be accountable for proper use of
those funds.

. Nevertheless, events that have taken place dur-
ing the period of the investigation and that continue
to this day give the Commission concern that some
NISBA officers and directors are not genuinely
committed to reform. This report is being sent to

each school board in the State because the Commis-
sion believes it is important that Jocal boards, who
are the only constituents of the NJSBA, know in
detailthe facts uncovered by the SCl'so thatthey can
provide some impetus toward reform.

The Commission believes strongly that Reidis 2
quasi-public official because his only clients are
public bodies and he is paid entirely with public
funds. This report should be read in that context.

These issues and others not mentioned here will

be discussed in detail in the body of the report.

* % %

The Commission makes the following recom-

“mendations:

» As executive director, Octavius T. Reid’s pen-
chant for self promotion and his lack of leadership
have resultedin a serious detriment to the mission of
the School Boards Association. His lack of candor
and ethical insensitivity require that he forfeit any
expectation of keeping his position of responsibil-
ity. The Commission therefore recommends that
Reid be dismissed and that he be sued for restitution
of any monies that he received improperly and for
any breach of fiduciary responsibility.

« In the event that the Association does not take
immediate and meaningful steps toreform, the Leg-
islature should amend the Association statute to
make membership optional, relieving local districts
of the burden of funding continuing extravagances.

" Even if there is reform, the legislature should con-

sider whether mandatory membership in the Asso-
ciation is wise. Only Washington and New Jersey
require local boards to join their state school boards
associations.

« The School Boards Association statute should
be amended to declare that the Association, funded
as it is by public monies, is a quasi-public agency
that should be subject to the controls and limitations



inherent in such status. These controls should in-
clude, at a minimum, requirements for public bid-

ding and control of employee compensation and ex- -

penses. While there should be an arms-length
relationship with any department of state govern-
ment, the State Auditor should have authority at
least to examine the books and records of the Asso-
ciation.

« The statuie that authorized the creation of
school board self-insurance pools should be clari-
fied to eliminate any confusion regarding the kinds
of investments such pools may purchase.

» The Insurance Groﬁp has sued Dan Druz and
Dean Witter Reynolds in connection with the losses
caused by the index options trading. The Attorney
General should monitor this litigation to ensure that
it is pursued vigorously and, if necessary, intervene
to.ensure that the interests of the public are pro-
tected. In addition, the State Bureau of Securities
should investigate whether charges should be brought
against Dean Witter for failure to supervise Druz in
his handling of the Insurance Group account.

~ = As a non-profit agency, which is also exempt

from the requirements of the state’s lobby registra-
~ tion law, the Association should not be able to spend
public funds entertaining government officials or
their staffs.

« In order to provide greater accountability, the
size of the Association’s Board of Directors should
be substantially reduced. In the alternative, the As-
sociation’s Executive Committee should be given
greater authority to supervise more of the day-to-

day activities of the professional staff.

» Although it has severed its administrative re-
lationship with the Association, the Insurance Group’s
Board of Trustees still includes Association repre-
sentatives. In order to achieve complete independ- -
ence, the Group’s by-laws should be amended
immediately to eliminate t_hls unwarranted repre-
sentation. The Group should also explore the feasi-
bility of requiring that at least some of its trustees
possess expertise in relevant subjects such as. law,
finance and insurance. :

« The Association should bc subject tothe state’ s_
Open Public Meetings Act.



PART 1

THE INSURANCE GROUP

BACKGROUND

The New Jersey School Boards Association In-
surance Group (NJSBAIG) is one of eight groups of
public school boards formed in this state to partici-
pate in a joint self-insurance fund. The Insurance
Group is by far the largest of these. Its membership
includes about 180 of the state’s 600 school boards.
The other seven groups consist of about 20 boards

each. All the smaller groups have confined their -

coverage: to workers’ compensation insurance,
whereas the Insurance Group since 1985 has offered

not only workers’ compensation but also property,
- casualty and liability insurance. Itis also the only

group that ever invested in limited partnerships,
mutual funds and stock index options, The primary
source of income to the Insurance Group is premi-
ums paid by its member school districts. The Group
€njoys tax-exempt status. «

The Insurance Group was organized by the
School Boards Association (NJSBA) in 1983 after
enabling legislation was enacted. Until 1988 the
Insurance Group shared staff, office space and even
books and records with the Association. To thisday,
the Association president appoints eight of the nine
. members of the Insurance Group’s Board of Trus-
tees, three of whom must also serve on the Associa-
tion’s Board of Directors.- The president serves ex
officio as the ninth trustee. In retrospect, this
symbiotic relationship, perhaps necessary at the
outset, proved detrimental in succeeding years when

more independence surely would have better served -

the financial interests of the Insurance Group.

The purpose of the 1983 legislation was simple:

to allow school districts to join together to stabilize

and reduce costs, to increase efficiency, and to
prevent insurance costcycles from adversely affect-

ing school district budgets. Infact, a witness told the

~ SCI that since enactment of the statute costs for

insurance pool members are 30 to 40 percent below
what other districts have to pay.

Linda Ditmars, the first full-time director of the
Insurance Group, described the origin and purpose
of the Insurance Group in her executive session tes-

. timony at the SCI:

The purpose was to have a ready market for
all school districts to obtain insurance, and
10 offer it at a reasonable cost without wild
fluctuations in the marker. Hopefully, it
would be a stable force, and they wouldn’t
have 1o worry about periodic swings in the

insurance market. '

INITIAL ORGANIZATION AND RELA TIONTO
ASSOC IA TION '

The NJSBA, which had taken an active role in
sponsoring the enabling legislation, advanced start-
up money 1o the Group. A 1983 contract specified

- the nature of the relationship and required the Group

to reimburse the Association for its actual expenses
or an amount to be capped at three perccm of actual
mcommg premiums,

Douglas Cowan, who served as an officer of the
NISBA from 1982 until 1986, recalled the initial
organjzation penod

It seems to me I remember thinking, it [the
Insurance Group] should be even more au- -
tonomous than they were seeming to make it.
It's great Monday morning quarterbacking,



but I think that part of the problem was that
it should have been further separated from
[the Association]...You have to remember
that the Association gave money to the pool.
And that there ought to be an association
untilthatmoneywas paid back, whichwould
be quickly if the pool was successful.

Thc_goveniin.g' body of the Insurance Group is

its Board of Trustees. The Trustees’ role, as seen by

Trustee Norman Field, “was to set a policy and to
develop the procedures for implementing that legis-
Jation- and to act as the overseers, so to speak, for
making available that coverage to school boards.”

Staff initially consisted of a full-time Director
of Insurance Programs (Linda Ditmars) and four
staff persons from the Association who also worked
part-time for the Insurance Group. The executive
director of the Association served also as adminis-
trator of the Insurance Group and appointed the
thrcc.addltlonal staff persons — a treasurer, deputy
treasurer and secretary.

Lioyd Newbaker was administrator of the Group
from its inception in 1983 until early 1985 when he
was replaced as NISBA executive director by Octa-
vius T. Reid, Jr. Dolores Jarvie, comptrolier of the
NJISBA, was treasurer of the Group from its incep-
tion until 1988. Kathleen Donoher, business man-
ager of the NJSBA, was deputy treasurer of the
Group from its inception until 1988 Vanous per-
sons served as secretary.

MARKETING TO SCHOOL DISTRICTS

" Promoters of the new Insurance Group empha-
sized to school boards the expected stability and

other financial advantages of the insurance pooling

program. For example, Bernard Kirshtein, Associa-
tion president from 1982 to 1984, described for the
SCI the importance of dividends in the initial mar-
- keting: '

We tried to make a big PR issue out of it to
enhance the organization's ability to pro-
vide such services. So yes, rebates were a
very necessary thing in my opinion, because
it was a nonprofit organization. The intent
was not to make money, but to provide the
service.

FormerExecutive Director Newbaker described
the unportance of assuring the safety of invest-
ments:

[T]he Association, in promoting the Insur-
ance Group, had to demonstrate 1o local
boards of education that their investments
would be safe. The whole idea was to have
boards of education pay a reasonable pre-

mium, probablydiscounted below insurance
rates, that those moneys would go into a
pool, that they would be kept track of, that
the loss record of the district would be kept
track of, and that if you had no losses, you
would, through proper investments, be gen-
erating additional income, and you could
return a dividend 1o the boards of education
with no losses or very low losses.

Newbaker continued:

The obvious statements that you made when
you were out talking to boards of education
is that you would be investing in safe finan-
cial instruments so that you wouldn’t be
messing around with their premium and lose
it somewhere else.

Insurance Director Linda Ditmars, told the SCI:

{W]hen we made our presentations, the whole
thrust of it was that we would sort of be the
best of the commercial carriers and a trade
association carrier in the sense that we
would charge low premiums, but we would
run it very conservatively, we would make

safe investments, we would charge them



fairly. If their experience was good, they
would get a discount or a rebate. If it was
bad, we'd try to help them improve their
experience..we were going to be a very
stable force, we would be there for the fu-

ture, we would offer coverage to any district

that needed it at areasonable cost and we
would be stable and conservative in our
management style.

INITIAL INVESTMENTS

The initial investment policy (Exhibit C-2)

adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Insurance
Group is found as Exhibit 1 in this Appendix. It
states, in part:

The primary concern of investments shall be
. the security of invested funds, followed by
" the interest yield and the maturity date....
Investment instruments specifically omitied
are corporate bonds, stocks andother specu-
lative securities of long term duration, one

~ year or longer.

The Insurance Group investment policy mir-
rored the Association’s conservative investment
~ policy. Linda Ditmars testified:

Our premiums were cut to the bone., We
knew what we had to make in order to cover
the premium and we assumed a cerigin re-

_turn on our investments, that we had to get

that return.

Q. What was the return you assumed?

A. Well, it was very low. We were limited to
extremely conservative vehicles for invest-
ing, but we couldn’t take any risk with that
money. We had to get at least that amount,

but we couldn’t take any chances with it.



PERMISSIBLE INVESTMENTS

Before discussing investment losses, it is impor-
tant to understand 1) what the enabling statute
authorizes in terms of investments by a school
insurance group, 2) how the statute differs from
what the State Investment Council authorizes, 3)
what the “prudent man” rule is and 4) how the
NJSBA Insurance Group changed its investment
policy from conservative to speculative.

THE STATUTE

The énabling statute authorizes the trustees of a
school boards joint self-insurance fund to:

Investmoneys held intrust under any fundin

investments which are approved for invest- -

ment by regulation of the State Investment
Council for surplus moneys of the State.

[NJSA 18A:18B4(b)(2)]

" Both the term “surplus moneys” and the direc-

tion to follow approved Investment Council regula-

tion are problematic. “Surplus moneys” is not a
term defined in the state investment statutes, al-

though the term “surplus public moneys™is found in
the section authorizing school districts toinvestina

. state cash management fund. See N.J.S.A. 52:18A-
90.4.

Independent insurance consultant Richard

Lofberg, who was retained by NJSBA during the

bill drafting process, told the SCI that the language-

covering investments was borrowed from legisla-
tion in other states. He noted that the ambiguous and
broad nature of the language in this statute was

flagged shortly after its passage by Roland Ma- . -

chold, Director of the State’s Division of Invest-

ment. Ina memorandum dated August 25, 1983 to
the assistant state treasurer, copied to the NJISBA,
Director Machold expressed his reservations about
the language. Machold testified about that memo: -

The subject of my memorandum was that I
did not approve of this kind of wording, had -
not seen it in advance of the passage of the

bill, and the reason that I had reservations
about the wording was that neither the Divi-

_sion nor the Council liked to be fiduciaries
for third parties. This sort of language is so
broad that it, in fact, invites abuses of some
form or another. It's not that the Council
regulations are not complete and accurate
and prudent in respect 1o the investments of
the Division, but it’s not necessarily the case
that those investments will be appropriate
for some third parties whose investment pro-
grams and investment needs would be for-
eign to the Division of Investment.

Machold also noted, “T had a concern relatedto
the actual Council regulations. For example, if one
were to blindly follow our regulations, they would
not be aware that there might be approved securities
that we were not, for a variety of reasons, purchas-
ing.” He added, “It’s not enough simply to have the
right investments for the right funds and the right
investmentobjectives, butit’simportantto carry out
the appropriate procedures.” ‘

Machold’s memorandum stated in part: .

By copy of this memorandum I am express- -
ing my concern to the School Boards Asso-
ciation. 1 believe that they would be better
off if they were simply subject to the prudent



man rule.

- Machold had no recollection of any response
from the Association to his memorandum. No
change was made in the insurance group statute and
no subsequent state regulation was promulgated
formally adopting the prudent man rule as the au-
thority for investments by such groups.

+ Machold hypothesized that the term “surplus
monies” might refer to the state’s general invest-
ment fund, the large revolving fund out of which the
state’s major disbursements are made. The invest-
ments authorized for that fund, Machold said, are
short term investments such as treasury bills and
notes, commercial paper and obligations of treasury

agencies or other U.S. agencies. Such instruments’

were, in fact, what the Insurance Group’s original
investments were in.

Y

THE STATE INVESTMENT COUNCIL

~ Stock index options, limited partnerships and
mutual funds are not investments specifically au-
thorized under regulations of the State Investment
Council. According toDirector Machold, if they are
not specifically authorized they are impermissible.

. Machold testified:

I saw a newspaper report...in which some-

one said thar investments were legal be-
cause they had not been disapproved by the
Council. I want to make it very clear that no

: investment is legal unless it has been ap-
:  proved by the Investment Council, As I told
~onereporter, under the first premise whore-
houses would be legal investments simply
because they were not specifically excluded

by the Council, and the appropriate view is

that whorehouses are illegal investments

because they have not been approved by the

Council.

No Stock Index Options. An index isa statis-
tical measure designed torepresent the performance
of a particular group of stocks. An index option
gives the holder the right to purchase or sell the
underlying index within a specified period of time.
Index options differ from equity options (those
based on individual stocks) primarily in that they are
settled in cash. :

Machold said investment in index options or
futures is impermissible under Investment Council
regulations. He noted that investment in equity
options is permissible “but those are options of indi-
vidual stocks and the regulation in question states

~ that they must be covered call options. That is to

say, we can only write an option if we own the
underlying stock.” :

No Limited Partnerships. Machold testified:

Limited partnerships are not permitied by
-the Division ofInvestment. Generally speak-
ing, such partnerships relate to securities
which are highly illiquid, which are not
possible to evaluate in the market place and
in many cases have substantial tax benefits
which would not have any value to a tax
exempt organization such as the state or, for
that matter, the School Boards Association.
1 would add, editorially, many of these in-
vestments also command very high commis-
sions upon the placement, high front end

~ loads and sometimes ongoing fees on an
amzual baszs '

No Mutual Funds. Director Machold_dis-
cussed mutual fund investments under the Invest-
ment Council guidelines:

Again, mutual funds are not permined spe-
cifically by Council guidelines and regula-
tions. In point of fact, the Division cannot
employ owtside investors at all. There is no
provision in state law that allows us to dele-
gate our authority to another party.... More
thanthat, itwouldn’t be appropriate for us to



do so, because most mutual funds have very
 high fees, well in excess of the overhead of
. managing the assets of the Division.

Under a prudent man apprbach, how“ever, Ma-

chold thought mutual funds “would be permissible
—again, supposing that the investment objectives
of the funds were appropnate to the fund and clearly
stated by the ﬁduc1ancs

Machold connnued

\'

: People ask me what is going to happen to the
market and I always say I don’t know. Be-

‘cause I don’t know, and markets will always

~ surprise one. If people knew what the mar- .

kets were going to do, we would all be rich....

THE PRUDENT MAN RULE

Director Machold in his memorandum referred

to the “prudent man rule” as a suggested alternative

to the ambiguity of the statute. Even though the
“prudent man” rule is considered more liberal than
the Investment Council regulations, Machold em-
- phasized in his testimony that an investor must still
be mindful of the principal purpose of his invest-
ment fund andmustmanagehls investments accord-

mgly

The prudcnt man rule is generally defined as a
requirement that a fiduciary invest funds only in
securities that any reasonable individual interested
in receiving a good retum while preserving his
capital would purchase. The standard does not
require that an individual possess exceptional in-
vestment skill, only that he exercise discretion in
making generally sound investments.

In response to questions from _SCI"'Cbunsel
Carol L. Hoekje, Machold testified:

* WhatI was trying to say in its simplest form

- was that every independent investment en-

10

tity within the state or created by the state
should, in the authorizing legislation, be
directly tied at least to the state prudent man
law. I say at least to the state prudent man

_law because that does not preclude other

" regulation that might be provided in line
withwhatever the speczﬁ c investment objec-
tives are.

WHO KNEW THE RESTRICTIONS?

None of the Insurance Group trustees who testi-
fied before the SCI knew what kinds of investments
were authorized. Nordid Reid or Jarvie. But others
on the Insurance Group staff certainly understood
clearly. Former NJSBA Executive Director and In-
surance Group Administrator Newbaker testified:

I thought it was very clear what we could
invest in and what we could not invest in...since
my general understanding is that there was
the same investment policy for the Insurance
Group that there was for the Association,
thar gll staff knew clearly what you could
invest in and what you could not invest m

[Emphasis added]

Q. Did you have an understanding that
certain kinds of mvestments would not be

permitted?
A. Absolutely.

Q. What kinds of investments?
A. Ok, stock market was number one. I'm
not sure that I'm familiar with all of the
kinds of investments that could be made, but
_certainly any definition that’s risky, and as
farasIrecall, risky investments were clearly
identified by the state, and they were a “no-
no” for the Insurance Group. :

Q. Do you think there was any anticipation
by the Insurance Group at the time that you
were associated with it that the Insurance



Group would ever invest in stock index op-
tions?
A. Never,

To Insurance DircctorIDitmaxs, the issues raised
by Machold’s 1983 memorandum rightly were of
no concem to the Insurance Group:

Our policy was so conservative that we
didn’tthink we had any problem under this.

. Wedidn’t have to choose which funds that
we would fall under, we didn’t have to
: decide whether there were stock lists that we
might not be aware of because we weren’t

going to investin those types of instruments.

o As will be discussed later, hoWeVer, Ditmars®

understanding was not commonly shared, and her
differences with Reid over a change in investment
‘policy led eventually to her forced resignation.

* In testimony before the SCL, Reid claimed that
he “had the primary role behind the creation of the
Insurance Group...and it was my primary responsi-
~ bility as chief lobbyist to lobby it through the legis-
lature.” While he claimed he had “most of the ideas”
for and reviewed the legislation, he denied any role
indrafting the panticular language relating to invest-
ments, said he did not know who drafted the lan-
guage, and had no information about its origin.

Reid admitted he did not know specifically what
the Group’s investments were at the time he became
administrator in 1985, or, more importantly, what
was permissible. *I couldn’t detail now without
going back and looking at it.” “The investments
were not anissue” at that time, he said. Once the leg-
islation was passed, Reid testified, “that was simply

‘another legislative accomplishment.” He said he.

had no subsequent involvement with the creation of

the Insurance Group, its initial agreement with the
Association or its marketing.

Former Treasurer Jarvie testified that she had
telephoned the Division of Investment when the
Group was first organized to ask about permissible
investments. She told the SCI she spoke to someone
who told her there were no restrictions on what the
Group could invest in. “All we had [was] the
prudent man rule...there were noreal restrictions on
what and how we could use the funds and/or invest
the funds,” Jarvie testified. Machold said he had no
knowledge of such a contact. Jarvie said she had no
subsequent contacts and did no other investigation
of her own.

As will be discussed in subsequent pages, it was
this perfunctory inquiry on which Reid later said he
relied when he tried to rationalize new, speculative
investments that turned to financial disaster for the
Insurance Group. .
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THE INVESTMENT STRATEGISTS

‘On July 1, 1985, the Insurance Group expanded
its coverage from workers’ compensation to other
lines of insurance such as property, casualty, liabil-
ity-and inland marine insurance. This expansion of
coverage naturally resulted in a substantial increase
in premiums to the Group — premiums that had to
be invested. It was during this period that Dan Druz
-~ arrived on the scene.

The personal relationship between Reid and
Druz added to the investment picture a factor that
the Commission still cannot define. At its most
innocent, it was a friendship. Yet there were devel-
opments during the period covered by the investiga-
tion that the Commission finds troubling. At first
blush, Reid’s role in the investment fiasco would
appear to be a product of naivete, carelessness or
maybe even recklessness. Whatever the case, the
Commission is left with the strong belief that Druz,
the only person to profit in this whole scenario —
and he did so handsomely — was able to do it only
because of a preexisting and continuing relationship
with Reid. And denials of impropriety by both
persons do nothing to dispel the cloud surrounding
Druz’s granting of an unsecured, low interest $12,000

loan to Reid while Druz was, in effect, working for -

the NJSBA. Whether an innocent transaction ornot,
Reid should have known better.

“The two met when Druz was a summer em-
ployee of the NJSBA in the mid-1970s and Reid was
the Association’s chief Jobbyist. Both agree that
their next contact was several years later, after Druz

had graduated from law school, had become a

broker for Merrill Lynch in its Lawrenceville office

and in the course of soliciting business approached .
Reid about investing with his firm. That financial -

relationship, according to both principals, was not

" 100 successful, since Reid ended up loSihg money.

Reid’s Brokerage Account with Druz. Reid’s
personal account was a margin account, with activ-
ity mainly from 1978 until 1980 in stocks and a few
options. Most stocks were acquired and held only
for a few months. Reid remembered “some real
good ones” and “some bad ones” from that invest-
ment experience. Reid recalled, “The primary thing

-1 was investing in were the [casino] gambling
 stocks...and then after that I stopped investing be-
cause I think I decided to put some money intoreal -

estate or something, butI didn’t hear any more from.

. him [Druz] or see him any more until 1985.”

Reid and Druz agreed that they made invest- .
ment decisions on the account “jointly” but Reid
could not remember the extent of his contact with
Druz while the account was open. Nor did he recall
thc options he had purchased wu:h Druz. -

In his testimony','Druz reca.llcd the rclat_ions’hip:_

Q. Did Mr. Reid ever.express any dissatis-

Jaction to you with your handlmg of his.

account at Merrill Lynch?

A Idon’trecall. Nothing strong, but on the
other hand, a client doesn’t have 1o express
dissatisfaction, If they stop doing business
with you, they're not thar__thrilled. AR

Q. Did Mr Reid lose money dtsome pamt in
that account? '

A. Ithink he ended up Iosmg money. Yes, he
did end up losing money

Their next contact came in the late summer of
1985 when Druz, who was then the Princeton branch



- manager for Dean Witter Reynolds, said he ap-

proached Reid at NJSBA offices about finding a

teaching job for his sister-in-law. Both men agreed
_ that during the course of an apparently wide-rang-

ing discussion, the subject of finance and invest-
ments naturally came up. And it was then, accord-
ing to Druz, that he first learned of the investment
opportunities involving the Insurance Group funds.
When Druz expressed an interest in the possibilities,
Reid invited him to submit a formal proposal on
behalf of himself and Dean Witter Reynolds, a
proposal that Reid accepted just a few weeks later.
(That hiring will be examined in greater detail in the
next section.} _

RELATIONSHIP GROWS

- After Reid retained Druz to handle investments
for the Insurance Group, the personal relationship
between the two apparently grew. Of course, the
Group’s trustees knew nothing of this, and even the
NJSBA staff knew little more.

Jarvie testified that she knew “‘only from hear-
say” about Reid’s contacts with Druz and that was
when Reid’s secretary would tell her Reid was not
available because “he’s meeting with Dan or he’s
having lunch with Dan.” Reid never told her di-
rectly of these contacts. Both men said they consid-
ered each other to be friends and Druz said he gave
Reid his private telephone number at Dean Witter
Reynolds (DWR), something Reid said he could not
recall.

Reid recalled the trip:

We went to talk with the president of Dean
Witter. [Druz] was trying to getme in 1o see
him and he wanted to talk about some ideas
that he had with respect to the Insurance
Groupandinvesting andso forthandwanted
me to meet him and talk abowt all of that.

Jarvie testified that she believed Reid had gone
toNew York on several occasions with Druz but that
neither Reid nor Druz everdiscussed these trips with-
her. :

The Testimonials. In addition to securing for
Druz the lucrative investment business of the Insur-
ance Group, Reid appeared to take an active interest
in promoting Druz and steering other business his
way. For instance, Reid testified that he recom-
mended Druz as a broker to the New York School
Boards Association (NYSBA) “because I thought

‘he was doing a good job for us, and I thought I was

doing my colleague a favor by suggesting someone
who I thought was a hot-shot financial wizard.’f

Reid also wrote a glowing letter of recommen-
dation for Druz, dated July 3, 1986, 10 a Pennsylva-
niafoundation, In this letter Reid wrote, *As aresult
of experiences, I have referred Mr. Druz and his
firm to my counterparts in other states” and “During

“this time, Mr. Druz has made a consistent and

. Several weeks after a 1986 meeting at which the -

Insurance Group Trustees approved a new invest-
ment policy, Druz and Reid went by limousine to
meet with a top official at the DWR home office in
New York. When this official was not available,
Druz called on the Chairman of the Board because
Reid was “such animportant client.” By letter dated
February 24, 1986, Druz thanked the Chairman for
meeting with-them. S

conscientious effort to keep us briefed on the prog-
ress of our investments. With each report there has
been a full and candid disclosure of any attendant
risks associated with whatever decision we mlght be-
asked to make.” : _

In addition to those personal endorsements, Reid,
as Executive Director, set up meetings for anyone
on the NJSBA staff interested in investing in IRAs
with Druz. Several Association employees eventu-
ally opened IRA accounts with Druz after such
meetings.
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Employment. As requested, Reid eventually
helped Druz’s sister-in-law get a teaching job. By
letter dated August 28, 1986, Druz wrote to Reid, “1
cannot thank you enough for your help in finding
employment for my sister-in-law.”

Druz also said he made some recommendations
for the employment of Reid’s son as a stockbroker
with the Cherry Hill office of DWR. “I had met
Ted’s son a couple of times, I knew he was inter-
ested in the business,...I thought he’d do well.”

Reid testified:
«..[Druz] said that he would like to put in a
good word for him but I believe that my son
got his employment on his own merit.

THE $12,000 LOAN

- On April 14, 1987, Reid asked for and received

a $12,000 loan from Druz. The circumstances

surrounding the loan were unusually informal, es-
‘pecially for persons involved in the world of busi-
ness and finance. Neither man had the original of
the note. Druz said Reid promised to repay the loan
in three months but the promissory note contained
no schedule for repayment. Druz said he asked Reid
about repayment several months after the loan was
made but Reid never rcsponded.

What isclear is thatno payment of any kind was
made ‘on the loan until June 8, 1988, nearly 14
months after the loan was made and just a day after
Druz was interviewed by the SCI. On June 8, Reid
sent Druz a check for $1,000 for “mortgage interest
payment.” On July 14, 1988, Reid sent Druz an-
other check, this one for $12 200 in final payment
for the loan.

unsecured one. Druz said he filled out the terms on
the note and set the interest rate at 8 per cent, a rate
he testified “was probably the money market rate at

that time.” However, the SCI staff determined that
the going rate at the time for an unsecured loan was
not 8 per cent but 15.75 per cent. =

- Reid denied, in response to a question, that the
loan was a kickback from the commissions Druz
earned by handling the Insurance Group funds. And
Druz similarly denied the loan was any kind of a
payback to Reid, either for the money he had lost in
prior investments with Druz or in return for Reid
appointing him broker for the Group. Druz also
denied the loan was meant in any way to influence
Reid not to fire him when the investments started
going sour. Both men insisted they had had discus-
sions months earlier about investing in real estate
together and the loan was simply the beginning of
such a venture. :

The loan was made by cashier’s check drawn on
Druz’s personal account at Dean Witter, payable to
Druz and endorsed by him over to Reid. Reid
testified that the promissory notefor this loan was
drawn up by an in-house Association attorney at his

- request. Reid said that he used the money to make

capital improvements on properties he owned in the
Camden area.

The existence of this loan remained a secret to
the Insurance Group trustees and to the Associa-
tion’s officers and directors until more than a year
later. However, Druz said he believed he spoke to
an NJSBA attorney as early as the fall of 1986
regarding the propriety of such a loan and was told
that it would be “no problem.” Therefore, when

“Reid asked him for the money in April, 1987, Druz

Purported security for the loan was a mortgage,

deliverable on demand, on one of two properties
Reid owned. However, no mortgage was either
delivered or filed, making the loan in reality an
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said he “felt comfortable" because he had “alrcady_
cleared the way.” '

Q. Did you discuss with [the attorney] whether
or not either you or he should disclose the

~ existence of the loan to the Insurance Group
Trustees?



A. No.

Druz said he did not disclose the loan to the
Insurance Group Trustees because he felt that “once
1 had spoken to counsel of the School Boards Asso-

_ciation, that ] had made my disclosure.” Neither did
he tell anyone at DWR about it.

Q. Didyou at all consider that lending Mr.
Reid the money at that time would at all
appear improper?

A. Well, clearly, that's why I went to the
School Boards Association attorney on my
own.

Druz thought he “may well have talked” to the
“Association attorney in April, 1987, as well as in the
fall of 1986.

. Druz explained why he lent Reid the money:

0. Didyoufeel at all because of the commis-
sions that you had earned from this account
that you owed something to Mr. Reid?

A. No—well, I didn’t owe him anythmg fi-
nancial.

Q. Whar was it that you owed him?

A. Well, he gave me an opportunity 1o make
. a proposal for the account, so if I ever had

‘the opportunity to do something like that for

him —

Reid testified that he consulted the same NJSBA

-attorney Druz did about the propriety of the loan.

Reid also said he had no concern that there was any
appearance of a conflict of interest in receiving the
$12,000 loan:

" I mean, I saw that was a totally separate

" thing from what we were doing and I was
under the impression...that we were doing

- quite well and doing so fine that there was no
question whatsoever of any impropriety. ....
If I thought there was any kind of problem
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with the Insurance Group I never would
_ have bothered with this.

Q. Mr.Reid, was the $12,000 loan from Dan
Druz to you a kickback for the commissions
that were ‘earned on the Insurance Group
account? :

- A. No.

Jarvie had no knowledge of a loan between Reid
and Druz. And she said she never asked Druz for a
loan: “Ididn’tknow he was in the lending business.”

'Druz testified that he was not aware before the
trustees’ meeting of April 29 that Reid would rec-
ommend that he and DWR be reappointed. In fact,
he recalled that Reid had told him in a prior meeting
that he would not “be renewed as the broker of
record at fiscal year-end [if] the performance didn’t
improve significan tly .atleasttothe equivalentof a
CD rate.” :

Q. DidyoulendMr.Reid the money because
you wanted htm not to carry out his prom-
ise?

A. Absolutely not.

Commissions to the “Investment Consult-
ant.” Druz testified that the Insurance Group was
a large and important account. His assistant, Mich-
ele Vitale, said it was his largest. :

" Druz was as_ked:

Q. Why was it an important account?
" A. Because it generated a lot of commis-
sions.

The SCI staff’s analysis of documents provided
by Dean Witter Reynolds showed that in the fiscal
year ending June 30, 1986, the Insurance Group
paid at least $250,000, (including $34,000 on the
June options trades alone) in commissions to Dean
Witter Reynolds. Calculations by the Arthur Young
accounting firm showed commissions of $297,536,



paid for the next fiscal year ending June 30, 1987,
for a total of $547,000 for the two-year period the
Insurance Group dealt with Druz. This represented
approximately 40% of Druz’s total gross commis-
sions of $1,368,263 from all clients for this two-
year period. Druz’s share of the commissions
ranged from 30 to 43 percent of the gross.

An SCI analysxs of commission schedules re-
ceived under subpoena from DWR showed that in
the eight-month period prior to June 1986, options
transactions accounted for no more than .7% of
Druz’s total commissions. From June 1986 until
June1987, however, commissions from options trans-

" actions averaged 46% of total (gross) commissions
~ generated by Druz. In June 1986, the first month the

transactions began, Insurance Group trades appear.

to account for 99% of gross commissions earned by
Druz on all his options transactions.

No separate records were kept by the Insurance

Group staff of commissions paid to the broker and
noreports to the Trustees ever mentioned them. The
State Investment Council, in contrast, discloses in
its monthly reports each transaction including the
expense/commission of the transactions. The amounts
of commissions paid are subject to annual audit as
well as internal review and justification .

The Council expects a-minimum discount on
commissions. Druz said that after the initial trans-
actions in the account he gave the account a discount
of about 25 percent on commissions. Arthur Young
audit partner Edward Cupoli testified, however, that
he never saw any information in records his firm
examined that would indicate that DWR gave the
Insurance Group a discount. And Reid said he
didn’t know.

~ ‘The Insurance Group trustees generally did not
-~ recall any discussion of commissions to be paid to
Druz and DWR although Trustee Norman Field

thought “we understood that as normal procedure™

Druz would bill commissions for each transaction.

Former Insurance_Group Chair Carolyn Smith |
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thought, however, that because Druz was labelled

our investment consultant, we were not aware
of that distinction.... All of our consultants
were paid on a set fee. 1don’t think it even

occurred to us that itwould be a comm:sszon .-

- basis and it’s like a Monday mornmg quar--
terback. Youthink how couldyoube so dumb
but it just—itdid not occur [to us). We were -
hiring an investment consultant.... I don’t.
think we ever thought of [Druz] as a broker
because he was the manager of the Dean
Witter Princeton branch. ' .

Druz testified that each time the term “invest-
ment consultant” was used he “objected privately”
to Reid or Jarvie, telling them “that was not accurate
terminology.” Reid testified that he considered
Druz an “investment advisor,”
“that his compensation would come by way of
whatever commissions that he made.” He testified,
“Investment consultant, investment advisor.. They.
are interchangeable. Investment consultant, that’s
what I believed I was hiring when I engaged him.”

Director Machold testified about commissions
on options:

The important thing to the broker is the high
level of turnover because the commissions
are multiplied in direct proportion to the
volume of turnover. A “spread” involves
two separate transactions, and a commis-
sion is charged on each side.

Druz denied that the volume of trading was done
for the purpose of generating commissions. He
responded to the staff’s observation that the volume
appeared to be excessive: “It’s essentially to say
sitting here Jooking back on it that it was excessive.

To have been there in the volatile markets that we

began to experience, might give them more insight, -
and they might not have that opinion.”

but also assumed



Auditor David Williamsrecalleda conversation
with Jarvie in the summer of _71986:

~ [S]he showed me that, you know, a stack of
transaction slips.... And I noted that there
were commissions assessed on each trade
and I did, perhaps whimsically, not to her,
you know, I wondered aloud whether he was
making more on this than the Insurance
Group was.

0. What kind of response did you get?
“A.ldon’tknow anything specific, butl think
- her response was that it was really nothmg :
‘she could do about it. _

.. Q. Why was that?
A. Because she did not have arzy input into.
the trades.
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NEW INVESTMENT POLICY

From the time of the formation of the Insurance

Group in 1983 until October, 1985, all its funds

were safely invested in cerntificates of deposit at
Jocal banks. Beginning in the fall of 1985, however,
and unbeknownst to the Insurance Group trustees or
any directors of NJSBA, Reid and Druz took the
first steps that were to lead to the financial disaster
- which occurred in the summer of 1987.

“With millions in new premiums to invest be-

cause of the expansion of insurance coverage, Reid
-and Druz went beyond CD’s and began to invest
" Group funds in limited partnerships, mutual funds,
equities, government securities, treasury bonds, some
common stocks, some interest rate options and a few
common stock options. The following June, they
began investing in stock index options.

Many of these investments were the kind that

Investment Division Director Machold had said
- were not authorized by his agency for general state
investment and were, in fact, highly speculative.
And the decision to invest in these instruments was
in clear violation of the Insurance Group’s written

policy and a violation of the trust placed in the

Group by its member school boards, who had been
promised that their insurance premiums would be
_ invested conservatively. ..

~ =Before examining the details of the investment
picture, it is important to sketch a brief chronologi-
cal overview of events as they unfolded. In the late
summer of 1985, Dan Druz visited Reid, ostensibly
to get his sister-in-law a job. A discussion of fi-
nances ensued, Druz made a proposal and was
retained by Reid to handle the investment of mil-
 lions of dollars in insurance premiums without so
much as any comparison shopping. There was no .

contract and Reid had no authorization from anyof =

his superiors.

About the time Druz was retained, Reid had
obtained a one-time only exemption from the in-
vestment policy of the Association. However, he
then opened brokerage accounts at Dean Witter
Reynolds for not only the Association but the Insur-
ance Group as well. Despite the fact that the bulk of
the money to be invested was assets of the Insurance
Group, he never sought approval from the Group's-
trustees to change their investment policy and told
them about it four months after he had already done
it. At the same meeting, he got the trustees’ ap-
proval to retain Druz four months after the broker
had already invested more than $3 million of their
funds.

Meanwhile, documents indicating official ap-
proval of the opening of the new accounts were
fabricated — and De Jarvie, one of the signatories,
claimed she did not sign some documents that bore -
her purported signature. -

When the SCI tried to determine the facts and
assess responsibility for various actions, Reid, Druz
and Jarvie began pointing fingers at each other. And
the few people at the NJSBA who had expressed any
concern about the new investment policy were ei-
ther dismissed or ostracized.

Druz Moves In. These new investments began
shortly after Druz was retained. In discussing his |

hiring, Reid told the SCI that he had asked Dr_uz: '

Giveme aproposal. Sé, he wensand drafted
up a proposal and brought it back and I took
alook atit. 1also gave it to De [Jarvie] and
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~ asked her to 1ake alook at it and decided that
it might be a good idea and then decided to
engage him.

‘Reid testified that he did not consider looking at
any other brokerage firms at that time. Indeed, no
evidence was found in this investigation that bids
were sought from other brokerage houses or that a
discount on commissions was ever discussed for the
Insurance Group account. Jarvie, however, claimed
that she had received two other proposals, one from
a bank and one from Merrill Lynch, “and then we
[Reid and Jarvie] made the decision.”

- Q. Why was Dean Witter chosen?

A, We had the three and I {looked] at them
all and I talked to Ted Reid and I said, you
know, I thought that Dean Witter sounded

~ like somebody that would work very well

+  withus. And he said, “Good, I'm glad that
- you made that recommendation.” And he

said, “Thar s what we'll go 1o the Board.’

- with.

' Jarvie recalled, “1 think that the ;5ropos’al that

was made was very complete. It sounded like the
kind of person that we wanted and certainly the
bottom line was Ted Reid. If I had said somebody
else, I mean, the decision was basically his.”

Druz’s proposal, dated September 12, 1985,
discussed the proposed investment of Insurance
.Group and Association monies. Druz characterized
that proposal as Dean Witter’s basic proposal “fora
typical equity portfolio,” and said that he tried to
keep the language “as generic, as vague and as
flexible as possible.” '

In his propoéél, Druz referred to his “persdnal—

relationship with your organization and my position

within my firm and the legal community” and said,

“I believe 1 can deliver the best service possible in
- helping you manage your funds so you can receive
asuperiorreturn.” After discussing several alterna-
tives for “managing your insurance fund,” Druz

concluded that the “most cost effective method”
(saving management fees of as much as $40,000
annually) is “where Dolores Jarvie and I can com-
bine our expertise to decide upon the best invest-
ments for this fund.”

- By Counsel Hoekje:

Q. What information did you have when you
wrote this proposal about Dolores Jarvie's
expertise in making investments?

A. I really knew very little about her back-
ground. She was the person, the decision
maker for the investments. That's for the
most part. '

Q. What are you basing that statement on,
that she was the decision maker for the
investments?

A. When I had my initial meeting wuh Ted,
he said, “Go see her about investing mone) _
Jor the insurance fund ”

* Q. Were you aware of Mrs. Jarvie's éducae
tional background at this ume’
A. No.

Q. Were you aware of any prior experience
that Mrs. Jarvie had in makmg personal

~ investments? :
A.No.

Q. Were you aware of the kinds of invest-
 ments Mrs. Jarvie had been makmg for the

Insurance Group?

A.Yes..] think cemﬁcates ofdepom for the

most part.

Dolores Jarvie testified that she began working
forthe NJSBA in 1973 as abookkeeper. She did not
graduate from high school but obtained a general
equivalency diploma and later ook some college
courses, none in either accounting or bookkeeping.
Despite her limited formal education in the field,
she eventually became comptroller of the NJSBA
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and treasurer of the Insurance Group.

Reid claimed to know little about Jarvie’s edu-
cational or professional background, yet he referred
to her at the SCI as the Association’s “financial
whiz” and assigned her tasks that he should have

known were far above her level of competence. And

he took her advice over that of, for instance, Linda
Ditmars, the Insurance Group’s first director, who
also happened to be an attorney.

"Druz testified that about two weeks after he
wrote up his proposal, “they [Jarvie or Reid] told me
that I would be helping them invest their money” for
both the Insurance Group and the Association. It

was not until four months later that Reid got around
to telling the Insurance Group trustees of this deci-

sion.

The Association Brokerage Account. In Sep-
tember 1985, both the Association’s Executive
Committee and its Board of Directors were asked to
approve & “‘one-time exclusion” to the Association’s
investment policy to allow for the investing of
$500,000 realized from the sale of an old Associa-
tion building. The approvals were granted and the

_money was deposited on October 2, 1985 into the
new account that Reid had authorized Druz to open
at DWR for the NJSBA.

Former Association officer Perina Fortoloczki
remembered asking “who would be doing the in-
vestments and would there be any opportunity for
speculation.... I wanted to be sure that [Reid] went
" on record as indicating to us whether or not that
" policy would provide for speculative investments,
and I was assured that it would not.” '

. "The Insurance Group Account. Although
Reid obtained prior authority for the Association’s

“one-time” investment change, he did not do the

same for the Insurance Group, which had much
more money available toinvest. Atthe same time as
- Druz opened the Association account at DWR, he
also opened one for the Insurance Group. Approxi-

mately $3.3 million was transferred by Jarvie to this
new Dean Witter brokerage account between Octo-
ber 1985 and February 1986 for investments that
were not authorized by the Insurance Group’s exist-
inginvestment policy, a policy that was notchanged
until February 5, 1986.

Asked by Counsel Hoekjc why the Associa-
tion’s Executive Committee was asked to approve:
an investment change for the Assoc1at10n, Reld
testified:

- 'Well, before anything could be done in this
area it would require their approval...because
that is the way our structure is set up. That
is the way our organization is. We take
things to the Executive Committee first and
then, depending upon whether they agree,

 disagree or modify, it then goes to the Board
of Directors. It's operating procedure.

~ He said there was no need for the Insurance
Group’s Board of Trustees to give similar approval
because “the investments of the Insurance Group
had been handled by basically the treasurer and vice
treasurer since its inception.” Reid testified that
while “any change in the investments for the Asso-
ciation would have required the approval of the
Board, any investments with respect to the Insur-
ance Group at that time did not.” | '

Q. And that was because Mrs. Jarvie had
always handled the investments? ‘
A That's Fight.

Jarvie’s thmkmg onthatissue differed markedly
from Reid’s. She testified:

1 believe that either we got a verbal agree-
ment, the then-Chairman of the Trustees or
something. I know that we wouldn’t have
gone off and running without having some

- kind of substantiation.... I just can’t see us
going into this without having some agree-
‘ment with either the head of the Trustees or
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somebody. It just doesn’t make sense to me.

Jarvie was “sure” there must have been a Board
of Trustees meeting earlier than February 1986:

I mean, we wouldn’t have gone from Octo-
- ber to February without some sort of ap-
proval, verbal or whatever, I mean, this is
too long a period of time. '

R

" Who's In Charge? As stated earlier, Reid tes-

tified that he “basically” gave Druz the approval to

go'ahead and make actual investments after reading
his September 12 proposal. He said he was “antici-
panng” that Druz “was going to make money for
us:”

I told him that I wanted to basically see the
monies in the Insurance Group grow and I
wanted to make sure that we had good solid
investments and | was expecting him to per-
Jorm like the whiz he told me he was...

Q. Did you have an understanding at that
time of what kinds of investments would be
- good solid investments?
A.No. 1 expected him to provide that exper-
tise.
Reid said he gave Druz no limits on the amount
of money he should invest:

Tt doesn’t make an awful lot of sense to even

suggest that. We hired an investment advi-

- sor to manage the Sfunds of the Insurance
o Group

" The Commission has found that the investments

of the Insurance Group proceeded without any spe-

cific guidelines or goals. No specific investment
vehicles were authorized by the trustees, nodetailed
reporting procedure was ever establishéd and no

parameters for volume of transactions or maximum

loss were ever established.

Reid, Jarvie and Druz all had different versions
of who made decisions regarding investments and
transfers of funds. Jarvie testified, for instance, that
she knew she had talked to Reid about transferring
money into the Dean Witter account. Reid denied
this, saying, “I was not involved in any transfer of

funds »

~ Jarvie also testified that despite direction from
Reid and despite assurances from Druz, she was
never consulted about the initial investments:

I was under the impression he [Druz] was to
- call me and tell me what we were going to
buy, okay, in advance. What happened was
"1 started getting confirmations, 1 started
getting confirmations in and then I called
‘him and said, “I thought you were going to
call me and discuss different things,” and he
said, "Oh, well, these are all those things
that were in my proposal, so we're not
deviating from that....” He assured me he
knew what he was doing, he knew the para-
meters, he knew the kind of things he should
be in and not 1o worry. He’d come in ar the
end of the month andwe’d go over wharthey
were and 5o on and so forth. ’

Reid’s testimony was that he had told Druz that'
“De was our comptroller and financial whiz” and
that she “basically made those decisions with re-
spect to money.” Reid said he did not give input
himself into the investments made in the fall of
1985: : :

I'd feel fairly comfortable that they were

made at Dan Druz’s suggestion...number

one, because he was the investment whiz,

and, number two, I wouldn’t imagine that
- De Jarvie would sit down and look through
" all the available investments and come up
- with this list,

Druz’s version was that the decisions as to the
actual initial investments were “jointly decided upon™



by Reid, Jarvie and himself, with spnie input from
Kathleen Donoher, NJSBA business manager and
deputy treasurer of the Group,

“Whoever made the decisions, the new invest-
ments included limited partnerships, and at least
nine different mutual funds or trusts investing in
common stock, stock options, commodites and
government securities. The investments in stock
index options did not begin until June, 1986.

Fabrications, Despite the fact that no official
body of the NJSBA had approved the opening of the
Insurance Group brokerage account, Reid and Jarvie
signed a letter to Dean Witter, dated October 4,
1985, making a representation to the contrary.
(Exhibit C-80) Reid also signed a DWR new
accountdocument attesting to the adoption on Octo-
ber 1, 1985 of a corporate resolution for the Insur-
ance Group account. No evidence was found in this
investigation, in documents subpoenaed from DWR
or from the Insurance Group, that this false repre-
sentation was ever amended or corrected.

New account documents for the Insurance Group
were signed by Reid, Druz and ostensibly Jarvie on
October 1, 1985. However, some of the new ac-
coum documents were interesting because the “sig-
nature” of Dolores Jarvie, Treasurer of the Group,
appeared as “Delores Jarvie” on two of the docu-
ments—a margin agreement pledging mutual funds
shares as collateral and one version of the “corporate
resolution” for the Group obtained from the DWR
files. Jarvie’s reaction to secing her purported
signature on the first document at the SCI was,

Income Trust.” No discretionary trading authoriza-
tion agreement was ever signed. The Association’s
taxpayer identification number was also apparently
used for this account until 1988.

Reid’s explanation for attesting the purported
“corporate resolution” was essentially to blame Jarvie.
“When the things related to finances...the comptrol- -
ler would put those things together for me and, after
having reviewed them, bring them down to me for -
my 31gnature,  he said.

Ditmars Discovers the Change. Insurance Di-
rector Linda Ditmars testified that she first learned
about a change in investments in early January of
1986 when she received a copy of a financial state-
ment from Jarvie indicating that the Insurance Group
had made a number of new investments.

Ditmars testified, “I was rather concerned about
it...it was a major departure from what we had
done.” Ditmars described to the SCI three major

concemns that she had:

“Good Lord...whoever signed it did me a favor

by...not even spelling it [right}.”

In January 1986, an options account was author-

ized over Jarvie’s signature for all types of options

transactions. Again, Jarvie testified that she had no
knowledge of signing an options account form.
Although the stock index option trading did not
commence until June 1986, the new investments in
the fall of 1985 included $530,000 in an “Option

1. The Group’s Board of Trustees was not
aware of this action and had not approved
this change in our investment policy....

2. The investments were clearly prohibited
by our own investment policy [C-2].

3. The investments appeared to be prohib-
ited by the Insurance Group enablmg legis-
lation.

Ditmars said she also believed that “whether or
not the investments were or were not prohibited,
they were inherently risky in nature,” in contrast to
the Group’s marketing approach, which had always
stressed stability and conscrvanve mvcstments

Some of her other concerns were the “manner in
which a stockbroker was apparently chosen and that
was not bid out as we would normally do,” as well

as “how much control we would maintain...[and]
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whether we had a proper mixture of short-term/
long-term investments.” :

Ditmars wrote a memorandum to Jarvie on
January 19, 1986 [Exhibit C-6] indicating that Board
approval was needed under the Group’s bylaws (and
the statute) for a change in investment direction as
well as the employment of a stockbroker. Subse-
quent advance materials prepared for the upcoming
Trustees meeting on February 5, 1986 put these
items on the agenda. Ditmars also wrote to Reid
enclosing copies of the Machold memorandum and
the’ Investment Council regulauons {Exhibits C-7;
C-7A).

Ditmars also conducted her own informal in-

quiry at this time. She called Dean Witter Reynolds -

and “spoke with whoever answered the phone and 1
read off the list of these funds and just asked him,
could you tell me something about these,” She was
told that four of the investments were mutual funds,
another was covered call writing, which she under-

stood to be speculative in nature. “U.S. Equipment

Income Fund, he said no good. He didn’tknow who
I'was. He just said no good, don’tinvestin that.” A
commodities fund was evaluated as “very volatile.”
Ditmars also learned that for another fund, “half of
their holdings are in South Africa in gold futures,”
which raised concerns for Ditmars about legislation
requiring divestiture of investments in that country
to protest its apartheid policy. Three or four others
were “real estate partnerships, and he said they were
long-term investments, they were not liquid invest-
ments,” she said. :

Ditmars also called the Division of Investment
and spoke to Director Machold, who “told me

specifically mutual funds were not allowed by...any

type of public entity, because that was deemed tobe

an impermissible delegation of power because a

mutual fundmanagerwas reallymanagmg the funds
and not the investor.”

Q. Did you share any of the information you
had learned with any of your superiors?

A. With Ted or De, no I didn’t. I assumned
that they knew what they had invested in.
This was really for my own interests.

Ditmars concluded, “I was very, very concerned
about this whole matter and 1 think they knew 1

was.” As Ditmars told the SCI, the two million

doliars that had been transferred into the Dean
Witter account as of December 1985 came from
premium money paid by school districts. *“That was
our only source of funds,” she said. -

Reid testified that Ditmars expressed no con-
cems directly to him but conceded that he saw her
memo:

There was amemo that she sentme. I remem-
ber her sending me something and I remem-
ber shooting it back to either De or some-
body in legal or what have you and saymg,
what is the story here. -

0. Do you recall a concern that Ditmars
raised about any of the investments being in
possible canﬂzct with the state divestiture
law?
A.ldon't remember the speaﬁc content of
the memo. I remember Linda Ditmars send-
ing @ memo, raising some concern, which I
then referred o some of my staff 1o look into
* and tell me, is there something legitimate
here or not, is there somethmg to be con-
' cerned about

Q Did you receive any feedback Jfrom that

referral?
A.Yes, I had some feedback whxch said that
basically she was all wet.

Q. Do you recall. whethér that feedback
- camé from legal or from De Jarvie?
A. I don't specifically recall, no.

Reid was asked whether he had any concerns
about any of the issues raised by Dimmars:



- A. Well, having addressed those concerns
and having had those checked out with the
. State and having. them applied as being
. okay, no, there was no reason for me to have
« . another concern.

| By Commissioner Ba:ry H. Eﬁenchick: |

Q. Didyou ever convey to Linda Ditmars the

. results of your for Jarvie’s] checking with

«  thestate? Inshort,didyou ever say to Linda
% Ditmars, “Look,I checked this out and they
¥ tellmewe areokay,” or words to that effect?
" A.AslIrecall, whenl gave thistoDe, she did
the checking and then she spoke to Linda

about it, because she was the one that was

' dealing with the investments and she said,
“I'll ralk 1o her.”

- Q. So, the sequence roughly was that after
the exchange of memoranda you had De
Jarvie check with the state, she did so, re-

- ported 1o you that Linda Ditmars was all
.. wel, 1o use your expression, and then De
Jarvie at some point conveyed to Linda
. Ditmars the result of De Jarvie's checking
4 with the state?
+ . A.Yes, that's my recollection,.

- Reid recalled during his testimony having re-
viewed the Machold memorandum, which was at-
tached to Ditmars’s memo to him and said he
discussed the Machold memorandum with Jarvie,
telling her, “Find out from them what concerns we
ought to have, if any.” It was at that time that Jarvie
“made the phone calls to the state....” Now that I
recall this, I remember her saying something to the

effect of, their guidance is worth zip, because they }

_glvc very htde

Jarvie’s version differed substantially. Shé said
that her one and only contact with the state was long

before Druz was retained and that she never saw the

Machold memorandum until almost two ycars after
Druz had been retained. :

Ditmars Speaks to Donoher. Kathleen Donoher,
Insurance Group deputy treasurer, told the SCI how
Ditmars had shared her concems shortly before the
Trustees meeting of February 5, 1986:

...[S]he said that she had a lot of concerns
abour the new investment policy and I said,
“Well, I thinkyou ought to go speak to Ted.”
She said, “I have. I've spoken to Ted and
De.” AndI said, “I don’t know what else 10
tell you....” 1 remember Ditmars saying,
“They’ re making improper investmenis. These
investments we should not be § in for an insur-
ance group.”

- Donoher reported this conversation to Reid and
Jarvie separately before the same meeting:

I told De and Ted that Linda had serious

concerns about the investment policy and I

wasn't quite surel knew what was going on.

1 said, “But she was very upset about it.
- Perhaps somebody ought to talk to her again.”

Q. What was De Jarvie's response to you?
A. She said, “She doesn’t know what she's
talking about. Just forget iz."_ ,

'Q .What was Ted Reid's response to you?
A. 1 remember he was extremely upset with . -
Linda, very angry at her,.. think he said,

. “Do you know if she talked to anyone else

- about this,” andl said, "I don’tknow.” ..He
was extremely agitated...and he just kept
saying to me, “What else did she say? Whar
else did she say?”

The trustees meenng ong'mally scheduled for
January 15, 1986 was changed to February 5, 1986

because Reid had been in Paris on an Association
trip on the earlier date. No special meeting or -

conference call was held in the interim to seek the
trustees’ authorization for new investments.
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Reid testified:

- Whenl went to the Board of Trustees, 1 did it

because I wanted 10 advise them of what I

* was doing, not because I kad 1o seek their
" approval to do it.

- By Counsel Hoekje: -

"Q.Isn’tit true that the only reason youwent

1o the Insurance Group at thai time to let

i them know about the investments was be-

¢ cause Linda Ditmars found out abous them?
A. Absolutely not. Absolutely not.

Despite Reid’s assertion to the contrary, the
hiring of Druz and a change in investment policy
clearly required prior approval of the Group’s trus-
tees. Ditmars knew thxs and if Reid n'uly did not, he
should have

NEW POLICY ADOPTED

On February 5, 1986 the Board of Trustees, as
required by both the statute and the Insurance Group’s
by-laws, voted to approve a new investment policy,
which had begun four months earlier. In the ad-
vance materials prepared for the meeting, Reid told
the trustees that “market conditions™ had necessi-
tated a qulck change and that major revisions had
become necessary in the Group’s asset manage-
ment.

The Policy. The new pohcy submitted to the
trustecs rcad

- Investments

- The Administrator shall authorize the invest-
- ment of idle Group funds in a manner which
will provide for high yield returns while
continuing to adhere to the guidelines estab-
lished by NJ.S.A. 18A:18B-4B (“10 invest
monies held in trust under any funds in

investments which are approved for invest-
ment by regulation of the State Investment
Councll for surplus monies of the siate” ).

The new policy called for pursuing “high yield

- returns” while “continuing to adhere” to the guide-

lines of the State Investment Council Regulation,
two seemingly inconsistent goals. The emphasis on
security that was in the prior investment policy was
omitied. According to testimony before the SCI,
there was some discussion during the meeting of the -
“prudent man rule,” but curiously no record of this
discussion could be found in any minutes.

Exactly who wrote the new policy is still un-
clear. Again, all the principals denied responsibil-
ity. Dorothea Shinn, Group secretary at the time
who typed all the advance materials for the meeting,
recalled that she received a draft of the investment
policy on note book paper in Jarvie’s handwriting.
Jarvie could not remember if she wrote the new
policy. And she said she did not know how the term
“high yield returns” gotin the policy. Reid believed
the new policy was worked out among Druz, Jarvie
and the accounting firm of Arthur Young. Druz

" testified he had “absolutely no input” into the writ-

ing of the new investment policy.

Asked by SCI Counsel Hoekje to evaluate the
two policies, State Investment Director Machold

called them “radically different.” He noted in

particular that the first policy clearly cited as its

primary objective the security of investment funds,

whereas the second made no direct reference to

security. The first policy also clearly considered
liquidity requirements, the second made no refer-

ence at all to liquidity.

The Meeting. Four months after he had been
retained, Dan Druz was introduced to the trustees
for the first time at this February 5 meeting and
made a presentation. The advance materials did not
disclose that Druz had been retained four months
earlier or that Reid had a prior brokerage account .
with Druz.
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Trustee Eu_gene Bumns recalléd:

When the investment person, Dan Druz,

came 1o his first meeting, I remember him:

saying that he had investigated what invest-
ments that we could make, groups such as

~ were “the Group’s investments, not his.”

Different Minutes, Missing Tapes. Despite

| ma.ny rrustees’ recollection of adiscussion about the

the Insurance Group could make, and he

said they have 1o be very conservative, and
they have to be safe, and he had looked them
up. I remember him saying that he had
looked up everything at that time.

Q. Did you at that time have any concerns

about the new investmeni policy or direc-

tion? o

A.No, I did not. Ithought it was very good,
** because we had hired a person who was in

the investment field. We had an expert.

Q. What was it about Mr. Druz that 10 your
mind made him an expert?
" A. He worked for Dean Witter, and he was
_highly recommended by [Reid].

-Other trustees had similar recollections, espe-

cially regarding what was said about the safety and
security of the new investments.

Druz d:scribcd the meeting as “an open-ended
discussion” with “no specific focus.” He did not
recall an explicit discussion at the meeting about
who would make the investment decisions. “I be-

“prudent man” standard, the minutes of this meeting

reflect no mention of such a discussion or how this
standard — and not the statute — was supposed to -
apply to the Group’s new investment direction.
Dorothea Shinn, the Insurance Group secretary who
prepared the minutes of the meeting, testified thatin
reviewing the minutes they seemed “different....
They’re not what I put. They’re — they’re totally
different. They’re — they’re just not the way I did
them.” Shinn noted in particular that the phrase
“prudent man yule” was missing entirely from the -
official version of the minutes given to the SCI.

Shinn also testified that she had dated and filed
away all the tape recordings of the meetings for
which she took minutes. However, the tape of the
February 5, 1986 meeting was not among those that
were located at the Association building and turned
over to the SCI — after a lcngthy delay — during
this investigation. '

Harney Dissents. Trustee Robert Haméy, the

- only trustee with an insurance background, castthe - -

lieve the gcneral feeling was that it would be Tcd .

De and me.’ ”

Q. And where did that feeling come from?
A. Well, the questions were being asked of
Ted, De and me, so we seemed 10 be the
dec:szon makers

Auditor Jon McCormac from Arthur Young -
- who was present at the meeting recalled that “Dan
specifically said that he would not be responsible for

anything on his own, that anything he did would be
uldmately approved by the Group,” because these

sole dissenting vote at the meeting on the new .
investment policy. He testified:

My concern was that ] wanted to make sure

thatthe investmentpolicy andpracticeswere

 consistent with the practices expected of .
insurance companies.... I thought Mr. Druz
was perhaps oriented more towards a differ-
ent type of investment portfolio and purpose
than that of the Group, and [I] was assured .

. by Mr. Druz that Dean Winter did, indeed,
have expertise inmanaging investment port-
Jolios on_behalf of insurance companies.
And there was some nominal discussion on
that and | saw the arrangement being made
not so much with the individual but with the
firm.... He did I think refer 1o his Chicago
office’ s having some expertise or some expe-
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‘rience in investing on behalf of insurance
companies and that he would touch base
with them.

By Commissioner Evenchick:

Q. Was your negative vote cast at the meet-
- ing of February5,1986, withregard o the
- new investment procedure because you per-

ceived that new procedure as extending beyond

that which was permitted by the State Invest-

ment Policy Council?

A.No. It was because I perceived it as not

heading towards the very conservative ap-

proach that I’ m more used to with insurance -

companies.

Q. And I take it that that was, in essence,
what you expressed at the meeting prior to
" the lime that the vote was taken.

"' A.Yes. That's correct. And, indeed, subse-
quently Mr Druz did come back with a letter
saying he had checked with the investment

_ practices of some insyrance companies and

‘that they were all over the lot. I'm not sure

1 fully agreed with that, but that's what he
came back with.

" After the vote on the investment policy, Harney
subsequently moved to approve appointment of the
brokerage firm. He explained why:

.- Having lost on the investment policy, you try
to seek peace, and if you're going to imple-
~_ment a policy, once the vote is taken you sort
of fall within ranks as to where to make the
best of it. Dean Witter to me looked as good
as any other brokerage house and why not.

Harney also recalled:

My sense of the trustees was that [they] had
quite a bit of confidence in Mr. Reid and the
_ Staff. And 1 don’t recall very many — if any
— of his recommendations had been turned
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down. Some were altered, as you would
expect, but I had a lot of confidence in him.
I don’t think I'd describe the trustees as a
rubber stamp, no, but certainly greatly influ-
enced.

Linda Ditmars explained why she did not ex-
press her concerns about the new investments at the
meeting:

Because 1 felt so strongly that it was the
wrong thing to do, but that wasn’t the forum
to express those concerns, in my opinion.

The Investment “Regulation” Follows, Eight
months after Druz was retained and the Group had
already sunk more than $3 million into a portfolio
which included speculative and other investments,
new investment “regulations” were presented to the
Board of Trustees “for information only” on June 4,
1986. These regulations stated, in relevant part:

Long-term investments will be limited to
those acceptable under theprudentmanrule
{(as it applies to retirement accounts).... All
types of investments acceptable under the
prudent man rule must be approved by the
Administrator and the Treasurer of the In-
surance Group on a case-by-case basis.

Trustee Norman Field testified that he believed
the investment “regulation {filled] the gapsas o the
supervision that would be necessary 10 insure the
proper kinds of investments”.

Q. In what way were those gaps filled?

A. Primarily the fact that there would be
constant day-to-day supervision of the indi-
vidual investments and approval of the indi-
vidual investment items.

Field believed such day-to-day supervision would
indeed happen and that “case- by-case * meant every
specific transacnon



Despite the wording of the new regulation, both
Administrator Reid and Treasurer Jarvie testified
that they never gave their approval to any of the
Group s investments that followed.

- Again, as with the wording of the new invest-
ment policy, all the principals denied responsibility
for the language in the regulations. Reid did not
“specifically know” who wrote the regulation. Jarvie
said that Druz wrote the “regulation” because she
asked him to write it. Druz testified that an outline
of the investment policy regulations was sent to him
and he was asked to fill in some “terminology.”

HARNE YAND DITMARS ARE ELIMINATED

- The only two persons associated with the Insur-
ance Group who had raised any questions or con-
cerns about the new investment direction were Trustee
Robert Harney and Director of Insurance Linda
Ditmars, the Insurance Group’s only full-time staff
member. Both were soon no longer associated with
the Group. |

Harney’s term expired in the summer of 1986
and he was not reappointed by President Joseph
Zemaitis. Harney recalled, “I got a letter thanking
me. for my service for the last three years and it
ended.” Hamey, the director of risk management
for a large pharmaceutical company who had been

appointed as the trustee-at-large, was one of the

original trustees of the Insurance Group.

Appointing the Trustees is the prerogative of fhc '

~ NJSBA president. Zemaitis testified that he “was
- asked not to reappoint him.”

Q. Who asked you not to reappoint him?
A, Mrs. Jarwe and Mr Reld -

Q. What reasons did they g:ve you?
‘A.He was a pain.

Q. Did they say why they thought he was a

- not “my kind of language....
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pain? -
A.He was askmg a lot of questions about a
lot of things, disrupting meetings, causing
meetings to go on beyond whatever that time
ought to.be that meetings should go on
to...and thar generally his questions were
not relevant to the issues before them. He.
was guestioning, questioning, questioning,
and being a royal pain, and I was asked not
to reappoint him, and 1 didn’t.

Zemaitis continued, “I accepted their explana-
tions that he was disruptive to the process and was
not serving the Insurance Group in its best i mtcrests
or the Association.”

Trustec Eugene Burns rccalled anothcr conver-
sanon

De Jarvie had spoken to me on the phone
and said that he [Harney] was not going to
be reappointed because he was nor a team
player :

Jarvie did not explain what she meant and Burns
d.ld not ask.

Kathleen Donoher recalicd

IwasinDe’s oﬂice andl believe it was right
after that meeting [February 5,1986] andir

 may have been the next morning after the
meeting, and Ted came in and they were

~ saying, you know, about Bob Harney and
they were very annoyed and Ted said to De,
“Well, when is his term up,” and she said,
“His term is up this year,” and they said,
“Well, we'll be sure to appotm someone
else.”

Jarvie denied participation in Harney’s ouster,
saying she “never had part or parcel of those kinds
of decisions™ and that the phrase “team player” was
What 1 would have
said, he’s a pain in the -, that’s what I would have



said. A team player, I wouldn’t have said.”

Reid claimed he dldn t remember askmg Ze-
maitis not to reappoint Harney.

Q. Did you, after the meeting, express dis-
satisfaction to anyone about Bob Harney's
questioning at the meeting?

A. About his questioning at the meeting? I
don’t know. I don’t recall. It's possible.
There are periodically times where he or
anyone else may have gotten under my skin.

)
*

B

‘However, Reid recalled Hamney as “probably
the most active” at the February meeting, and char-
acterized his comments as “typical of Bob Harney.
Tt was always critical, questioning, analytical.”

* Linda Ditmars told the SCI about the circum-
stances surrounding her resignation as the fuIl-tlme
D1rcctor of Insurance Programs:

Bk

" Well,Iwas calledintoTed's officeonMarch

26th [1986], I thought just for a regular

meeting. 1 had a status report for himand a
couple of other things and he told me that 1
wasn't a team player, he couldn’t work with
me, and that I had impugned the integrity of
the Insurance Group management...during
that discussion he had said quote that I

would be expected to leave the following day

 and I would get my severance pay, et cet-
a.... 1left the office, Ted's office, rather
upset. A fewminutes later I received a memo
from Ted indicating that if he didn’t receive
my resignation within an hour or whatever,
‘that I would be terminated and the Associa-
tion employeeswould be told that I had been
terminated andl wouldn’t get any severance

pay.

Ditmars wrote out a one-line resignation and left
that day. Ditmars testified that she thought her
termination was unjusnﬁcd but maybe not com-
pletely unexpect

Q. In your opinion was your termination
related at all to your questioning of the new
investment policy?

A. Oh, I believe so, yes.

Reid testified, “I asked her to resign...because 1
thought she was incompetent.” He said he was also
concerned that she was “too cozy with Marsh &
McLennan,” the Insurance Group’s servicing com-
pany. Reid said he did not give Ditmars reasons for
her termination on advice of counsel.

Reid denied that his asking Ditmars to resign
was because of any criticism or concerns she had
raised about the Group’s new investments:

Itwas relatedto awhole series of things....[it
was] something that was bwldmg up for an
entire year.

Q. Did you, in a conversation with Dimmars
at the time that you asked her to submit her
resignation, tell her that you thoughr she
wasn’t a team pla yer?

A. I may very well have o

Reld tcsuﬁed

1 had planned on replacing her and...{Jarvie]
imploredme to allow her totry and do it, that
she felt that she could do it and things
appeared io be going very well and she felt
‘as though she could do the job and asked me
if I would allow her to contmue whlch 1
did."”

Reid testified there was “very little” increase in
his time commitment to the Group after Dltmars
left:

Basically what I was doing was attempting
to surround myself with some experts who
would provide the data that was needed and
my job would basically be just to coordinate
i
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NEW INVESTMENTS

The new investment policy set for the Insurance
Group was vague in its directive to follow the
guidelines of the statute, which noone understood in
any event. The regulations promulgated pursuant to
thit new policy used the prudent man standard
instead of the statute as its guideline, although the
Commission found no documentation in any Insur-
ance Group minutes explaining and authorizing the
adoption of the rule. In sending these “regulations”
to the trusteesin advance of the June 4 meeting, Reid
stated that they were for their “information only”
and did not require any formal action. Since there
was no formal adoption process, the regulations
were, in effect, promulgated and imposed by the
staff and Reid and not by the trustees.

'PI?OTECTING CLIENTS

*The Dean Witter Branch Manager’s Manual
obtained by the SClimposes a substantial obligation
on managers to protect investors by adhering to
certain procedures. Druz appears to have ignored
most of them. For instance, the manual directs
branch managers to examine accounts for evidence
of unsuitability, excess activity, possible trading
beyond the client’s resources or objectives, and
excessive speculative trading, The manual states
that “{t}he simplest method of detecting excessive
tradmg is turnover,” and notes that “[t}he fact that
the customer is aware of the transactions does not
relieve either the firm or the [Account Executive] of
their responsibilities.”

The DWR manual suggests that brokers send an
acnwty letter” to active accounts to alert the client
that active trading will incur substantial commis-
sions, which will affect the overall profitability of
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an account. Druz said he never sent such a letter to
the Insurance Group because “There was no reason
to... Well, the activity letter is something that’s
good, but it’s preferable if you have verbal contact
with the client and discuss it with him.”

Additional cautionary instructions are found in
other sections of the Branch Manager’s Manual
regarding supervision of options tradmg One sec:
tion notes:

Trading options products provides an inves-
tor with a wide range of lucrative opportuni-
ties while at the same time exposing him to
significant risk of loss and the firm to serious
penalties. Therefore, the proper supervision
‘of options accounts is crucial to the efficient
operation of a branch.

- The manual continues:

When an account is approved for option

“trading, it should be with the understanding .

that only a specific, limited amount of a
client's investment capital is to be risked in
options trading.

In a section regarding the supervision of op-
tions, the manual states that a branch manager
should always consider whether the client under-
stands the nature of the strategy and the risks in-
volved. Yet Druz himself maintained that the strat-
egy was too complicated for Jarvie to understand.

Also interesting is a list of different types of
accounts eligible for options trading on margin and/
or in cash only. Margin trading is not listed as
suitable for charitable organizations, custodial ac-



counts, scholarship/foundations, trusts, or banks as
custodian trustee. Yet Druz placed the Insurance
Group into margin trading. .

“REPORTS” OF THE INVESTMENT CONSULT-
ANT '

In direct contrastto DWR s stated philosophy of
keeping clients fully informed, the trustees received
quarterly reports from Druz that consisted of mere
one page narrative summaries of the portfolio’s
overall performance. Those reports spoke generally
of the overall return on the portfolio, using phrases

such as “weighted averages” and “annualized rate,”

but did not detail the specific investments. No

information was provided as to commissions earned .

~ by DWR and Druz or the volume of activity in the

account. Druz’s oral presentations were similarly

short and gencral

Once the trading in index options began, Jarvie
discontinued her own detailing of the investments in
her Treasurer’s Reports. Thereafter, her reports
merely stated the total amount in “long-term” in-
vestments. Significantly, no written report ever

-referred to the investments in stock index options,
which began in June 1986.

Over the 21 months that Druz was the Insurance
Group account executive, from October, 1985 to
June, 1987, he appeared at five meetings, including
the introductory meeting, to give oral reports. He

- also submitted three written reports, none of which

exceeded one page of narrative. Two of the three
reports were only two paragraphs long.. The min-
utes of the meetings contain no more detailed infor-
mation than the written reports.

Both written and oral reports to the trustees in
September and November of 1986, and in January
1987, emphasized that the Group was out of the
stock market, *‘sitting on the sidelines”and investing
exclusively in “safe” government bonds and/or

government securities. In fact, however, this osten-
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sible retreat from the stock market was contempora-
neous with the investment of millions of dollars in
stock index options literally betting on the short-
term performance of that vcry market.

To verify Druz’s tesnmony, the SCI sought
tapes of trustee meetings. Not all tapes of relevant
meetings were found, but those that were contradict
Druz’s adamant assertions that his oral reports to the
trustees were more detailed than his written reports
as well as his claim that the Group’s minutes sum-
marizing his reports were fabricated. The tapesalso
demonstrate that Druz lied to the trustees.

For instance, in October 1986, transactions in
stock index options amounted to approximately $1
million in purchases and $1 million in sales, yet this
activity was not disclosed to the trustees in Novem-
ber 1986. Druztold the trustees only that “...the vast
majority of our money {is] in treasury bonds... ”

The U.S. Treasury Bonds purchased in Septem-
ber and October 1986 had been sold as of December
31, 1986 (approximately $2.8 million). Yet Druz
told the trustees in the January 1987 meeting, "...we’ve
maintained our nearly 100% position in govennment
bonds in avoiding the stock markct with some very
minor exceptions...”

WHAT INVESTIGATION WAS CONDUCTED
BY DRUZ AND THE STAFF? :

This investigation has found no evidence that
Reid, as administrator of the Insurance Group, ever
sought any legal opinion as to what kinds of invest-
ments were appropriate for an organization of the
type he led. Instead, he relied on a perfunctory
inquiry by an unlearned De Jarvie and an even less
serious look by Dan Druz.

Druz, an attorney, testified that he never exam-
ined the statute to see what kind of investments the
Insurance Group was allowed to make, despite his



promi'se to the trustees that he would evaluate the
suitability of the investments. He said that his
“mandate from Ted, I guess to a lesser extent from
De, was to treat this, and these are exact words, as a
private insurance company. Treat the investments
as a private insurance company association.”

" Druzsaid that he sought input from several 6ther-

sources as to what would be permissible invest-

ments, such as the branch manager of the DWR
office in Vineland, who “handled some insurance
company type of accounts,” someone at Allstate
and, he said, “Imade acall to” New Jersey Manufac-
turers Insurance Company in the fall of 1985.

By Commissioner W. Hunt Dumont:

Q.Did you have any other private insurance:

company clients at the time?
A. No.

- Q. Did you have any other customers simi-
lar 1o this, meaning insurance groups for
non-profit orgamzanons 4
A. No.

Q. It was not a private insurance company,
though, you knew that did you not?
A.Yes.

Q. Why did you treat it the same?
A. Well, why did I treat it the same? I was
told that the investmenis that were to be

made, the guidelines that I should follow,

‘would be as if it were a private insurance
company.

Q. And who told You that, again, sir?
. A.Ted Reid...and more than once.

Q. And you did not do any independent in-

vestigation of your own with respect to whether

or not you should rely on his statement?
‘A.Yes, that's correct.
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Reid similarly testified that he did not investi-
gate at that time what was a permissible investment
for the Insurance Group, but that he directed Jarvie
to undertake such an investigation “somewhere around
the time we were considering it,” and that Jarvie
“indicated that everything was okay, as best I can
recall.”

She told me that she talked — as best I can
recall — she talked 10 somebody in the state
and some other people that she knew where
she was doing investing, I guess at the bank
or whatever, but I don’t remember specifi-
cally who she mentioned at the time.

Q. Didyou consult any of the trustees around
the time of the opening of the account at
Dean Witter as to what they considered to be
a permissible investment for the insurance
group? '
A.No....Itwas my assumption that whatever
the state required we would do and it was my
understanding and I felt. comfortable with
the fact that De had checked that out with the
~ state and whatever it was we were doing was
not disapproved by the state, so, therefore, -
there was no reason for me to believe that we
weredoing anything thatwas outside of state
mandates or dictates. '

Q. Dld you percezve that you had anyobliga-
tion to do your own independent investiga-
tion as to permissible invesements? -
A.Did [ feel I had an obligation to do that?

- No, I did not. If I went back and double-
checked everythi ngmysraﬁ’dtd I’d neverget
anything done. :

"0Q. Do you know whether at the ti_me that
Jarvie checked with the Division of Invest-

" ments whether she specifically had asked
them about investments in srock index ap-
tions?

A.No.]I can’tsay to you that she spec:ﬂcally
did. :



Q. Do you know if she at any time after the = said he discussed investments frequently with Reid
- Stock index options transactions beganwent  and Jarvie. :
to the Division of Investments and specifi-

cally asked them about those kinds of invest- By Commissioner Dumont:
ments? | | | | |
A. 1 can’t precisely say that. Q. Did you have any guidelines within Dean
| Witter as 10 how often you had to discuss
Jarvie’s effort consisted of a single telephone their client’s portfolio in terms of a non-
call to the State Investment Council which left her discretionary account? '
with the understanding that “under the prudent man A. Not in terms of daily or weekly or any-
rule, you can do anything you want.” She never did thing like that, no. The client had to be kept
any independent research of her own about the informed.
prudent man rule. She testified that she believed
Druz made all the contacts she thought were neces- Q. But the client did not have 1o approve
sary. : each and every trade?
o ' ' A. They had to approve the transactions....
Who Was Minding The Store? As branch All of these transactions were authorized. -
manager, Druz was known as a “producing man- Every specific individual trade was not
ager.” He had his own clientele, and was respon- specifically authorized before I made the
sible as well for supervising some 20 other account transaction. All transactions were reported
executives. Druz estimated his actual clients were  totheclient, general direction was discussed
about 60% of the 800 to 1000 accounts his office beforehand, no changes in direction were
held. He was also a registered options principal. made without their consent and frequent
: ' ' ' ' ‘discussions were held regarding the portfo-
Druz was the highest ranking person in the Dean lio. o
Witter Reynolds Princeton office. For most of the ' _
‘time, his direct superior was a regional director in Q. Well, I'm still unclear as to how much
the New York office. The compliance officer for contactyou had with the client in connection
the branch was also located in the New York office. with stock index options in this account.
B ' A. Significant, but not daily, except o the -
- By Commissioner Dumont: . extent that they received a confirmation.
Q. And in connection with compliance, I ~~ Druzexplained, “I talked in general terms about

take it your responsibility as the lead person  increasing or decreasing positions based on what-
in the office was to make sure that the ever it was that Dean Witter was saying.”
brokers complied with the rules and regula- :

~tions as put forth by the exchange and other By Commissioner Dumont:
applicable laws, is that correct? _ N _
A.Yes, sir. Q. What was your obligation 1o check with
' them with respect to authorization in con-
In his testimony, Druz said, “I brought ideas to " nection with a particular trade? '
the [Insurance] Group, discussed with them, and A. I didn’t have to check with them for a
they showed us what they wanted or didn’t want to specific trade, _
do.” He admitted, though, that he could “never
really recall any trustee giving strong input.” Buthe Q. When did you have to check with them?
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A, Periodically.

Q. What were your guidelines with respect

to checking with them?

A. We didn't establish specific guzdelmes
¢ but we 1alked more frequently sometimes,
fess frequently durmg other times.

Q. Well, in this connection, what was Your
understanding of a non-discretionary ac-
" count, as far as your relationship with your
client and how often you had to check with
them?
A.Ithink to keep them informed about what
strategies I would be wtilizing, what the
reason for these strategies was, and not to
enter into a change of direction in strategy
without dlscussmg with them first.

Q. Well, let me see if I undersiand this. If

you decided mutually with them to get into
- stock index options, how frequently did you

have to check with them on that particular
~ direction?

A.Tharwas not established. But, in fact, we

talked frequently.

- By Counsel Hoekje:

Q. With whom did you have the most contact
on this account? '

' A.Well, initially Ted and then for sometime
De, and then beginning in '87 when the
losses began 1o incur, my talks with De
‘began 1w decrease and my talks with Ted
began to increase. I saw him a few times.

" The new investment regulations required the
Insurance Group adminisirator and treasurer to
approve investment transactions. With thisinmind,

Reid was asked by Counsel Hoekje to respond to the -

trustees’ impression that it would be he, and not
Jarvie, who would actually oversee and monitor the
investments. He testified:

If you want to suggest that someone claims
‘they had the impression that I was doing a
day-to-day watching and monitoring every
single investment, that is simply not true.
What would be the purpose of my having a
treasurer and depury treasurer if ] was gomg
to do the work for them?

‘Reid continued:

- I couldn’t tell you from looking at those

names [referring to a list of initial invest-
ments] what they are or what categories they

- fallinto. But, at that point I never looked at

it. There was no reason forme to. There was
no issue. There was no question. I mean, the
investments were something that were being

takencare of betweenDanandDe and, inmy

opinion, and based on the information I was
being given, those investments are doing
well. I had no reason to concern myself with
which fell into what category.

Reid described his role in overseeing the invest-

O.Didyou see yourself as having any duty to
do any independent verification of what was
happening with the account?

" A.Isawthe independent verification of what

was happening in the account as a responsi-
bility that was being assumed and carried
out by our auditors, Arthur Young.

' Q. Andwhat role did you expect the auditors

to play with respect to the investments?
A.Well, to me they were the money manage- . -
ment experts inthe sense of the accounting of
such with respect 1o propriety of such.... 1
could feel comfortable that if everything

satisfied them, thar it had met all of the

necessary standards Jor the management of
that money.

- Q.Your expectation as to the auditors’ role,



did you communicate thar expectation to
any of the auditors at any time?
" A. I communicated that 10 De and she, in
- turn, communicated that to the auditors.

Reid could not say, however, whether any of the
engagement letters with Arthur Young specifically
detailed that firm’s role with respect to investments.
Arthur Young partner Edward Cupoli disputed Reid’s
assertion, testifying that he was not aware that the
Insurance Group ever asked Arthur Young for its
input into the new investment policy.

- Reid continued:

~ Q. Now, you have spoken about your expec-
~ 1ations with respect to the auditors and your
expectations with respect to the treasurer
and the deputy treasurer. Did you see your-
~ self as administrator having any role with
respect to the investments that you couldn’t
delegate to another party?
A. Again, I'm not sure specifically what
you're looking for here. I saw my role as
basically overseeing the broad-based policy
overview and that was 1o have our money
placed somewhere where we were going to
‘get growth.

Reld testified that he “looked at everythmg
before it went to the trustees.”

- By Commissioner Dumont:

Q. Andas| further recall you never looked at
confirmations or monthly statements. Is that
correct? '

A.That's correct.

Q. But as far as youindependently looking at
any type of financial statement which gave a
breakdown of the portfolio, the amount in-
vested and the nature of the return, you
didn’t have anything like that?

A.No, Idid not.

Although the “investment regulation” specifi-
cally required the approval of all investments by
“the administrator and the treasurer,” Reid testified,
“I don’t recall ever specifically approving invest-
ments in stock options. I don’t recall specifically
approving any specific investments on'a case-by-
case basis.”

Q. Did you have any practice or procedure
Jor monitoring Dan Druz’s acuvuy on the
account?

A.Yes. I delegated that responsibility to the
treasurer and deputy treasurer and that was
also in conjunction with the auditors.

Reid testified:

..we had a Status of Investment Report
which our investment advisor gave to us ar
each of the meetings, and he was in day-to-
day contact with the treasurer and also with
the vice-treasurer, and I relied upon the
expertise of the two of them to review those
and report to me if there were any con-
cerns.... Basically the investments were
done by De Jarvie. She took care of makmg
investments,

Jarvie worked at the Association for almost 15
years, beginning as a bookkeeper and leaving in
1988 as comptroller. She was comptroller for
approximately four years and reported to the execu-
tive director. Her final salary as comptroller was
$64,000. Jarvie described her background to the
SCL: “I have a G.E.D. for high school, Itook the
equivalency tests, and went through about two years
of college on a couple of Saturday mornings.” She
testified that she never had any courses in account-
ing or bookkeeping, but knowledge of bookkeeping
based on “30 some years of working.”

Q. Is it fair 1o say that you've essentially
learned what you know Jrom workmg on
the job?

A.Yes.
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She described her comptroller duties as “head-
ing all of the Association’s financial areas, plus
overseeing the internal organization.” When the
Director of Insurance Programs, Linda Ditmars,
~ left, Jarvie testified, she also “took over all of the
duties running the Insurance Group.”

. Jarvie summarized her prior investment experi-
ence as handling very few types of investments —
zero coupon bonds, certificates of deposit, some
stocks through a bank. She and her husband had a
brokerage account at Druz’s prior firm, Merrill
Lynch, and she subsequently opened two accounts
with Druz at Dean Witter.

Jarvie testified:

I wanted to learn what kinds of things we
were allowed to get into. 1 trusted [Druz]
completely and I thought he had the kind of
mind and the kind of background to be able

. to do what I needed. I couldn’t do it...that's
whywe were hiring himtodoit. AndI trusted
that he would do it well.... As I said,Ididn’t
know about investments. The few that we
have are very safe ones, personally I'mtalk-
ing now. - _ -

0.Did Dan Druz ask you around this time

what your investment experience had been?
A.Well, Dan Druz was quite aware that I felt

* thatl didn’t know anything about the invest-
menis through brokerages, and he promised

that when he got done teaching me, inside of

. ayear, I would know as much about invest-
& ments of stocks and the stock market end of

it as I did about CD’s and those kmds of

Ihmgs
- J arvie 'testified:

Q.Did Druz teach you about investments?
ANot really.

DWR installed a computer in Jarvie’s office so

she could track the investments.

It never worked. He sent somebody there
‘twice to reprogram it.... I never could use it.

Q. Do you believe that you gave the impres-
sion to Dan Druz that you understood what
" he was talking about?
A.No.

Q. Why do you say that?
A. Why do I say that? Because ir’'s true. 1
- never said I understood him. I never said I
understood the market. He was well aware
of that. I said it to him and I said it to Ted on
several occasions. And I never gave any-
body the false impression that I knew what
the hell was going on.

J arvie testifie_d that she received from Marsh and
McLennan at several times in the year a guide as to
the amounts of money needed for outstanding claims,
long-term, short-term, and that based on these pro-
jections, she was able to decide how much money
could be invested. The money representing long- .
term needs went to Dean Witter. -

Jarvie testified about her initial understanding

“of who would make the investment decisions:

Inmy mind I thought that  would be making -
the decisions or Ted would be making the
decisions, with input from Dan Druz, and
that 1 was quite surprised thatr ir wasn't
happening that way. Inmy mind, for myself,
1 located what was going on by the fact that
1 did not understand stocks and I thought
that perhaps it was being done this way
because these were very safe. '

She testified that she spoke to Reid about her -
feelings:

And I would say that I was feeling shaky
" about that whole thing because I didn’t feel



I had control over Mr. Druyz.

Q. Do you recall what kind of response Mr.
Reid made toyou?
A, Mostly he would say that he knew Dan
and he knew Dan was okay and Dan would
‘— Dan knew the business and I was not
supposed to kind of really be worried about
~it. That was the kind of answer I would get.

WHY INVEST IN STOCK INDEX OPTIONS?

~Investment in stock index options began con-
currently with the presentation to the trustees of the
“investment regulation” on June 4, 1986. These
" transactions accounted for by far the greatest vol-
ume in activity in the account for the next year. In
June, the first month of trading, there were more
than 150 separate trades on 15 different days. Inthe
neéxt month, index options trades occurred on 18
different days and accounted for more than $680,000
in purchases and $580,000 in sales. '

.Alt'hough the “regulation” called for approval

by the Group’s administrator and treasurer of all
types of investments “acceptable under the prudent
man rule,” both the administrator [Reid] and the
treasurer [Jarvie] testified before the SCI that they
never gave their approval to these voluminous trans-
actions. '

. “Mendelson’s Song.” Inexplaining to the SCI
why he began investing Group funds in stock index
options, Druz cited the market predictions of a
DWR vice-president and market analyst named

John Mendelson, a strategy that Jarvie referred toin

her testimony as “Mendelson’s Song.”
Druz testified:

Dean Witter had a fellow named John Men-
delson who was considered the market ana-
lyst of that period on Wall Street, the best
known, the most accurate, had a record that
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went back to calling the beginning of the bull
market in ' 82, he called the different wrns,
the bonds going down at one point, over-the-
counter stocks at another. He was consid-
eredWall Street’ s chief guruduring the early
and middle stages of the market rise. In the
second quarter of 1986, Mendelson began to
get bearish on the stock market. He was
~ saying that the market had reached a peak
" culminating in a pronouncement in July of
*86 where he said the market is going to drop
off precipitously. Dean Witter, in conjunc-
tion with these predictions by Mendelson,
recommended to its brokers that we begin to
consider the use of derivative investiment
vehicles; that is, options futures, in order to
provide our portfolios with some downward
hedge in the event that Mendelson proved to
be correct. So one of the ways they recom-
mendedtrying to hedge larger portfolioswas
through the use of stock index options. So in
May or June or whatever it was that Mendel-
son began to clearly show that he was less
optimistic about the future market, we began
this program with the Insurance Group.

Druz testified that he suggested to Reid, Jarvie
and Donoher that he begin this program for these
reasons. He considered such investmentsin keeping -
with the objectives of the Insurance Group because -
“the benefits that we hoped to derive from the use of
the various stock index options strategies were
additional cash flow and had a hedge against poten-
tial precipitous downturn in the stock and bond
markets.” He noted, however, “We didn’t really
discuss the options as a separate investment.”

Druz also said that Reid “early on” expressed
concern to him about the volume of trading. Jarvie
and Donoher also “made some comments about it.”
Druz testified how he answered Reid’s concerns:

. The same way I had explained it to him to
begin with. Options have a limited life as
investment vehicles. And if you're going to



have a continuing options program of any
sort, there's going to be more activity be-
cause stock lasts in perpetuity, where an
option has a definite end. If you want to put
it in a new one, that’'s another transaction.

" The Reevaluation “Strategy.”” Asked whether
there were risks associated with the use of the stock
index options, Druz responded that “at any time the
losses incurred from the option position of the
portfolio were more than, well, were in the area of
5 or 15 percent, that we would re-evaluate and
dlscontmue at th1s time, if we so decided.”

Q. When you use the figure 5 to 15 percent,
how was that going to be measured?
A. As a percentage of the entire portfolio.

Q. For what time period?

A. I don’t think that was specifically de-
cided. I think it was just if we reached that
point, in any time frame, we would reevalu-
ate.

Q. Was there any dollar amount placed on
Your projections?
~A.No.

Q. How would the loss be determmed 5 to
15 percent decline?

A.ldon’tmeanto give you aflip answer, but
add up the losses and you add up the value of
the portfolio.

Q. At what time?

A. At any particular time.

- Q. And from whom was the information to
come that the portfolio had declined?
A. Well, I spent some time with Mrs. Jarvie

"at the beginning of the option [activity]
reviewing her statements with her so thatshe

could understand them. So it could have
~ come from either of us. We both knew, more
or less, where the portfolio was most of the

time.

Q. And how did you know that?

A. I had my computer, which gave me an
evaluation on a daily basis. She had her
statements which gave her evaluations ona
monthly basis. And there was some commu-
nication over the months.

Druz testified that he had a “working number I
knew had been invested” and that it was the decline
in the “working number” that he would look at.

Q. And this was the approach that you worked

ourwith the Insurance Group staff thatwould

be taken at the time that you began the

investments and index options? ' '
A.Ididn’t really work it out as an approach.

We just said, ifit gets to be alossinthat area, -

we’ Il talk about it.

“Hedging” the Group’s Investments. Druz’
testified that he did not consider the investments in".
stock index options speculative, an opinion not
shared by Investment Council Director Machold.
Druz said he considered them “hedges against a
predicted downturn and a means by which we could
improve income to the portfolioif the market stayed . -
more or less in a trading range.” He did not mention
the losses that could result from an unpredicted
upswing in the market. The DWR manual summa- -
rizes options strategies and pairs the strategy of
“spreading” (“moderate risk/moderate reward”) with
the investment objective of “speculation.” Only
three strategies are paired with the investment ob-
jective of “investment hedge”, and all three involve
either purchase or ownership of the underlying
security, a practice followed by the State Investment
Council. According to DWR’s own description,
therefore, Druz’s “spread” strategy is nota “hedge
at all, but rather a speculation.

“The Strategies Were Mine”, Druz was asked:

Q. Who made the actual daily decisions on.
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the transactions in the stock index options?

A, The strategies were mine.

Q. Whose decisions were the daily trades?
A. I made the recommendations, they ap-
proved them.

0. Did you, before each trade every day, call
up -- anyone at the Insurance Group?
A. No, not before each individual trade.

Q. Was that true generally withrespect to the
~index options?
A.Yes.

Q. Did you receive an understanding of any

approval that was given about the trades that

you did?
A. Absolutely.
Q. In what way was that approval given?
A. Verbally.... We being me, Ted, De and
Kathy [Donoher], weekly, monthly, what-
--ever, discussed what was going on with the
.portfolio, discussed where Dean Witter
thought the market might go, discussed the
options transactions. It was verbal.

" "Druz specifically remembered calls from Reid
to ask him about the options strategy:

There were calls dt the beginning of the
options strategy, which would put us in

- summer-and fall of 1986. And then again,

. say, starting February through May and
June (1987).

. The Sophistication Issue. Druz testified that
he considered Reid to be a sophisticated investor
and that he believed Reid had sufficient experience
to be able to evaluate transactions in the account.

Q. At the time that you recommended that |

‘the Group begin the trading of the index
options, did you consider that De Jarvie had
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sufficient experience to be able to under-
stand what you recommended? '
A. Yes and no. I explained it to her, she
understood what I was talking about. She
made some options transactions of a differ-
ent nature than the ones that the insurance
group did. :

Q. She made one transaction?
A.Yes, it may be.

Q. Did anyone from Dean Witter ever ex-
press any concern to you about this trading ?

* A.Notwhile it was making money, but when
it started 10 lose money, yes.

Druz said no one from his home office ques-
tioned the propriety or appropriateness of the in-
vestments when the index options trading began.
But he said his superior “certainly expressed his
concern” when the account began to lose money.

REID CLAIMED NINE MONTHS’ LACK OF
KNOWLEDGE .

Reid testified at the SCI that he did not partici-
pate in a decision to invest in stock index options,
and that he did not participate in any strategy-
planning sessions relating to the .investments in
stock index options in the summer of 1986 or
thereafter until around the late spring of 1987. This -
testimony directly contradicts that of Druz, who
said he, Reid and others discussed strategy when the
options trading began in June, 1986. Reid testified
that he learned that the Insurance Group was invest-
ing in stock index options *“primarily through the
information provided by De Jarvie and it would
have been sometime— I can’t nail down the precise
time — it would have been in late spring of *87.”

Q. Prior 1o late spring of ‘87 you had no
knowledge of the Insurance Group invest-
ments — s '
A. Not really.



Q. — in stock index options?
A. Not really.

- Q.When you say “not really,” are you

- qualifving your knowledge in some way?
A.I'm only saying that I can’t specifically
recall having discussed any of the particular
investment vehicles or having paid particu-
lar artention to one over the other and ac-
knowledging that they may have been in
some document that passed before me but

" that I didr’ t specifically examine. '

&

Q. Did anyone at any time around the sum-

mer of 1986 ever bring to your attention
~ investments in index options?

A, Summer of '867 No, Idon’t think so.

- Q.Youfirst learned about the index opaons
in the late spring of '87?
'A. Somewhere around there, yes.

Q. Did Mrs. Jarvie at any time during the
summer of 1986 or the fall of 1986 bring to
your attention the investments in the stock
index options?

A.ldon'tspecifically rememberany conver--

" sation about it.
Reid d_id not believe that Druz told anyone,
including the trustees, what he was doing with those
investments until the “time when De first raised the

concerns with me” in March or April 1987. Reid
said he remembered a discussion about the hedge

strategy “and it seems to me to the best of my
memory. that that was around the spring or late
winter or whatever of *87":

“By Commissioner Dumont;

Q. In connection with this hedging strategy,
" what was your understanding.as to where the

~ Investments were?
. A.Well, at the time when he talked about this
hedging strategy I believe is where he talked
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about the use of oprions —

Q.Andwhenwas this? Canyouput atime on
this?

A. I know that there was a discussion like
that around March or April {1987]. There
may have been one prior o that, but I'd
really have to guess at it.

- Q.Butletme ask youthis: Atleast at the time .

you learned that there was going to be a
hedging straregy employed, at that point you
also knew that stock index options would be
used. Aml correct?

A.You'd have io leave out the word “index”

because as I recall in my discussions, it was
stock options...the business about index

. options and really the distinctions really

didn’t become clear until July of '87 when
the whole discussion about all of this took

' place and broke out.

Q. Well, when you ﬁrst learned abour this

~ hedging strategydidyou ask questions about

it to ascertain what it was and where the
investments would be?

A.Yes, yes.

| Q. And who did you ask these questions of )

and what did you learn? _
A. When I asked those questions, I asked
them of Dan and he gave me a very lengthy

- explanation that involved this gentleman
- Mendelson who was the Dean Wirter guru.

He went through an extended discussion
about Mendelson...suggesting that this man
was the one that Wall Street had followedfor
years and had been incredibly correct and
that he was predicting a major downturn in

" themarket...and that what he was doingwas - -

attempting to protect the Insurance Group
portfolio against any major turn-around in
the market while ar the same time trying to

.get us g good steady growth to build the

Sfunds....



Q. And in connection with laying out what

the strategy was did he indicate somewhere

. along the way that he would be employing
- stock options as the invesiment vehicle?

- A. Ibelieve that's correct, yes, he did. AsI

said at some limitedpercentage of something
like 5 percent I recall — 3 1o 5 percent or
something along that line of the portfolio.

. Q.But loss parameters or suchthatyouwere
 asked earlier was not discussed at least dur-
_ing that conversation?
A.No. I mean, I don’t remember the loss
~ parameters per se other than that in doing
. - Some options that, you know, you may lose a
lintle and gain a little but basically what
-you're doing — in fact, I think that was one
of the words as I recall now — that this was
. -a form of insurance to guarantee that you
. wouldn’t suffer any major losses in the port-
folio.

Jarvie Got No Help. Jarvie’s testimony at the

SCI on this issue, as on others, differed markedly

from Reid’s. She said that she had concerns about
‘the options investments from the time that they
began in June, 1986, and that she communicated
those concerns over the time period that the account
was in Druz’s hands. She said she communicated
her concerns to the auditors and to Reid.

Jarvie testified about a conversation with Reid:

I remember one specific time going in early
on with copies of the confirmations for a
particular month, and they were — there
were, in my estimation, a large amount of
~ confirmations. I was totally amazed at this

amount of work, and transactions, and I

went in and I remember having a conversa-
tionabout it,and even bringing copies—the

' confirmations with me. 1 remember that

early. I can’t remember whether it was
- August or September, but I believe it was
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around that time.

Jarvie did not recall ever using the particular
phrase “index options” or “stock index options”
“because I really didn't know that that’s what they
were, but they were there,you know, the confirma-
tions were there.”

Jarvie testified that she first learned about the
trades in stock index options through confirmations
and that she did not know about the trades before
they commenced:

I called Dan Druz and said, “what the hell
‘are you doing?” That was my reaction.
 “What s going on and what are these things.”
- And 1 said, they don’t look anything like the
other things I was getting and what's going
on.

Jarvie recalled Druz’s response:

Oh, he had quite a, you know, a long-winded

* explanation, and this was — I can’t verba-
tim tell you what he said, but it was like by
the time you got done you were saymg okay,
ﬁne, it sounds good '

Jarvie recalled from that time a “series of meet-
ings” involving Druz, the auditors, and herself
“because of these options.” She did not recall if
Reid was involved in any of these meetings, only
that “normally, if  had a meeting of that nature with
someone, I would generally let Ted know.” She said
Donoher ““could have been” involved in these meet-

ings.

Jarvie did, howcver, rdcall a meeting with Druz
in which he explained his strategy for these invest-
ments: o '

He explained that it was only a small per-
centage of the portfolio and that it was ex-
plained in the proposal that a portion of the

- moneys would be done in hedging, and this



was a hedging strategy, ves.... 1 was told
over and over again by Dan that this was

hedging, that this was in the proposal, not to

worry, and I didn’t understand it. And he
- would give me this explanation, but I really

didn’t understand it, and to this day I don’t.

*Jarvie testified that she showed confirmation
slips to Reid “on several occasions.” ‘She wanted

someone besides Druz and the auditors to see how

many there were:

I satd, youknow, “ldon’tthink thisis right.”
There just seems to be too many pieces
here. Thar bothered me, and 1 know I

~ showedthem to himonseveral occas:ons for
that specific reason. :

Asked whether Druz ever discussed any risks
attendant to the index options, Jarvie responded:

Dan Druz used to talk about the big picture

~ alot and that's where he was coming from.
In other words, he — his explanation was
that you had your money in all these differ-
entlittle things and if this one went down and
this one went up in the big picture you were
still making 20 percent or whatever and you
were still doing very well.

Jarvie testified that she first heard what she
called the “Mendelson song” in February of 1987.

She contradicted Druz’s testimony that he spoke to

her about setting a loss limit or parameters on
trading from the index options and denied that she
ever agreed to a “strategy” to review the options
trading if the total portfolio value dropped a certain
percentage. She did concede that Druz explained to
her“‘on several occasions™ whathe meant by ahedge

but claimed that she did not understand what he

meant:

We had several conversations and specifi-
cally, as 1 said, it's hard to be specific about
a conversation with Dan. He would leave
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you feeling relieved and comforiable, but
you were never exactly sure why.

Jarvie’s position was that she spoke to the audi-
tors, to Druz, and to Ted Reid about the index option
trading and her concerns that 1t de not seem right:

1 was on the phone with the auditors all the
time saying, “Are you sure this is okay? 1
don’t think this is right, I don’t think we
should be doing that.” Iwas on the phone
withDanDruz. I talked to Ted Reid aboutit.
1 didn’t know who else to talk to about it.
Nobody seemed to say (indicating) send
them to the lions. I mean, I was expecting -
somebody that knew a little bit more about
these things. I never lied. I always said 1
didn’ tunderstand it, butl hadpeople around.

me that had the education and the expertise,

andl expectedthem o heIp meorto help Ted
Reid.

Jarvie’s records of the Group’s investments were
recorded on ledger pages “kept in a marila folder in’
her desk drawer.” She also kept the transaction
statements and confirmation slips in this drawer.

Jarvie testified that she tried to keep records on’
the stock index options and “just couldn’tdoit” any
further. She testified about a conversation w1th
Druz in the summer of 1986:

Around August, July when all these confir-
- mations werecoming in, I was trying to fig-
ure them out...and [Druz] said, “there’ s no
way that you couldfigure thatout. You don't
even understand how to read those things.”

In November 1986, Druz, Jarvie and Arthur
Young auditor David Williams met to discuss “better
bookkeeping for the options trades.” Jarvie had
asked Williams to attend “for further backup” on
this. As a result of this meeting, Druz promised to
send Jarvie “a prompt delivery of a monthly state-
ment of options trades, which would indicate the



realized gains or losses on each close of trade.”
These statements stopped arriving in early 1987,
Jjust at the time the losses began to mount.

DONOHER’S ROLE

Kathleen Donoher testified that Reid and Jarvie
began to include her in discussions about the Insur-
ance Group around January 1987.

Q. Were you aware during the summer and
the fall of 1986 of a general strategy on the
part of the Insurance Group to invest in
index options?

A. No.

Q. Did you ever participate in any strategy
discussions with Mr. Druz?
A. No, never. '

Donoher recalled around February of 1987 see-

ing in Jarvie’s office “this stack of papers, these
square little papers...and I said, “what’s that,” and

she just took them and she just put them away.” On

another occasion in March'1987, Donoher observed

‘several of these papers more closely on Jarvie’s
desk:

= Isaid, “What do you mean, these are index
, options?” I said, “Look at the commission
on this amount of money,” because it said

righton the slip the commission amount, and

she just, you know, said, “Oh, these are just

the confirmation slips I get from the invest-

menis,” and she put them away in her desk

drawer, but that’s the only two times I ever
recall seeing that...

Donoher testified:
I remember distinctly...the commissions listed

on them...and I said, “Jeez, that's a lot of
money, you know, to be making,” and I
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startedrealizing, “Jeez, DanDruz is making
a lot of money on these.” It was around
this time, according to Donoher, that she
first realized anything significant abour the
Group’s investments. '

ARTHUR YOUNG

The auditing firm of Arthur Young believed it .
had a responsibility to determine whether the Group’s
investments comported with its own policies but
saw no responsibility to evaluate those underlying
policies, Nor did the firm believe it was responsible
for determining the legality of the Group’s policies
under the insurance group statute.

Arthur Young partner Edward Cupoli was asked
by the SCI:

0. Did you examine whether the Insurance
Group’s policy adhered to the provisions of
the statute with respect to the investments?
A. I would assume that their legal counsel
would have done that.

Q. Did Arthur Young undertake any inde-
pendent investigation? _
A. No.... The Board of Trustees approved
the policy. That's their policy. All we were
doing was determining whether they were
following their policy or not.

Cupoli added that he knew of no auditing prin-
ciple or standard that required his firm to make such
a legal determination.

Arthur Young was concerned, however, about
the investments in limited partnerships, which it
viewed as long term and illiquid, a condition that
might limit the availability of funds in the event the
Insurance Group had to pay a major claim. The firm
also questioned why an organization like the Group,
which was tax exempt, felt the need toinvest in what
was basically a tax shelter.



Druz had explained, however, that since only a
small percentage of the Group’s portfolio was in
such investments, it was simply a way to further

diversify.

" As for stock index options, Arthur Young felt
that since these investments again were a small
percentage of the portfolio as of June 30, 1986, and
they were hedged, there was no problem. Of course,
Driz introduced naked options into the portfolio
early in 1987, which were even more speculative
than hedged options. '



THE LOSSES SNOWBALL

- By late spring of 1987, it was clear that contrary
to Dean Wiltter’s expectations the market had taken
a strong upturn. Investors in stock index options
who had, in effect, gambled on a market downturn
were suffering a setback. Druz, Jarvie, Donoherand
even the auditors admitted they knew then that the
Insurance Group’s major speculative investments
were in trouble. Only Reid said he didn’t know.
Jarvie had calculated those losses at more than a
million dollars and all because they were in risky
investments at the wrong time. How did it happen?

. Reid told the SCI he first learned the Insurance
Group had invested in stock index options nine
months after that trading began —after options
worth nearly $13 million dollars had been traded.
'And he said he didn’t tell the Group’s trustees of the
losses — more than $1 million at one time —
because he didn’t yet have accurate figures. Both
- propositions defy belief and both were com:rovcrted
by othcr testimony.

All the trustees apparently first focused on the
term “stock index options” in August, 1987, in
connection with the news of the Insurance Group
" investment losses. But the 1985-86 audit, com-
pleted by Arthur Young and presented to the trus-
tees in January of 1987 in retrospect became a red
flag.

Several of the trustees described what meaning,
if any, these terms had forthemin} anuary. Carolyn
Smith, for instance, testified:

- 0. Didyou have an awareness of the kind of

investments that the group was involved in?

- A. Prior to June 30, 1987, I personally did
not, although in reviewing the audit, I dis-
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covered that there was mention of stock
market option indices. Not knowing until
September of 1987 exactly what that was, it
was something that was meaningless to me.

Jarvie testified that in February, 1987, she be-
came concerned because she was not getting the
promised transaction reports from Dan Druz:

I called him and asked him...why he wasn’t
talking to me, what was going on.... And
thar's when he gave me the first inclination
thatthere [were] problems inthe marketand
he was staying up nights over itandI wasn’t
to worry about it. :

And he said, this business...about Mendelson
and the guru and the Wall Street and—he’s
staying up nights and I shouldn’t stay up
nights. And he was on top of everything and
not to worry. '

Jarvie said this was the first time she had ever
heard about Mendelson and she reported the conver-
sation and her concerns to Reld who said he would
speak to Druz. :

Druzexplained his strategy for the SCI. He said
DWR followed a recommendation in December,
1986, by Mendelson, who had “stepped up his
bearish predictions to a point of near panic” and
“that we were doing our clients a great disservice by
recommending equities at all or anything other than
the most secure.” He testified that before the Janu-
ary, 1987, trustees meeting he had gone toReid “and
told him that I wanted to take some steps to ensure
against the greater downturn and wanted to change



the strategy a little bit by introducing some naked
options, which would have given us more downside
protection than the spreads.” He said Reid’s reac-
tion was, “Do it.” Druz acknowledged, however,

that the change to naked options would make it more-

difficult to control any loss.

Druz was asked about the losses that occurred,
once the market took an unexpected turn:

Q. At what point did you notice that [the ac-
count] started to lose money?

A. Well, in January, our profits were wiped
out very quickly.. In February, we began 1o
lose money. In March, we lost more.

Q. And was it at this time that you began to
have greater contact with Mr. Reid?
A.Yes. Ithink I saw him personally once or
twice,

According to Reid, it was in the March tele-
phone conversation — nine months after the trading
began — that he first learned of the Group’s invest-
ments in stock index options. Reid testified that he
asked Druz in this phone call about losses and that
Druz said:

...Something to the effect of we’re only talk-
ing about stuff on paper now, that there are
no realized losses. He basically said to me,

+ “You have nothing to worry about. The
Jfund’s in good shape.” ... But at the conclu-
sion of that conversation he assured me that
everything was fine and I had absolutely
nothing to worry about.

The numbers I seem to recall around tha_t
time were around 100,000 to 200,000, which

~-hesaidwere of profits that we had made that

were substantially greater than that and that
these were really paper losses at this point
that were not of any concern...the stock market
goes up and goes down, and there’s a trail

that has hills and valleys and that giving
back a lirtle bitof the profits was a normal ex-
pectation in overall growth, all of which
seemed reasonable from anything I had ever
seen or heard.

- Q. Did you undertake any investigation of
your own in March to determine whether
- [Druz's] assurances about the account were
accurate?
A, No, not on my own.

Reid testified somewhat circularly that he had
no question about propriety of the investments at
that time:

[T]he propriety of those was not an issue
withme. It was not anissue because I wasn’t
aware that it was an improper type of invest-
ment. : '

Reid and Druz Meet at Lahiere’s. Druz
testified that sometime after their phone conversa--
tion, he and Reid had lunch at Lahiere’s Restaurant
in Princeton, specifically to discuss the portfolio’s
performance and to inform Reid “of specifics, dollar
specifics.” Druz said the loss figure discussed was
“substantial” but he could not remember the exact
amount. He said it could have been $300,000 or -
$500,000.

At some point, according to Druz, “We decided
to give up on the Mendelson prediction™ but he said,
“It was very indecisive at that point.... I think we
flip-flopped a little bit during that period.”

Q.Did you consider at all just stopping the
. transactions?

Al don’t remember if that was discussed as

an option at that point. I just don’t remem-

ber.

Reid testified that he first heard dollar figures
placed onthe losses during the March lunch meeting



with Druz, According to Reid, Druz reiterated the

- substance of the phone conversation and told him

-“that he had made some changes in the portfolio.”
‘Asked whether he had given Druz any instructions
around this time, Reid testified, “My instructions

~were, Iexpect a good job from you and I expect that
if you’re doing something that isn’t resulting in our
basically securin g our principal and getting us some

‘kind of growth, then you better make whatever
chan ges you need to make o see to 1t that that’s the
case.”

 Afewdayslater,on March 20, 1987, Druz wrote
to Reid conﬁrmmg a sw:tch “from a bearish to a
bulhsh strategy

Thank you for your continued confidence.
As we discussed in accordance with our
decision to reverse from a bearish to a bull-
ishstrategy, our firstmove totry andrecover
our lost profits is the transfer of $1,000,000
from the Government Securities Trust into
the Dividend Growth Fund, as well as to es-
tablish several bullish option “spread” po-

- sitions. I will bein touchin the near future
to report on our progress. -

.. According to Druz, the decision to “reverse
from a bearish to bullish strategy” was a “mutual
-decision.” Reid disputed this, saying, “The letter
kind of implied it was a joint decision that we had
‘made but it wasn't.”

Reid denied threatening to fire Druz but said that
“there were a few occasions when I said to him that

I-expect top-notch performance out of you and no .

" matter what our relationship is or how much I like
you, if we don’t get top-notch performance, you’'re
out the door.” For his part, Druz testified, *“I was led
to believe by Ted that I wasn’t going to be re-
newed....” '

-A}_’RIL TRUSTEES MEETING

Druz was not present and no report from him
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was submitted to the trustees at the April 29, 1987,
meeting. Druz said he believed he had a conflict
with a DWR conference on this date and had asked
Reid to handle the presentation about the account.
This meeting was the first since Reid had borrowed
$12,000 from Druz, a transaction that was discussed
in detail on page 14...., and was the one at which,
despite recent developments, Reid recommended
that Druz and DWR be reappointed as investment
consultants.

In the advance materials for the meeting, Reid
supported this recommendation by stating, “Dean
Witter’s manager, Dan Druz, has been very effec-
tive in managing our portfolio which is substanti-
ated by our 1985-86 audit results.” Reid later called
the reappointments a “perfunctory thing” and testi-
fied, “At that time I was under the impression we
were doing quite well.” This was less than a month
after his lunch with Druz at Lahiere’s that was held
specifically to discuss the increasing investment
losses. :

In January, February and March, 1987, transac-
tions in stock index options amounted to more than
$3.6 million in purchases and $3.3 million in sales,
yet this activity was not disclosed to the trustees at
their April meeting. Nor was any disclosure made
of the status of the Group’s investments, even though
Druz’s records at DWR showed increasing losses in
the index options trading. '

“CLOSE TO ONE MILLION”

* Druztestified that subsequent to his loan to Reid
but before the trustees meeting, “Ted [was] calling
me a few times, hopeful that things were getting
better so he’d be able to present it to the Board in a
more positive way.” Druz said Reid did not instruct
him not to deal with Jarvie, “but he made it clear that
he wanted to be kept abreast frequently.... I got the
impression that I should be directing my calls and
mformauon to h1m " Druz also rccalled



Basically Dean Wirter at this point in so
. many words said, this is your baby, do the

- best you can with it, try to get some direc-

tion....
DWR] were running away from it .to some
. extent.

When Jarvie finally received options transac-
~ tion statements from Druz, she posted entries in her
ledger pages for the index options. It was then that
she first learned that there were losses in the ac-
count:

I knowthat the April date is {a loss] because
I know that’s a red figure. And I remember
that specifically because I went into Ted
Reid with it when I came up with that par-
ticular one, and I also called the auditors
and voiced, very vociferously, my concerns
about the loss. Sol know thatfigureis aloss.
Before that, I can’t be positive, but I know
that particular one.

Jarvie testified that she then brought the April

loss of $967,150.43 to Reid’s attention. She said the

You know, at this point, people [at

May figure was “even worse than before,” reaching .

$1,133,000 in losses on options.

Auditor David Williams told the SCI about a
‘conversation with Jarvie in mid-May in which she
expressed a belief that the Insurance Group had
suffered losses of nearly $1 million. Williams said
Jarvie told him that she had called Druz, who said he
had gotten incorrect technical advice from Dean

- Witter and that caused him to invest the wrong way.
Williams said he reported the conversation to his
-manager, Jon McCormac, who testified that his firm
in early June confirmed Jarvie’s calculations of the
losses when it began its work on the 1986-87 audit.

Arthur Young partner Edward Cupoli directed
-McCormac to getin touch with Reid to make sure he
was aware of the losses. “Reid was out of town and
could not be reached. I told McCormac to then set
up some way s0 we could talk to him the next
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day....” Cupolirecalled McCormac’s mentiOnihg to
him that Jarvie had indicated that Reid was aware of
the Ioss but Cupoli said he _]ust wanted to be sure.”

Q'. When Jon McConnac _ﬁrst exMIned the
records and came 1o the determination there
was a loss, was a figure mentioned at that
time? - _

A. It was Jusr an approximate figure of a
million dollars. That's the figuire that was
thrown out both in May and in June.

. Q.Was Mr.McCormac atall to instruct Mr.
Reid to cease the trading in the options?
A.That's notinour purview. Allwe coulddo
is tell him he had a loss. We can’t tell him
what to do with his business operation.

_ Williams also remembered:

De Jarvie had prepared a financial state- -
ment, which I saw in June, which indicated
~aloss of over a million dollars.

Q. Didyou see this financial statement prior
to the time that Mr. McCormac’'s phone
conversation with Mr. Reid occurred?
A. Yes, but not very long before.

Q. When Mrs. Jarvie showed you the finan-
cial statement, did she indicate whether Mr.
Reid had seen it or whether she intended to -
show it to Mr. Reid? .
A. She said she intended to present it to the'
Board. : :

Q Did she say when she mtended to presem
it to the Board? :
A. At the next meetmg -

Rcid’s testimony wa_s that subsequent to his
March meeting with Druz, his next information
about the status of the Group’s investments came in
May when Jarvie expressed to him “some concern
about the investments and about the losses.” “De



said she wasn’t sure of what she thought the losses
were and she was getting different numbers from
Kathy Donoher. ” Reid testified:

. The figures at that time varied anywhere
Jfrom a couple of hundred thousand to a
million. _

" Q. Whas was the source for the figures of a
couple of hundred thousand?
A. De.

Q. Andwhat was the source for the figures of
_ up to a million?
A. Kathy Donoher.

Donoher’s testimony on this issue was radically
different from Reid’s. She said she learned about
the losses from Jarvie, who developed the loss
numbers from her own calculations. Jarvie’s testi-
mony supports Donoher on this issue. Aside from
Reid’s self-serving tesimony, there is no evidence
that Donoher had any independent 1nformauon or
did any calculations. Donoher recalled:

Okay, well, inthe very beginning of June De
| Jarvie had come into my office one day, sat
% down and she was extremely nervous and
agitated. I said, “What's the matter now-? "
And she said, “We’re in a lot of trouble.”
said, “What are you talking about?” She
said, “The Insurance Group investments.”

' That was when Donoher said Jarvie told her that
the Insurance Group had lost $1,133,000:

She was very, very upset...and I said, “Does
Ted know?” And she said, “Sure, he does.”
I said, “How could you possibly lose that
kind of money? You lost it all this month in
May?” And she said, “No.” She said, “It's
been over the last couple of months.” And1
said, “In what?" And she said, “In index
options™ and then the bell went off over my
. head, and ] said, “What are index options?

Those [trade confirmations] I saw on your
desk?” Solwas extremely, extremely upset
and I said “Let’s go talk to Ted.” [ said,
“The Board of Trustees meeting is coming

" up. They have to know about it.” And she

said, “No. I'll talk to Ted about it,” and
Jfrom that time I got the distinct impression
that she didn’ twant...both of them and me in
the same room talking about this.

Donoher continued:

I said, you know, “These [options trades]
have been stopped, haven’t they?” She said,
“No.” And Isaid, “Why haven’t they been
stopped?” And she said, “{All] ' mworried
about is that nobody finds out about this.”

Jarvie testified that she had several conversa-
tions thh Donoher around thls tlme about the :

'] was very concerned. I didn’t know what to

do about it. 1felt that my hands were tied,
sincel was telling Ted about it and he wasn’t
responding, and he seemed to understand
what was going on and it was a lot of
frustration kind of discussion with her.

Q. Did you consider speaking‘ to someone
other than Mr. Reid about your knowledge
of the losses?

‘A. Like whom, for instance?

Q. Like, for example, a member of the Board
of Trustees.

A. That never would have occurred to me. 1
would never go over the executive director’s

~ head, no matter who thatpersonwas. That's

not the way I do business.

Jarvie continued, “I just kept saying...something
was terribly wrong and something should be done.
And Ireally didn’t know what.” Believing that she



did not have the power to instruct Druz to cease
wading, she raised with Reid whether the trustees
~ should be informed about the losses:

I know I thought that they should be [in-
Jormed], because I felt that the audit would
be coming up, and I don't like negative
surprises and I didn’t think that they would.
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- . Jarvie said she prepared financial statements for
thc Group for April 30 and May 31, 1987. The
statement for April 30 showed a negative figure on
the options investments of $967,150; for May 31, a

negative figure of $1,133,053.,

' Jarvie believed she showed Reid the May 31
financial statement on June 12, 1987, at the Associa-

- tion’s Board of Directors meeting. She said she felt .

“that it was important for me to make sure he saw it.
It was not necessarily a good time, because there

were so many important things on the agendas.

Now, I don’t remember what his response was, but
I know I showed it to him.” (Reid’s annual evalu-
ation and salary mcrease were on the agenda that
cvemng)

JUNE 16: ARTHUR YOUNG CONFERENCE
. CALL

The conference call ordered by Arthur Young
partner Edward Cupoli took place on June 16 be-
tween Jon McCormac, Reid, Jarvie and Donoher,
McCormac related that:
® I basically repeated what I had told De to
- Ted, that I wanted to make sure he was

aware of this loss in the options trading and
that was it. And he offered that he was aware

of it.

Q. Did you give him an amount?
A. I would have said approximately a mil-
. lion that we had determined the day before.

McCormac told the SCI about Reid’s response:

That he knew of the loss and that he believed

it to be temporary in terms of the market

* decline or—I forgetif the market was going

down at the time and the options he was in

wanted to go up or vice versa, but he was in

the wrong match.... But he was aware and

that he felt that there would be an eventual

- turnaround to where the market would per-

form to what the investments predicted they
would.

Q. Did you instruct Mr. Reid during this
phone call or didyou advise Mr.Reid during
the phone call that the investments in op-
tions should cease? '

. A.No. No.

Q. Did you give Mr. Reid any advice as to
- how heshouldproceedwiththe investments?
- A.No, just that he should review and be sure
that the levels all made sense. Imean,I can’t
tell him that he shouldn’t be in options. 1
have no— that's not my expertise.

Q.Didyou perceive that you had anydutyas

the auditor to advise Mr, Reid or to advise

the client as to any steps to take with regard .

to the investments? '
. A.No.

Q. Knowing or having the information that

the loss could amount to eight hundred thou-

sand dollars at that point?

A. No, again, as an auditor, I can’t tell him

what to invest in. If he wants to stay in his
options, he can. I can’t tell him whether he

should or shauldn L. : '

McCormac’s workpapers suggest that he took a
stronger stance with Reid than he admitted in his
testimony. The papers state, “On 6/16/87 at 10:301
spoke to Ted, De and Kathy. I told Ted about the
huge losses and expressed concern that Dan was not



performing well at all. I alsoexpressed concern that

he should have stopped options trades when he
~ started losing money.”

Cupoli said he subsequently wrote directly to
the Board of Trustees “when we found out that to the
best of our knowledge they were not aware of [the
losses]. It was just through conversations myself

with [McCormac] that, did he think they were aware
of it, did he think that they knew about it? And the

best that we could determine, they weren’t, and I
wasn’t going to go on an inquisition and find out, so
- T just felt the best thing to do was to notify them
directly, which we did.” Thatletter was received by
-then-Chairperson Carolyn Smith in July.

Reid remembered the conference call but thought:

it“...took place within a matter of an hour or so after
De Jarvie advised me of the concerns about losses.”

Q. Did McCormac during this conference
call giveyouanumber relating to the losses?
A.The thing that 1 recall as a result of that

- Conference call was afrustration level about

.. not getting any precise numbers from any-
 one. That's the thing that I most remember
about it; that there was some alarm being
expressed but nobody could tell me exactly
what it was I was supposed to be alarmed
about, and there were great variations in the
numbers which I found to be rather exasper-
ating.

Q. Did the variations come from McCor-
. mac?

A. Well, I was getting dzjj"erent numbers
from De and from Kathy and McCormac,
andl'm not quite sure who was relymg upon
f what] source. '

Reidrecalled, “When Iaskedquestions,I wasn’t
‘getting real precise answers...the sense that I had
was that they didn’t have a clear handle.”

.Jarvie remembered Reid saying something to
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McCormac likeyou’re not telling me anything”
during the conference call, saying, “I think Jon was
explaining to him the losses, and that something
should be done, but he wasn’t being specific enough.”

Reid explained why he did not at least contact
the chairperson of the Insurance Group when he
received information about the losses:

I thought it would be a mistake at that point
to discuss it, not knowing what the problem
was and because I was getting conflicting
information.... I thought it was my respon-
sibility to have a clear-cut picture of whar
had happened and to have a recommenda-
tion for a course of action.... It was such a
great disparity between 200,000 and a mil-
lion, it could have gone from zero to a
million in my mind. I needed 1o know what
was going on andl felt a lack of information
and an incredible sense of betrayal.

Jarvie’s testimony was at odds with Reid’s:

Q. Do you recall speaking to Mr. Reid spe-
cifically about the figure that you had ar-
rived at for the losses in the amount of $1.1 3
million dollars? :
A.Yes, I do.

0. Didyou communicate toMr.Reidaround
this time any sense that there could be a
large discrepancy in the losses? In other
words, instead of it being the $1.13 million
that you had arrived at, that it could be as
little as 3200 000 or 3300 000 dollars?
A.No.

- Reid admitted that he “did at some point” see a
financial statement prepared by Jarvie showing a
loss of $1.13 million in options as of May 31, 1987,
and to the best of his recollection it was “around the
time” of the conference call with Arthur Young.

Reid said that immediately after the Arthur



Young conference call, he phoned Druz and asked
for “a complete report, something that I can
understand...that tells me exactly where we are,
what we’ve given you, how much.it’s worth right
now.” Reid said he told Druz, “All I know, if there’s
-a'major loss here, we got a problem and we better
damn well do something about it. If you're tradmg

stop

- Druz tesnﬁed that he wrote a short letter that day
md.lcatmg the overall value of the portfolio and an
overall percentage drop. He said he believed the
losses at that time to be about $800,000. The last
options activity in the account was on June 17, the

- day after the Arthur Young conference call. Druz
said, however, that Reid had instructed him in early
June to close out all options positons.

: Reid testified that when he received the letter
and called to discuss it, he learned that Druz was no
longer employed at DWR. Druz said he resigned
voluntarily on June 17 to accept a position as branch
manager of the Shearson Lehman Hutton office in
Melville, New York.

JUNE 17: AN EVENING AT CENTRE BRIDGE

On June 17, just 24 hours after the Arthur Young'

conference call, the Insurance Group trustees held a
meeting at the Centre Bridge Inn in Pennsylvania,
across the river from Stockton. And Reid had new
priorities. There, he told a trustee that the state of the
investments was “never better” and deliberately
withheld information from the Group about the
matter. But he tried to obtain a more lucrative salary
package for himself, Jarvie and Donoher while he,
six trustees and four other staffers dined on escargot
and pate, salmon, duck, lobster and rack of lamb.
The dinner cost $772.90, of which $231.25 was for
spirits and included two $40 bottles of wine. After
the dinner, Reid, Donoher and two trustees stayed
overmght at a cost of more than $300.

opnons or whatever and they’re causing the losses, '

According to the advance materials, this meet-
ing was to be a “special thank-you™ to the trustees.
Nooutside consultants were invited. Joan Schwartz,
Association Executive Secretary who attended to

-take minutes, testified that she arranged the affair at

the direction of Reid, who told the SCI, “We picked
a place that we thought would be nice.”
Insurance Group secretary Barbara Deveney re-
called:

Everybody was in a good mood and thmgs
Jjust went along smooth.

Trustees James Murphy and Norman Field re-

called an understanding that this meeting was in-

tended to be a more “relaxed” affair as an end-of-
the-year meeting, a change of pace, without the
large group of people normally in attendance.

Former Chalrperson Carolyn Smlth recalled the

- evenmg

What Mr. Reid told me and then subse-

- quently told the trustees was that we were, in
effect, celebrating our wonderful growth...that
evening was going to be kind of celebration
of how well we were doing.

- Q.And was it acelebration? . 7
~ A.Was it a celebration? Friday nights are
- pizzanights for us.... I believe it was consid-
ered to be a very extravagant evening.

Q. Was there any mention made during this
meeting about any investment losses?

A. Ng.

“Never Better”. Trustee Eugene Burns re-
called one conversation thatevening wzth Admmls-
trator Reld

I had gorten to the Centre Bridge Ifm a Izttle |
bit early, because I was coming from some
distance, and I left early, and I got there

-Former



early, not knowing where I was going, and
‘Ted Reid was just coming in from jogging.
-Hewas in his sweat suit,and we passed some
- pleasantries and things like that, you know,
and I remarked what a beautiful place this

was, and et cetera, and I had just had a —

some problems with some investments I had,
and I said to him, “How are our investments
going?” And he said, “Gene, never better,”
and that was it. I rook it at face value and I
said, “You must be domg something I'm not
doing.” = -

- Q.Did youbelieve Mr. Reid whenhe toldyou
that?
" A. Oh yes, absolutely. Absolutely.

- Q. Would you have expected Mr. Reid to 1ell
the entire Board of Trustees about any infor-
mation he had received relating to losses

. sustained in the Insurance Group?
“A.Yes.

Q. Why is thar?
A.Hewas thedi rector and we were the trus-
tees. ) i :

. Reid did not recall this conversation.

The new salary provisions. The only item on
~‘the agenda that night was the 1987-88 budget,
which contained new provisions for staff salaries
and universal life policies for the staff. That these
proposals would result in additional costs was not
made clear to the trustees at that time by the staff,

" except to the extent that Administrator Reid raised .

the issue in a private conversation with Chairperson
Smith before the meeting. Testimony at the SCI
confirmed that assuring acceptance of these new
provisions seemed to be the staff’s singular priority
at this meeting, rather than informing the trustees of
investment losses.

| Kathy Donoher met Jarvie at the open bar prior
to the meeting:

When I had walked up, I was just standing
there talking for a minute and De had turned
around and said to me— she says, “We're
going to go for it tonight.”

Donoher explained:

- Well, basically what she was talking and re-
ferring to was in the budget was [new provi-
sions for] salaries for the administrator, the
treasurer and the deputy treasurer.

Donoher recalled that discussions about this
proposal “had been going on for months™ at the

~ Association with Jarvie and Reid:
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De had spent considerable time on this and
she would call me on the phone and say,
“You must be able to come up with some way

" that we can do this so that it won't be

- questioned.”

The proposed salary increases were to be equal
to 10 percent of the salaries Reid, Jarvie and Donoher
received from the Association. -

By Chairman Henry S. Patterson, II:

Q. Just to make sure that I understand. If

one of these people was being paid $50,000

ayear by the School Boards Associationand
this 10percent had gone through, they would

have gotten another check for 35,000 from

the Insurance Group?

A. That's correct.

Q. And the item of $22,000 in the Insurance
_ Group budget for fringe beneﬁts——
A, Yes.

Q. What was the purpose of that item?

A.The purpose of that item was...to pay for
withholding taxes and other appropriate
taxes so that the net of the checks could be 10

percent of the salary.



Q. So the actual salary increase would have
been the increase — not salary but the in-
crease in payments to the person would have
been more than 10 percent?
A. Absolutely.
- Jarvie testified that the separate salary provision
and the annuities provision were Reid’s idea. Reid
said it was Jarvie’s idea.

* Prior Insﬁrance' Group budgets héd estimated .

the percentage of Association staff’s time spent
administering the Insurance Group and provided
that the value of those percentages would be reim-
bursed to the Association. The 1986-87 budget
stated that Reid spent 50 per cent of his time on
Insurance Group business, up from 10 per cent for
the prior year. Jarvie’s allocation was 75 per cent,
up from 15 per cent the prior year, and Donoher’s
figure was 50 per cent, up from 10 per cent. Jarvie
said the figures were prepared at Reid’s direction
and that he “absolutely” knew of the amounts.

The 1987-88 budget eliminated those break-
downs, merely listing a figure as “salary costs to the
Group,” noting “certain staff have full-time Asso-
ciation responsibility and have adjusted their time to
accommodate the added- duties which Group ad-
ministration imposes.”

Former Chairperson Carolyn Smith recalled her
private discussion with Reid before the meeting
regarding the proposed new. salaries:

Reid had suggested that he wanted to talk
with me prior 1o the meeting...he proceeded
to tell me that in the budgez...he was recom-
mending that the Insurance Group no longer
pay a percentage of his salary as a reim-
bursement to the Association, but rather pay
a stipend to him, Mrs. Jarvie and Ms. Donoher
that would be in addition to their salary that
they received from the Association.... 1 felt
that if a stipend were to be considered, itwas
something that the [Association’s] Board of
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Directors should also be made aware of
because it would amount to an increase in
salary...and that I still believed we needed a
full time director of insurance and that 1
would not present his recommendation to
the trustees.

Smith recalled Reid’s reaction: B

He was — he appeared to be annoyed. 1
don’t know how to say this. 1don't remem-
ber his exact words, but it was kind of
suggesting that I was being reactionary in
that I was not looking at the concept from a
business standpoint...that after all, he and
De and Kathy — but he and De, in particu-
lar, put in a tremendous number of hours
without any real recognition.

Reid’s testimony was that he told Carolyn Smith
in the conversation before the meeting that he did
not want to discuss it with the trustees that night
because he “wasn’t really sure” that he wanted to
recommend it and he wanted more time to think
about if. Even though Reid never “discussed” the
salary proposal at the meeting that night, he cer-
tainly did not call the trustees’ attention to the fact
that the budget they were approving contained an -
appropriation to fund that very proposal.

Reid also did not advise the trustees of his
conference call with Arthur Young the previous day
or of the financial statement prepared by Jarvie
showing a $1.13 million loss on index options
trading. '

Reid was asked:

Q. Did you during the meeting tell the trus-
tees about the status of the investments?
. A.No. -

Q Why not?
A. Because I didn't know the status at that
point. ' ' -



Druz told the SCI why he did not disclbse the
losses in his report to the trustees:

Q. Did you consider whether or not you
should tell the trustees the amounts that had
beenreportedtoyouas the suspectedlosses?

A.Yes..] decided that I wanted to get some
more data and as soon as I got it, then I
would call for a special meeting and I would
make contactwiththe president, report what
I had. I felt I wanted to come with some facts
rather than just to alarm them and not know
what I was 1alking about.

1 was talking to Ted a lot at this time andl
don’t recall specifically why, but certainly |
was trying to put the perspective in the
overall portfolio. Rather than to emphasize

losses, I wanted to show that overall the

portfolio had not done disastrously during
the time I was involved with it. -

Jarvie testified that the trustees were informed
“casually” of the problem with the losses during this
meenng:

Whatthe trustees did receive before the meeting
was the one-page “Report of the Investment Con-
sultant” from Druz, which stated in typlcal vague
and unmtelhg:blc fashion:

lf one analyzes the performance using
- weighted averages, then the portfolio has
declined by several percent. On the other
hand, since Dean Witter began to help manage
the account, its unweighted return, includ-
(ing all invesiments, is approximately +5%.

An organization such as the Insurance Group
“should have five year time horizons.

I mean that they did not have chapter and
verse in front of them. And Ted gave an
overview and in the overview I remember
him alluding to losses and several of the
trustees saying they understood because they
understood the stock market and they knew
it was bad or whatever. So it was casually.

There were no numbers mentioned.

, Re1d testified that he did not qucsnon the accu-
racy of the report at the time. He did not “specifi-
cally recall” any of the trustees at the meeting asking
about the status of the investments.
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THE BUBBLE BURSTS

. 'The trustees meeting on June 17, 1987, came

and went without a word from the staff of the
investment problems. Kathleen Donoher testified
that she did not consider raising the issne of the
investment losses with the trustees that evening:

I think it would have created such chaos for

me to have brought it up in the middle of a

meeting to say, “Hey — hey, guys, guess
- what?"

But the day after the meeting she toId Deputy
Dn'ector Boose about the losses:

~ ...50 on Thursday, the day after the meeting
- whenlIwent into work, Bob Boose had come
into my office and [said], “Tell me about the
Insurance Group.” Andl expressedto {him]
my concerns. I told him that De had told me
that there was $1,133,000 lost in invest-
ments. I said, “My concern is, you know,
they haven’t stopped the index trading and

. i's in index options. They're giving me
‘these indications that they don’t plan on
telling anyone either. I'mreally upset about
it and ] didn’t have anybody else to talk to.”

Boose generally confirmed Donoher’s testimony.
Describing a discussion in her office, he said Donoher
was upset about investment losses as well as what
she perceived to be an attempt to cover up the
problem: '

Then she said that “they know about it.”
And “they are not saying anything about

10 one end of the building and that was

" where the comptroller's office is, directly

across, and then she said, finally said, De
and Ted, that they knew about it and they
weren't sharing that information.

Boose continued:

it.” That's not adirect quote. I'm trying to

give you the essence of what I remember. 1
 said, “What do you mean they?” She pointed
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I was out the next day. The following day
[June 19] I went to the general counsel

. [Russell Weiss] and related the discussion

that I had to him.. .he directed me to go back
to Kathy and tell her that he and I talked and
that he would be contacting her, which I did
that afternoon, I believe.... When I went
back, when Russ told me to go back to talk to
her...she said that what upset her was that
there was a conference call..in Ted's
office...and that disturbed her. And 1 said,
“Well, you know, I really don’t have a feel

 for what it is you are talking about. You
should talk to Russ about it.”

0.Can yau tell us why you, after speaking to
Kathy Donoher,went to speak to Russell
Weiss, the general counsel?

A. Well, essentially, it wasn’t an area thatl
had control over.... There were allegations
made. Any time in the school district when
there are allegations made, the board attor-
ney, the attorney is the one who handles it.
The other issue was in terms of the allega-
tion, in terms of the whistle blower, I just .
naturally went to the attorney.

- Q. What was the reason that you did not go

to Mr. Reid?
A. Well, the allegations were made against



my superior and one of my colleagues. In
Jairness to them, and everybody concerned,
I assumed the lawyer was better suited to
handle it.

‘Donoher was asked:

Q. Do you kriow whether anyone from the
Association has ever referred to you as the
“whistle blower?”

A. Oh, sure. That's one of the nicer things.

In late June, Reid and Jarvie met with Richard
Simkus, the DWR account executive who had taken
over the Insurance Group account from Druz. Atthe
- time of this meeting, the Insurance Group trustees
had still not been informed of the losses in the
account. As a follow-up to the meeting, Simkus
~“wrote Reid on June 26, 1987, “I am confident we can

do what is necessary together to increase our returns
and reduce potential volatility to everyone’s satis-
faction.” On July 10, Reid wrote back, “Under no

- circumstances will any option trading be done through

- our accounts.” '

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ACTIONS

- Association Deputy Director Boose told the SCI
that in preparing the agenda for the Association’s
" Executive Committee annual retreat, scheduled to

begin on July 8, 1987, he had intended to follow the
prior year’s model, which had included materials
“about the Insurance Group. But he said that during

“adiscussion with Reid and Jarvie, he was instructed.

to omit any reference to the Insurance Group.
‘Nevertheless, because Donoher and Boose already
‘had confided in NJSBA General Counsel Weiss,
‘who in turn had informed President Joseph Ze-
‘maitis, the Executive Committee learned of the
losses during its retreat — before the Insurance
Group Trustees did.

Zemaitis testified that, armed with the informa-
tion from Weiss, he intended to tell the Committee
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of the losses during the retreat:

My intention was a bit preempted...it was my
intention that the Executive Committee would
- spend Saturday or Friday, depending on
when we completed the business of the re-
' treat, to address this issue of the losses...and
" Mr. Reid had gotten some information from
some source that indicated this had
occurred...and we then suspended the busi-
ness of the retreat and had a meeting at
which time I provided to the Executive
Commirntee all of the information that Mr.
Weiss had given to me earlier. We then
allowedfor Mr.Reidto respond and thenthe
Executive Committee met to suspend him.

Q. Why was Mr. Reid suspended?
A. Because initial impressions or under-
standings were that, one, there were very
“significant losses. Mr. Reid was the admin-
istrator of the Group, and therefore, had the
overall day-to-day responsibility for the
Insurance Group. We did not know how
much further this went and in what direction
this may have gone and there was already at
"that point in time a suggestion that the types
of investments were not permitted under that
statute and that we would at least suspend.
him in order for us to get a handle on what
was going on. '

Q. Were there certain conditions or limita-
tions put on the suspension?
-A.Yes. Recogrizing the sensitivity of all of
" this and the ...bad press that could come as
a result of the knowledge of a suspension as
well as ourselves not really knowing where it
was going, we suspended Mr. Reid from
essentially the day-to-day operations of the
Association. However, he was to continue to
" -attend those state meetings or out-of-state
meetings that he was already scheduled to
attend, 1o keep the appearance of afunction-
ing, full-time executive director.... I was



also given direction by the Exec_utive_Com-
mittee at that time to retain counsel to con-
‘duct an investigation.

-+ Thatcounsel was former U.S. Attorney Thomas
Greelish, who was hired the following week. -

* The current Association President, Jeremiah
Regan; remembered Reid’s explanation to the Ex-
ecutive Committee of the losses:

Of course, it was a shock so therefore alot of
itdoesn’t -- didn’t quite register, They had
been advised that there were in fact some
losses. He was looking to really pin down
the number and the extent of the losses. He
did not believe that the losses were that
extensive and therefore that the number we
were being given was way out of order.

Q. Did he speak at all about why the Insur-
ance Group was investing in index options?
A.He said only that that was on advice of the
expert he hired, Dan Druz

Q.Did he speak about any strategy, invest-
ment strategy, that the group was pursuing?

- A.Yes. Healked about the strategy essen-
tially was to cut the losses.

Regan also recalled that Reid spoke to the Ex-
ecutive Committee that day about Mendelson:

Mendelson apparently was the guru on in-
vesting for the firm that Dan Druz repre-
sented and this was Mendelson’s theory as
to how best to play the market, this hedging
strategy

_ Q Didhe speak atall about what his partici- |

pation had been in the investments?
‘A. Only to the extent that this was all under
De Jarvie and he was trying to pull every-
. thing together. . '

" Q. You spoke of it being a shock, the—what
~ you learned about the mvestment losses —
A.Yes.

Q. Why was it a shock?
A. Well, $800,000 or a million dollars, and

both numbers were thrown around, is a

significant amount of money and for any-.
body to be in index options seemed to be the
wildest of all investments. :

Reid’s vérsion of de'vel'opmen'ts at the retreat
had a different emphasis. He testified that he:

...got hitacross the head with a sledge ham-
mer.... When we were at the retreat, I
received a phone call from De Jarvie telling
me that there was a plot going on and that
there was an attempt to discredit her andme
and that my two deputies [Boose and Weiss]
and the president were in on it. "

He said he confronted President Zemaitis who - -
told him “that we have all these phenomenal losses
in the Insurance Group.” Reid said he had told
Zemaitis, “If there’s anything you want to know, I'll
gladly tell you,” but that “what I got was a lot of
double talk and very little in the way of any precise
information.” Reid testified that after waiting “out
in the hall for about two hours” at Zemaitis’ request, -
he was called “...into what appeared to me at-that

~ point to be the Spanish Inquisition.” Reid claimed
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to have been “in total shock” when informed of his
suspension by the Executive Committee. “I said,
‘What are you suspending me for? What is it that
I'm being accused of 7" He recalled that he said to
the Commitiee, “If I’'ve done something wrong,
let’s put it out on the table and let’s talk about it...”
Informed that his suspension was “necessary to
conduct an investigation,” Reid responded, “What
in the world do you think I'm going to do when I
come into the office...what is there to steal?” -

Recalling an officer’s mfeiencé to poésibly sealing
the office and “confiscating” documents, Reid



remarked, *“I had the strange feeling I was in Nazi
Germany or something.”

Ididn’t get the impression at that point that
they really cared to hear anything that I had
tosay. They hadawhole series of statements
whichwere more accusations than they were
questions and there was little, if any, oppor-
“tunity for me to be able to respond intelli-
gently 1o anything. It was a classic kanga-
roo court.

Reid told the SCI that he had been waiting for a
“complete and detailed report” from the broker who
took Druz’s place when the retreat occurred, and
that he told the Executive Committee:

-I'was trying to get the information together

- andIwas waiting for that information so that

s I could go to them with a comprehensive

¢+ +  picture...and itwas right in the middle of that
process when the retreat occurred.

. Reid testified that he was given the impression
‘that “it would all be settled” in no more than a few
weeks. . He recalled the terms of his suspension:

I was basically expected to carry out all of
.my responsibilities except I was expected to

« do it long distance, and I was to clear with
my deputy [Boose] at any time I was to come
into the office and 1 guess I was 1o be
watched like some sort of criminal when I
came in there. It was a rather demeamng
experience.

Whether demeaning or not, Association records
-show that from the time Reid was “suspended” on
July 10, 1987 until he was reinstated by the Board of
Directors on September 2, 1987 he attended out-of-
.state conferences in Baton Rouge, Indianapolis,
Alabama, Delaware and New York City, incurring
expenses of more than $8,000. These included
- claims for two meetings between Reid and a repre-
- sentative of the brokerage firm of Shearson Lehman

Hutton, including a $176.76 dinner at Tavern on the
Green in New York City. (As will be discussed
further in this report, Reid made duplicate claims for
some of the expenses incurred during thisperiod, in-
cluding the one for the Tavernon the Green dinner.)

Treasurer Jarvie also addressed the officers about
the Group's investments. She too was suspended

~with pay.
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Assomanon Officer Mario Gangi recalled:

Vi probably remember rhe thmgs that were
swrprising. She said that she was not schooled
to be a comptroller. She was not per se an
accountant/comptroller person, and I was
surprised to hear that. I had very little 1o do
with her in all the years I’ve been with the
Association, and in the last year that I was

- an officer at the time, her reputation as told
. tome by the executive director, was that she
was a high-powered comptroller! account-
- ant person and...that Sunday I realized not
only wasn’t she but she herself admitted that
shewasn't. Thatwas akey. Thefact that she
said that she was aware that something was
- amiss as early as February of 1987 and I
wondered why a person in that position
wouldn't make it available to. the officers
who should have been told immediately that
something was amiss.... A true comptroller
‘would. A lesser person wouldn’t see their
- role and would not know that was expected
of them..... And I think that's one of the
things that I felt very strongly that should
have been done by anyone and everyone who
was involved. It should have been reported
_ 1o the officers but for no other reason than
something has got to be looked into because
we don’t know where we're at by everyone,
especially the executive director.
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" ‘Carolyn Smith, Chairperson of the Insurance
Group Board of Trustees in the winter and spring of
1987, testified that she first leamed of losses on
Sunday, July 12, the day after the Executive Com-

mlttee retreat, in a telephone call from Association.

Pfesident Zernaltls Accordmg to Smith, Zemaitis
- told her:

fthat] he had received information that indi-
cated that {the Insurance Group] had lost a
considerable sum of money, somewhere in
the neighborhood of a million dollars, and

that there was a whistle blower who had

brought this to the — to his attention and
that he and I needed to meet and discuss
what needed to be done inregard to this.

“aw

Q. What was your reaction at that time to the
information about the investment losses?
"A. I was — is that appropriate? 1 was

aghast . I was shocked.

Q. Why did you have this reaction?
A.Well, here this was less than a month after
we had had a meeting and there was no

- indicationthatwe had any kind of investment
problems.

* Smith met that Sunday with Zemaitis. She
testified: -

[AJll we knew is that we had lost money...
®  Untilwe had a better idea of what reallyhad
' happened, we would not relay the informa-
tion 1o the Trustees either, nor to the Board

of Directors.... 1 had averystrong sensethat

THE INTERNAL INVESTIGATION

uniil this was clarified and we knew exactly
what had happened, it was not the sort of

. thing that you just let the whole world know

about.

Smith was asked why the Executive-Commiittee
of the NJSBA ordered an investigation when it was
the Insurance Group’s money that had been lost
She said: : -

{1)f there was indeed a problem with an

- employee, we had no power over that em-

ployee. Whatever the outcome of the inves-
tigation, the trustees’ responsibility was to
look at what happened and move forward

fromthat point, basically to see that it never

happened again and, if possible, to recoup

- whatever losses there were so that our focus,
“in essence, could be on the future, and the -

Executive Committee would deal with what
had transpired. : '

Q. Prior to that time, had the Executive
Committee become involved at al! in the In-
surance Group? :

- A.No.

Association Officer Didimamoff was asked:

Q. Was there any consideration of giving the
entire investigation over to the Insurance
Group, from the outset?”

- -A.ldon’tthink so. Firstof all, the individu-

als involved were on our [the Association]
payroll and we didn’t know what we had
stumbled into, whether we had deliberate

-malfeasance in the office or something less....

We just did not know.. You now have 20/120



hindsight. We were staring into space. We
had a problem that was not yer defined for
us. All we knew is we were down — the

~Insurance Group was down some amount of

money and the reasons for it were anybody’s
guess. Inthat context, there was concernon
our part that if it was the best of all possible
situations, we wanted Mr. Reid ous of there
so that nothing could be construed as a
whitewash, which is also why we wanted a

prominent antorney. Ifit was the worstofall

situations, we didn’t want anybody to com-
- pound the problem or create a cover-up.

Although the Executive Committee suspended
Reid and Jarvie and initiated the Greelish investiga-
tion, its members knew very little about the Insur-
ance Group in July, 1987. Curiously, the Commit-
tee, which performs an annual evaluation of the ex-
ecutive director, had never evaluated him in his
performance as administrator of the Insurance Group.
As late as the spring of 1987, for example, Reid did
not discuss the Insurance Group or its investments
during his evaluation process and the Executive
Committee did not ask.

If the Executive Committee had little specific
information about the Insurance Group, the Asso-
ciation’s Board of Directors had even less. Afterthe
suspension of Reid and Jarvie, several members of
the Board of Directors, in interviews by the SCI,
said it should not have been the Executive Commit-
tee but the entire Board of Directors which decided

“whether to suspend the two and to hire special
counsel.- This view was expressed strongly to the
Executive Committee in Board meetings later that
summer and led to tension which continues to this
day. Some members felt strongly that the Executive
Committee had treated Reid and Jarvie unfairly and
accused them of wrongdoing without an opportu-
nity for a hearing. For these and other Board
members, the issue of the Insurance Group invest-
ments became secondary to issues relating to per-
ceived confidence in the Association staff. Some
witnesses during this investigation noted that the
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Association’s Board of Directors still divides into
pro- and anti-Reid factions on any issue in which the
executive director takes a strong personal interest.

EMERGENCY MEETINGS ON AUGUST 20, 1987

Neither the Insurance Group Trustees nor the
Association Board of Directors learned officially of
the investment losses, the special counsel investiga-
tion and the “suspension” of the twoemployees until
emergency special meetings held on August 20,
1987. In these meetings, special counsel Thomas
Greelish informed the two governing bodies of the
preliminary findings of his investigation. Reid
recalled being “thrown out” of both meetings.

Former president Zemaitis recalled the atmos-
phere at the Board of Directors meeting:

This whole issue was emotionally charged.
Themeeting of August20was avery strained
meeting. After all, I guess there were those
of us who were saying a very popular, re-

- spected Executive Director may have not
been watching all that should have been
watched

LR

Whar's the best way to characterize it? There -
were clearly supporters of Mr. Reid versus
supporters of Joe Zemaitis.... It was ameet-
ing I would not like to live through again....
There was an awful lot of emotion. How can
I berter characterize it? I was perceived as
attempting to remove fromthe Associationa
very popular, respected executive director
by some. They were angry about that...it
was emotional from those of us who felt that
there were certain facts that were being
ignored by members of the Board of
Directors...acting -on emotional issues as
opposed to the issue of loss, who perminted
the losses, were they the kinds of investments
we should have been in. Those are the kinds



of issues we should have been discussing.

Q. Was thar emotional tenor carried over
into [a later] meeting?
4  A. Absolutely.

- THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE SEEKS UNITY

-.. The Association’s Executive Committee, which
nearly twomonths earlier had voted unanimously to
suspend Reid and Jarvie and to authorize an inves-
tigation, found itself less united by the end of
August. The Committee had already agreed to
recommend the reinstatement of Jarvie with condi-
tions. Several days before the September 2 meeting,
it met to try to reach some agreement regarding
Reid. Then-president Zemaitis recalled some kind
of consensus on the Executive Committee “for a
little while” for Reid to take a pay cut and for
moving up the expiration date on his contract from
1989 to 1988. :

When it was presented to Mr. Reid, he re-
jected it and that’ s when [the consensus] all
fell apart. We never had then an opportunity
to present to the Board ofDirectors what our
recommendation was and I don’t know that
the Board of Directors was interested in
hearing what our recommendation was, quite
honestly. '

Reid recalled that.prior to his reinstatement by

the Board of Directors there were “several attempts

by Mr. Zemaitis to get me to effectively resign,
suggesting fining me, changing the terms of my

contract, renegotiating the contract, eliminating the -

notice provision, providing for a new evaluation.”
He testified that his '

. response was ‘no’...[bjecause I didn't feel |

g

as though I was guilty of anything that
merited that. Furthermore, I didn’t feel that
they had objectively looked at the facts. It
- was very clear and apparent to me that was

arather hostile and emotional vendeita, and
I was not going to just simply yield to that.

Q. Youusedtheterm “vendetta.” I wonder if .
. you could explain why you thought it was a
 vendena? |
A Ifyoulived through what I lived through,
you would know it. You wouldn’t need to
‘have it spelled out for you. It is very clear
that there is an intense jealousy there, It is
very clear that there is an intense dislike. -
The envy even has been expressed to me per-
- sonally as well as to many other people and
the constant demeaning behaviors are more
than sufficient to get a message across.

He thought the vendetta was “primarily from
one source, but somebody...who is particularly bright
and at the same time somewhat Machiavellian and
usually able to incorporate a few other people in
their plans.” - :

The September 2 Special Meeting. In a spe-
cial meeting on September 2, 1987, the Board of Di-
rectors voted to reinstate Reid and Jarvie. The
minutes of this meeting, which was closed to the
public, were not prepared until almost two years
later.  Association Officer Didimamoff recalled the
background of the meeting:

Q. Had the Executive Committee made any
recommendation tothe Board at that time re-
garding Mr. Reid’s status?
A. I don’t think the Board of Directors wanted
to hear it. I don’t think they gave us an
opportunity to make a recommendation....
The Board of Directors put some pressure on
- the Executive Committee coming into Au-
gust, to bring Mr. Reid back to office, 1o
bring Mrs. Jarvie back to office and to re-
store everything to status quo. The Executive
Committee was awaiting the results of Mr.
- Greelish's investigation and I think the Board
of Directors saw Mr. Greelish as a force that
was blocking the restoral of the status quo
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.and became very hostile to Mr. Greelish and
anything that was in his report.

‘Reid testified about his statements to the Board
“of Directors at the September 2 meeting:

I spoke about my role. I spoke about what
- had happened, I spoke about the investiga-
. tion that Mr. Greelish was conducting for

Mr. Zemaitis and I gave my reactions to it
and my feelings about what had transpired
and also about the negotiations that went on
with the Executive Committee over the course
of the summer.

- ldescribed it [the Greelish investigation] as
an inguisition and told the [Board of
Directors]...that it was my very clear sense

~and perception that Mr. Greelish had the
outcome already determined before the in-
vestigation began and that he had been thor-
oughly and completely instructed by Mr.

~Zemaitis and that he was therefore already

- prejudiced with respect to what he might

‘find and that he was simply looking for, at

-~ Mr. Zemaitis’s direction, the facts to cor-

-~ roborate the conclusions that he had al-
' ready been told 1o find.

After Reid and Jarvie spoke, some Board
‘members called for their reinstatement “with all
rights and privileges.” When another Board mem-
ber noted that the Greelish investigation had not
been completed, the motion to reinstate the staff was
-amended to include a direction to Greelish to com-
plete-and submit his report forthwith. Some board
members told the SCI that although they would have
- liked to have reviewed the report of the Greelish
investigation first, they voted to reinstate Reid and
Jarvie as a show of confidence. Some felt that the
issue had been structured so as to demand such a
show of confidence. Another wimess told the SCI
that he did not vote because he was “disgusted” at
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what he percewed as polarization among the Board
members.

Insurance Group Trustee and Board member
Eugene Burns was asked by SCI Counsel Hoekje:

Q. As a member of the Board of Directors,
would you have liked to have received the
results of Mr. Greelish’s investigation be-
fore reinstating Mr. Reid?

A Yes.

Q. Why was that?

A. Because I wanted to get all the informa-
tion possible before voting on such an issue,
and I don't believe that we did have the
information.

Q. Was there any concernvoiced during this
Board of Directors meeting about the status
of the Insurance Group? - .
A. No, not to my knowledge.

Jarvie’s Reinstatement, Resignation, - Ac-
cording to Zemaitis, the Executive Committee lifted
Jarvie’s suspension in early August and she had
“agreed to certain conditions. of reinstatement,”
including a reduction in salary and “an acceptance
of the point of view that something of this magni-
tude having occurred should have required the re-
porting to at least the President of the Association,
if not the Executive Committee, rather than to her
immediate superior, Mr. Reid.”

Jarvw told the SCI that she found the conditions
that were proposed:

to be extremely limiting...making me guilty
of something before I was even accused of
anything.... And I didn’t and could not
agree 1o these terms and Mr. Zemaitis said it
was all right for me to go back anyway, that
he would change that agreement to what we
had discussed and I should go back to work
- which I did.



- These conditions were never finalized.

The Executive Committee’s August decision to
reinstate Jarvie was ratified on September 2 by the
Association’s Board of Directors and she was rein-

stated with “full powers and responsxblhnes ” Jarvie .

testified:

- So at a subsequent meeting I refuted a lot of
what [Zemaitis] said, because it was really
the first time I had ever heard what some of

- the allegations might have been. And it was
the first time I had a chance 1o refute any-
thing, to be honest with you. -

Jarvie testified that she felt she had not been
‘given an opportunity to be heard by the Association
“earlier that summer and that she felt “the whole
thing” had been handled “in a very inhumane and
inexcusable manner, asfar asI was concerned. I was
a 15-year employee and I don’t feel that I should
have been treated in the manner that I was treated.”

Jarvie resigned from the Association in May
1988 and subsequently filed for unemployment
compensation. The Association staff did not contest
her claim for unemployment benefits but also did
not inform either the Executive Committee or the
Board of Directors about it.. The Association’s
current president, Jeremiah Regan, chastised Reid
when he leamed of it several months later.

The Press Release. In a press release issued
following the September 2 meeting, the Association
announced the reinstatement of Reid and explained
that the Board of Directors had concluded that there
was “no dishonesty” on Reid’s part.

- Reid was quoted in the release as telling the
Board, “The Insurance Group enjoys an excellent
financial status...the financial security of the Insur-
ance Group can be attributed to following sound
practices in all of its areas of operation, including
investments.” The options trading was described as
“part of an overall hedging strategy for the Group’s
entire investrnent portfolio, designed to protect against

&

an adverse down-turn in the market.” Reid was
quoted as telling the Directors, “losses occurred as a
result of bad calls in predicting what the market
would do... however, gains in other areas of the
Insurance Group’s investment portfolio offset the
losses.” Finally, the release cited an opinion given
to the Board by Reid’s attorney “that there are no
statutes prohibiting investments of this type by an
insurance group or designating them as illegal.”

THE GREELISH REPORT

As directed by the Association’s Board of Direc-
tors, special counsel Greelish presented his reportto -
the Board nine days later in a meeting on September
11. Some directors wanted to “burn the report,”
others wanted an opportunity to review and discuss
it. Gangi recalled that “some {directors] thought

 that they should just destroy it because it was use- -

less.” Although the Association failed to produce
the minutes of this meeting, past-president Margaret
Mueller testified that she “may have” made a motion
to conclude the discussion:

I had very strong feelings about the entire
issue and I felt it was demoralizing for the
Association to continually pit the members
and — against one another and divisive. 1
thought it was unfair to the employees, and .
1 did not believe in excluding them from
everymeeting. They either did something or
they didn’t. If they did, we had just cause to -
fire the individuals. 1 did not believe at that
time we had just cause, so 1 wanted it com-
‘ pleted :

Atitsnextmeeting, on Scptember 18, the Board
of Directors voted to grant the request of the Insur-

- ance Group Trustees to review the report, which -

they did in a meeting on September 23, 1987.
However, that report was never made public, nor
was it turned over to the SCI, which had subpoenaed
it. The Association resisted the subpoena, invoking
its lawyer-client privilege. This claim was upheld
by the Appellate Division of Superior Court, and the



New Jersey Supreme Court declined to review that
decision. The Association’s Board of Directors
refused to waive the privilege, even though the
Insurance Group, whose interests were at the center
of the inquiry, advised the Board that it had no
objection torelease of the report to the Commission.

The Association agreed only to provide the SCI
with the appendix to the Greelish report, which
contained documents already in the possession of
the Commision or information available from other
SOUTCES.
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THE TRUSTEES TAKE CONTROL

Following disclosure of the losses, Reid’s sus- Before, I think we were more or less a review
pension and reinstatement, and other developments body and we would see what was being
atthe NJSBA, the Insurance Group trustees began to done, take the advice of the experts, whether
assert control of their own organization. those were consultants or the administrator,

question some of those things but then take

Formcr Chaxrperson Carolyn Smith wrote to action based on those recommendations.
Reid in the fall of 1987, directing him to list all his The role now of the Trustees is a far more
duties and activities with respect to the Insurance active one, : :

“Group, asking for a detailed accounting of the time - -
he spent on Group business and severely limiting his Smith explained why the Group made these

authority to act on his own. Although the letter was  changes:
marked “confidential,” Reid sentcopies tothe Asso- '

ciation Directors. Reidsaid he did not “specifically " Our growth was phenomenal and it was time
recall” such an action. ' ‘that we have our own full-time insurance

' staffto meet the needs of our members. Itwas

- Slowly, under Smith’s direction, the Insurance simply time and that was really our intention

Group began to assert its independence from the —to establish that. In hindsight, perhaps, it
Association. The Group changed its management. could have been done sooner but it certamly
structure, hired a new full-time director of insur- was time to do that now.
ance, and moved to separate offices in Pennington. :
No staff from the Association now has any duties Trustee Murphy praised the current duector

with the Insurance Group.. Each trustee has a Alan Thornton, and testified:
specific area of responsibility. Trustee James Murphy

testified, “We began 1o meet on a very regular basis I'think we're invery good shape. I think that
as opposed to the previous schedule that we had.” that’ s been our major strength. We've spent
. _ R a tremendous amount of time reorganizing,
Alan Thomnton, current Director of the Insur- andwe've gone independent fully, youmight
- ance Group, described the books and records he say, and the full time staff, we've worked
came into possession of as “sparse at best.” He " very hard at marketing.... We're there as a
testified that one of his first actions as Director was " service. We're not looking to corner the
to hire a part-time accountant “and I think it’s one of market or anythmg like that I tiunk we’rein
t_he better things we’ve done.” Thornton also said a strong posmon
the new auditors “had to reconstruct the records of o :
the Insurance Group so that they could then audit In 1988, Zemaitis reappointed RobertHarney to
them.” _ the Board of Trustees. Zemaitis explained his
: reasons: '

'Carolyn Smith testified about what she saw as a
“changing role” for the Trustees:
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Probably by way of apology. I guess it was
a recognition on my part that it was some-

thing that I did inzterms of not reappointing

him, coming to a beliefthat that was perhaps

a mistake on my part; that this group as any
other — any group, an organization needs

* somebody to be asking questions and prod-
ding and pushing and turning, and if that
was his function, then he probably served a

. way of apology, really. You know, I made a
mistake. 1 listened to someone I ought not to
have, made a decision on something that 1
ought not to have.

‘Harney is no longer a Trustee because he did not

seek re-election to his local school board.

" The Group cumrently has about 186 member
boards. Some of the Group’s portfolio involving
Druz's investments, mostly in long-term limited
partnerships, remains at DWR. All new invest-
ments have been in short-term certificates of de-
posit.

The Audits. Arthur Young withdrew as audi-
tors for both the Insurance Group and the NJSBA in
September, 1987, because the Group refused to
promlse not to sue the firm, and was replaced by
Emst & Whinney. Ironically, Ernst & Whinney
subsequently merged with Arthur Young to form

‘the actounting firm of Emst & Young.

-Emst & Whinney completed its audit of the
Insurance Group’s 1986-87 financial statements in
May, 1988. This audit showed a total realized loss
on investments of $803,733, including a realized

loss of $952,314 from investments in stock index.

options. The audit also shows a total fund deficit
0f$864,821. The audit for fiscal year 1987-88,
dated February 2, 1989, showed a fund deficit of
$634,691.

. After disclosure of the losses in 1987, several
persons made public statements that the fund had

good purpose for the group and it was by

suffered no loss of “principal.” Neither representa-
tives of Arthur Young nor of Emst & Whinney
agreed with that conclusion. George Duva, of Emst
& Whinney, in fact, testified that the Group’s finan-
cial statements indicate that “there was loss of
principal” under a definition that “the cost of the
investment was somehow lost.” Arthur Young
partner Edward Cupoli did not believe the concept
of “principal,” such as in the corpus of an endow-
ment fund, was applicable to this case. :

INSURANCE DEPARTMENT OVERSIGHT
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The statute authorizing formation of the Insur-
ance Group requires the Department of Insurance to
approve the bylaws and risk management regula-
tions of the insurance pools and gives to the Depart-
ment oversight responsibility to establish reporting
requirments. The Department is also given the
authority to advise pools if it feels that they are
becoming financially unstable and to lmpose reme-
dial measures,

Richard Lofberg, insurance consultant to three
of the other seven joint school board insurance pools
in New Jersey, explained the reasons for these
oversight responsibilities:

We felt that it was necessary that someone
‘approve the operations aof the pools. There
‘had to be regulatory authority. These were
public entities, public funds being used, and
someone had to have the rtght of control and
review,,.

Despite these oversight powers and directions,
the Insurance Department’s activity, until recently,
was limited to initial review of the groups’ bylaws.
Then-Special Deputy Commissioner David Grubb,

in an SCI interview, acknowledged the inaction of

the Department and attributed it to several factors,
including a lack of staff, absence of authority to
promulgate regulations, and absence of a co-moni-
toring function by the Department of Community



Affairs, which Grubb noted was very active in
establishing oversight of municipal insurance pools.
Since the Group’s investment losses, however, the
Department has taken active steps to enforce report-
ing requirements and perform its oversight func-
tion.

Lofberg testified about the oversight actually
provided by the Insurance Department:

- The Insurance Department is now perform-
ing an active role in oversight. They did nor
do sofor several years.... That situation is no
longer true, I'm thankful to say. Mr.

* Grubb..was specifically charged with this
area. He has promulgated guidelines, he has
promulgated the reporting requirements. He
now has an assistant..who is actively in-
volved in obtaining information and moni-
toring all of the pools.

OTHER POOLS

Lofberg described the kind of meetings held by
the pools with which he is associated:

South Bergen is held in the school [b]oard

 offices, Rutherford Board of Education. PIP
[Pooled Insurance Program of New Jersey]

- is normally held in the school board service
offices of the Butler Board of Education,
with an exception that about once a year we
meet in the diner down the street. MOC-
ESCOM [Morris County Educational Serv-
ices Commission] meets either in [its] office,
oronce ayear they meet atthe Italian Chalet,
where we have 100% turnour.

Q. Are there ever any overhight stays in-
volved?
A. No.

Q. With the exception of the meetings thar
yow’ve already referred to, are meals pro-
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vided at the meermgs?

A. No. Rutherford, they spring for danish.
The PIP, the diner, I think the administra-
tors pay for those. MOCESCOM , somebody
springs for danish at MOCESCOM.

Q. What about llquor?
A. No.

Q. Withthe exception probab!y attheltalian
-~ Chalet?
A.Right,andl believe by custom that’ s lim-
“ited to one drink.

Lofberg discussed how the three pools handle
their investments:

All of them are limited strictly to the pur-
chase of government obligations as author-
ized by the Office of Investment Council....
There can be essentially no stock invest-
ment, there can be no corporate bond invest-
ment, there can be nothing except invest-
ment in obligations of the United States
Government. '

Lofberg also described how, at the time the first
pool — South Bergen — was being formed, the di-
rectors, after selecting a bank to act as investment
manager, went to the investment officers and said,
“Gentlemen, we want to make certain the invest-
ments are proper....you contact the Office of Invest-
ment Council and get in writing their criteria.”

This pool received a response dated February
29, 1984 from Director Machold of the Division of
Investment enclosing the same memorandum inter-
preting the statute (Exhibit C-3) that was sent to the
Association. While the NJSBA and its Insurance
Group apparently had some difficulty understand-
ing the point of this memorandum, the South Bergen
pool did not.

Q. So the memorandum that Mr. Machold
enclosed with this letter was a source of



guidance to your pools in making their in-
vestments?
A. Oh, yes, definitely.

Q. Just to be clear, have any of these invest-
ments included investments inmutual funds?
A. No.

- Q. What about limited partnerships?
3 A.No

LG

Q. What about index options?
“ A.No.

Q. And what about stocks?
A. No.

= Lofberg testified that all three pools use invest-
ment managers through banks and pay a fee based
upon a percentage of assets, rather than commis-
sions on portfolio transactions.

Reid Minimizes Problem. On September 1,

1987, Reid wrote to the presidents, superintendents .

and business administrators of the Group’s member
boards: :

What losses did occur were the result of a
hedging strategy in which some poor judge-
ment [sic] calls were made in an attempt to
secure losses and to protect against a pre-
cipitous down turn in the market. Those
losses were of profits that were made from
some of the good judgement [sic] callson the
market. It is probably not necessary to
explain that any fund of monies invested may
go up and down within any given course of
time, as do all investments, including U. S
Government backed secunttes
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InOctober 1987, in a speech about the Insurance
Group at the NJSBA s annual convention and work- -
shop in Atlantic City, Reid, who at that time was still
Administrator of the Insurance Group, told the
audience that the Group had realized a gain in the
investment account for the year of about $553,000,
a statement that was not supported by the audits. -

Trustee Burns recalled statements made during
the Atlantic City convention in October 1987:. -

A.lremember [Reid] telling us that if things
had turnedthe other way, thathe would have
been a hero.

Q. Did he ever admit havmg made a mis-
- take?
A. Never.



CLOSING OBSERVATIONS

- The first section of thisreport has focused exten-
sively on Octavius T. Reid and his role in the
investment activities of the NJSBA Insurance Group.
It has been amply demonstrated that at best, Reid
was simply not “minding the store” when it came to
monitoring the Insurance Group’s business. Yetthe
Commission believes that the conduct of Dan Druz
- also merits serious criticism..

- Druz was a branch manager for a major invest-

ment firm, DWR, with all of its technical expertise
and virtually any investment instruments. at his
disposal. Although he had never handled invest-
ménts for an insurance company or any body like the

Insurance Group, he failed to take advantage of his -

firm’s expertise in selecting appropriate invest-
- ments for the Group, choosing instead investment
instruments guaranteed to produce maximum com-
missions for his branch — and thus for himself as
wejll. '

As was his wont, Reid refused to accept respon-
sibility for any of Druz’s conduct, telling the Com-

mission that Druz lied to him. For his part, Druz_

claimed that Dean Witter and its guru, John Mendel-
son, had been “100 per cent wrong.”
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Both assertions may be at least partially accu-
rate. Nevertheless, the fact remains thateven if only
as the result of inattention, Reid gave Druz carte
blanche to gamble with the Insurance Group’s money.
And Reid certainly should have been candid with
the Insurance Group trustees about the types of
investments that were being made and about the
losses that were being suffered. '

Druz, on the other hand, was the professional.
And no matter how sophisticated he claims to have
believed Reid was in the world of finance, he and his
firm had an obligation to make sure that the Insur-
ance Group’s investments were suitable and that its
trustees knew what was going on. Instead, Druz
ignored the written directives of DWR about keep-
ing his clients fully informed and Dean Witteritself,
like Reid, simply let Druz proceed virtually un-
checked and unmonitored. : _ '



PART 11

- The New Jersey School Boards Association |

(NJSBA) is created by statute, is funded largely by
mqndatory dues from all school district boards of
educatlon in the state, and is charged by the statute
thh investigation of educational issues. Although
similar to other special-interest, not-for-profit or-
ganizations from the educational community, the
School Boards Association is the only such organi-
zation in New Jersey created by statute that has what
amounts to taxing authority.

. Under the statute, each school district pays anrual
dues to the Association based on a formula linked to
each board’s current expense budget. The dues are
“for the purpose of defraym g the necessary ex-
penses of the Association.”

The dues in 1989-96 range from $1,226 to
$20,003 for operating school districts. Non-operat-
ing districts pay $250.

Although dues are the source of some 80 percent
of the Association’s income, additional funds are
derived from the annual workshop convention in
Atlantic City and sale of publications and mailing
lists as well as consultant referral lists. Staff nego-
tiators’ salaries are supported by fees for their serv-
. ices.

~ Budget. For the fiscal year ending June 30,

1989, the Association’s budget was $6.95 million.
Dues accounted for $5.6 million or 81% of total
anticipated budgeted revenue. The current budget

THE ASSOCIATION

i "~ BACKGROUND

but only New Jersey and Washington have manda-

tory membership. A survey compiled by the Na-

tional School Boards Association revealed that the

New Jersey Association spent the most per pupil

although it ranked only ninth in number of school _
children within each state :

Governance. Each dues paying district is a
member of the Association and is represented in the
Association by one delegate. These delegates meet
twice yearly in the Delegate Assemnbly, whose June
meeting is considered the annual meeting of the
Association. According to Association by-laws, the
Delegate Assembly is its major policy making body.
Every two years the Delegate Assembly elects a
pre51dent and five ofﬁcers '

The Board of Directors consists of one member
from each of the 21 counties (selected through the
county associations), three members from urban

“boards, one vocational board member, three mem-

(‘89-90) is $7.6 million, the largest of any school

boards association in the nation.

All 50 states (plus the District of Columbia and
the Virgin Islands) have school boards associations
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bers-at-large, and one ex-officio member (non-vot- - -

ing), plus the eight members of the executive com-
mittee, (including the executive director as a non-
voting member). In total, the Board has 37 mem-
bers, two of whom are non-voting, who serve stag-
gered terms of three years. The Board meets ap-
proximately 10 times a year.

The officers and directors receive no compensa-
tion for their services, but are reimbursed for ex-
penses, a subject that will be discussed in detail in
the next chapter. The Executive Committee con-
sists of the president, the immediate past president,
five other elected officers and the Association’s
Executive Director (non-voting member).



The Association’s executive director heads a
paid staff of more than 90 employees. InFY 1988-
89, the Association spent $3.9 million on salaries
and employee benefits. The Association has its
main office in Trenton and three field offices.

Purpose of the Association. The SCI heard
much testimony from NISBA members about their
view of the purpose of the Association.

‘Board of Directors member Charles Robinson
probably summarized it best:

Iviewitas an effective organization. Proba-

~ bly it is_the only organization that really

looks after the interest of local school
districts...it also trains school board mem-

bers and keeps them abreast of current law.

It helps them to conduct their meetings more

‘appropriately. It provides them with the op-

- portunity to gain skill inmany areas, suchas

negotiations. It helps them in conducting

meetings, by giving skill and being able to

work with groups of people. It helps them by

. giving them information about public rela-

‘tions. In short, its continuing in-service

[training], I think, is indispensable. Without
it, no one else is going todo it.
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Current Association President Jeremiah Regan
added:

The...Association plays a vital role in the
growth and development of public educa-
tion in New Jersey by serving as the only
statewide representative of and voice. for

~local school boards. There is no other rep-
resentative for these boards, particularly for
the small boards.... Even the smallest dis-
tricts are circumscribed by state rules, regu-
lations, laws, requirements that are very

 difficultto apply... We are acknowledged as
having the best board member education
program among the 50 states.... Almost all
boards use our services at some point and
it's an advantage to them to know that we
are there when they need us.

A “mission statement” submitted to the SCI by
the Association stated, “NJSBA’s missionis tomeet
the need for a centralized, unifying body which
organizes, informs, trains, services, represents and
leads at the state level the otherwise disparate and
untrained voices of local school board members.”



Thc results of this mvesnganon showed that

d%spite its public funding, the NJSBA acts as a
public agency only when that would be toits benefit.
AL other times, its officials conduct themselves
according to what they believe to be accepted prac-
tices in the business world. Yet even here, the SCI
found a serious lack ofirecordkeeping and fiscal
accountability that no successful business could
afford to tolerate. In this regard, the Association
acts like a “deep pocket” for which no expense is
unjustifiable and no claim too much. The same
Association that continually pled for more funding

fon education in New Jersey used taxpayers’ money

to pay liquor bills at all committee and board meet-
ings, allowed its officers to take their spouses to out-
of-state conventions at Association expense and to
dine lavishly at the best restaurants, never consoli-
dated or examined its own expenses, and exhibited
a decidedly casual approach towards the accounta-
bility of its own personnel — both staff and officers.

The difference between these policies and those
of the State will be examined in detail in the pages
to come.

Claiming status as a “governmental entity,” for
example, the NJSBA enjoys an exemption from the
lobbying disclosure requirements of the State Elec-
tion Law Enforcement Commission. It similarly
claims exemption from the statutory filing fee in
connecnon with disclosure of its legislative agents

'PUBLIC OR PRIVATE?

state’s social security “umbrella.”

On the other hand, the Association until recently
did not seek competitive bids on large projects;
awards to consultants and large purchases were
generally made without any demonstrated bid-seek-
ing. It is not subject to any audit or examination of
books and records by the state. Its annual private
audit is based on standards for a private organiza-
tion. In its expenditures and accounting for meals,
travel and entertainment, Association practices dif- .
fer markedly from those of state government and
from those of rcspon51blc non-profit orgamzatlons ,
as well,

Allowable expenses under state regulations are
“confined to those which are essential to transacting
the official business of the state.” “Emiployees
traveling on official state business are expected to
exercise the same care in incurring expensesthat
they would if traveling on personal business at their
own expense.” No such general philosophy is
advocated at the NJSBA, despite its own statutory
directive to incur only “necessary” expenses. In
fact, the new auditors, Emst & Whinney, in a 1988
management letter to the Association, raised for the

* very first time questions about accounting practices

and activities to the Attorney General’s office. Itis

property taxes in the City of Trenton based on the
exemption in its enabling statute. Its employees are

members of the state pension system, the Associa-

tion is considered a “public employer” for purposes
of unemployment compensation and it is within the
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at the Association and expenditures of public funds
on such items as travel and entertainment.

CONFERENCE COSTS
exempt from income and sales taxes. It does not pay B

The SCI staff reviewed all direct billings to the
NISBA from vendors providing services for confer-
ences and conventions, both in-state and out-of-
state. The review showed that in 1987-88, the
Association paid over $404,700 for costs directly



associated with conventions and meetings, includ-
ing hotels, meals, liquor, travel and registration
fees. However, due to the manner in which the
Association maintains its records, these costs do not
appear together in any identifiable category on any
.budget records kept by the Association. This amount
does not include claims presented on individual
expense vouchers, including Executive Director
Reid’s individual expenses, which are set forth
separately on the chart in Schedule A in the Appen-
dix and which will be discussed later.

Travel. State guidelines require approval for
travel to conferences, training and other business
“meetings. This approval must be obtained from the
agency’s authorized agent under certain specific
circumstances (where the total expenses and atten-
dees are limited and the travel is withinthe U.S.) and
otherwise by the Director of the Division of Budget
and Accounting. Some prior estimate of and justi-
fication for the travel is required,

- The NJSBA does not require independent ap-
-proval of the number of persons attending any
~ function such as the national convention, and'no
expense estimate is required. No independent con-
trol exists for approval of multiple trips to other out-

of-state conferences. There are no guidelines cov-

ering travel by executive staff or officers. Indeed,
these high-level representatives appeared generally
10 approve their own travel.

Transportation. State guidelines require prior
authorization of all air wravel through the state’s
Travel Services Secuon Billing and payment are
ccntrahzsd

" The NISBA does not require prior authoriza-

tion, centralized billing or payment. Airtravel costs

in particular arrive at the business office from a
number of sources at different times. Expense
‘vouchers reviewed by the SCI staff revealed that
while the Association paid many air costs directly to
a travel agency, Reid submitted his own airfare
expenses individually, often months late and on at

least one occasion where the Association had al-
ready paid his airfare directly. For a trip to Paris in
January 1986, Reid in December, 1985, instructed
the business office to pay the travel agency directly
for the ticket of Association President Margaret
Mueller; he submitted an expense voucher for his
own ticket separately, for direct relmbursemcnt to

hlm, in January, 1986.

Advances. State guidelines allow travel ad-
vances with the approval of the Director of the
Division of Budget and Accounting. These ad-
vances may be requested for amounts up to 90% of
anticipated expenditures of more than $300, “over
and above costs of accommodation and regularly
scheduled transportation for which state credit ar-
rangements may be provided.” These guidelines
require submission of travel expense vouchers ac-
counting for “actual expenses” within 30 days.
Further advances may be denied if these procedures
are not followcd.

 The NISBA permitted Reid to accumulate ad-
vances of as much as $16,000 with no prior authori-
zation or approval, no breakdown or detailed re-
quest as to anticipated expenditures, no requirement
limiting advances to those expenditures for which
no alternative credit arrangements were possible, no
time period for submission of accounting for travel
advances, and no possible foreclosure of additional
advances. In fact, any officer or employee wishing
an advance simply submitted a request to the busi-
ness office, which merely issued a check and re-
corded the amount advanced. Although Associa-
tion policy required an accounting within 10 days,
this directive was rarely followed.

Lodging. State regulations require the use of
hotels offering government discount rates unless
extenuating circumstances require other arrange-

ment_s.
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The SCI found no evidence that NJSBA staff
and officers sought government rates except on one
of Reid’s early vouchers, before he became execu-



tive director. In fact, Association policy for reim-
bursement of hotel rooms “at rates considered mid-
fare” can apparently be.waived by the executive
director for himself and officers. At the 1988
national convention in New Orleans, for example,
‘President Zemaitis and Reid each stayed in a suite at
the New Orleans Hilton costing $290 daily; other
officers stayed in rooms at $95 to $115 daily.

5 Subsistence. State guidelines allow per diem
reimbursement for meals involving travel and over-
mght lodglng Actual reasonable costs are reim-
bursed, but receipts are required whenthe per diem
cost for meals exceeds $25. For conventions, con-
ferences, training, and seminars, the per diem can-
not exceed $25 per day. -

NJSBA officers are permitted to take their spouses
(or a “guest”) to out-of-state national and regional -
conferences at Association expense. The policy
adopted by the Board of Directors in September,
1985, reads: “Travel, food or other expenses for the
officer’s spouse or guest shall be reimbursable by
the Association for national or regional meetings.”

~ Pursuant to contractual provisions, the Association

The NJ SBA has no spending limits on meals for

its officers for travel involving conferences and
conventions. The Association does have per diem
limits for its staff but, in practice, these do not apply
to the executive director or officers. They also do
not apply to meals charged to a “lobbying function.”

(Lobbying will be discussed in a separate chapter.)-

Association staff limits currently are $25 for dinner
except $35 for the annual Atlantic City workshop
and for out-of-state travel. However, when staff is
in a group that includes officers, members of the
Board of Directors or the executive director, no
limits or guidelines apply.

Meal Allowances. State guidelines authorize
meal allowances for those situations not involving
travel or overnight lodging.

_'The NJSBA also gives meal allowances, but in

larger amounts than those authorized for state -

employees. Again, the limits can be waived and in
any event do not apply to “lobbying” activities.

Spouse Travel. State regulations do not permit

reimbursement of air fare and meals for spouses or
guests.
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alsopaysexpenses of the executive director’s spouse
for travel to various out-of-state conventions. -

The Association has paid airfare to conventions
in San Francisco, New Orleans, Las Vegas, Anaheim
and the Virgin Islands for spOurses or guests of -
Association officers. In 1988, the Association paid
$2,120 for airfare tothe national convennon in New
Orleans for spouses. -

Association Officer Gangi’s opinion was that it -
is appropriate for the Association to pay for spouses’
expenses: “I think it’s a common practice...not only
in the Association, but even in the commercial
field” He testified, “Y find after work hours, it
brings me as close to what I am in my living
conditions at home.” ' ' '

Former officer Perma Fortoloczki tesuﬁed
however:

1 had never found it necessar} 10 have some-
one with me to carry out the busmess of the
Association when I wenton a trip.... Andl
did not see that we should be spending tax-

payer dollars for that. That, to me, seemed
like afringe benefit,and if the chief executive
officer had negotiated that in his contract, so
be it. Perhaps that was coming to him, but in
terms of the membership, I was not in favor
of that kind of a benefit.

Entertainment. The state considers “entertain-
ment” a personal charge and not an allowable travel :
expense for state employees



At the NJSBA, “entertainment” expenses dur-
ing travel are routinely reimbursed for staff, officers
. and directors entertaining each other or representa-

tives of other state associations, and “entertain-
“ment” of prospective and current vendors and serv-
ice contractors. Entertainment at the Association
‘almost always includes liquor. (The Association’s
Board of Directors recently acted to substitute the
euphemism “entertainment” for the words “liquor”
or “alcoholic beverage” in reimbursement guide-
lines.) One staff personis usually designated to pick
“up checks on such occasions and to seek reimburse-
ment on an expense voucher.

Executlve Du‘ector Reid testified to his under-
standin g — an erroneous one — that state agencies
_permit reimbursement for alcoholic beverages. He
said:

I've been 1o Junctions of state agencies where
- they'vebeenserved andl know the individu-
- als aren’t paying for them personally.

- Q. What state agencies are you talking about?
A. Virwally all of them. I mean, if you ask
me to pinpoint a particular reception right
now, I couldn’t give you one. I'd have to

= think about it.

DR L

- Q.Doyouknowwhether school districts pay
- for —reimburse for alcoholic beverages?
- A.1 know that school districts do, yes.

Q. Are there any guidelines at the Associa-
tion as 1o setting a limit on the amount of
reimbursement for alcoholic beverages?

A. I can’t say for certain. I mean, I can’t
picture in my mind right now a reference to

. the policy that say sexactly that.

Q. Do youthinkitis appropriate that the As-
socigtion uses its funds to retmburse for
liquor expenses?

A. Yes.
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Travel Vouchers. State regulations require
monthly submission of travel vouchers (with some
exceptions) and certification of the travel expense
invoice by the employee that the invoice is correct in
all respects and that the amount charged was actu-
ally paid. Each expense itern must be listed chrono-
logically; failure to properly complete the form may
result in delay of payment. Full completion of the
voucher is required. Certification by the agency’s
approval officer that the expense items were checked
and verified, are in conformity with the travel regu-
lations, and are approved for payment is also re-
quired. :

The NISBA requires the submission of travel
vouchers within 60 days, but this investigation showed
that the Association’s executive director did not -

'submlt vouchers for his expenses until months or

even years later. Furthermore, late vouchers sub-

~ mitted after the 60 day period often did not show

whether they had received Executive Commitiee
approval as required by Association policy.

IN-STATE MEETINGS

State guidelines authorize payment for meals
and refreshments (except alcoholic beverages) at
officially scheduled receptions, meetings or confer-
ences for groups consisting primarily of persons -
who are not employees of the sponsoring agency.
Contrary to Reid’s assertion, liquor expenses at
these meetings are not reimbursed by the state.
Where the anticipated cost of the function is over
$300, prior authorization is required. This approval
form must list the purpose and justification or bene- -
fit to the state of the function, the make-up of the
group attending, and the names and titles of any
agency employees included in the group,

The NJSBA pays the costs of all meals and
refreshments, including liguor, for meetings, con-
ferences and receptions. No .prior approval or
authorization is needed, projected costs are not
required and there is no prior scrutiny by an inde-



pendent control person.

Former President Bernard Kirshtein recalled
that when he first became an officer of the NJSBA,
most officers’ meetings were held at Association
'hcadquaners in Trenton. He chose this location
because 1t was “cheaper, pure and simple, lessex-
pensxve

" also recalled how about five years ago meetings
were held at the Association offices and the food
was catered “and for whatever reasons, it was
sfépp'ed.” She said she did not know why.

Executive Committee meetings also always
include dinner and alcoholic ‘beverages. Other
~ expenses reimbursed for officers include overnight
stays in connection with evening or next-morning
meetings. The Board of Directors usually meets
monthly from September through June; the Execu-
tive Committee meets at least monthly, including

and, you know, the issue is done with, now let’s go
on to the next issue.”™

Board member Mark Finklestein spoke about
drink tickets that are distributed “seemingly at ran-

~ dom” to local board of education members in atten-

Business Manager Kathleen Donoher -

durmg the summer. Various committees of the -

Association hold theirown dinner meetings at which
liquor is always reimbursable. Liquor or “lounge”
charges are often submitted individually and thus do
not show up on the direct bill for the meal. These
charges are also sometimes found on a room bill for
an officer who stays overnight.

The NJSBA has a policy reimbursing expenses
of “all official attendees™ at board meetings, includ-
ing members, alternates and guests. The justifica-

tion for this policy was to eliminate the Associa-
tion’s administrative costs for billing these cxpcnses '

to the persons incurring them.

Not only does the Association buy drinks for all
attendces before meetings, butit also pays for liquor
and other refreshments at the traditional “presi-
dent’s suite” after the meeting. Former President
Zémaitis described the purpose of the president’s
hospitality suite after Board of Directors meetings
as an opportunity to “kind of wind down a little bit”
after“dynamlc discussions.... Iliken it somewhatto
local boards of education — a few members after-
wards getting a cup of coffee, a drink or something,
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dance at various committee meetings.  He also

described the annual president’s recepnon in At]an-

tic City:

Oh, it was — it was beauwtiful. It was very
lavish and I think the Board of Directors
meeting as well as the president’ s gathering
is something to behold in terms of hors d'
oeuvres and liquor, very similar to the
gatherings after the Board of Directors

- meetings that we have, you know, at our
regular Board of Directors meetings. Just
about anything that you wish to drink or eat
and unlimited quaniities are available.

The following is a representative sample of
charges reviewed during this investigation. Similar
amounts appear consistently in connection with
almost any event hosted by the Association in recent
years. The expenditures demonstrate a consistent
lack of frugality in the use of public funds.

» One Association officer recently submitted
a claim of $88 for a round trip flight from Newark -
to Atlantic City to attend a meeting in May, 1989,
He submitted an additional claim of $53.33 for
rental of a car once he arrived in Atlantic City.

‘Another NJSBA officer billed the Associa-
tion $125 for a helicopter ride from Atlantic City to
New York City to attend a meeting in May, 1989.

+ A Board of Directors meeting in December,
1988 cost the Association $6,056.62, including 55
dinners ($1,870), 38 overnight rooms at the Hyatt -
Regency in Princeton, liquor expenses before the
meeting ($228) for board members and Association
staff, and liquor and food (3448.25) for the “Presi-
dent’s reception” after the meeting. =~



+ The New Jersey Association hosted a recep-
tion at the national school boards convention in New
Orleans in 1988 that cost $16,403.10. This recep-
~ tion included cocktails and other liquor, iced shrimp

and oysters on the half shell, and roast beef. The tab
(Exhibit 11) for this reception included the services
of bartenders, “shuckers” and carvers. The recep-
tion at the 1989 national convention in Anaheim,
California was less extravagant, featuringroastbeef,
iced shrimp and oysters on the half shell at a cost of
$9,085.93. Almost $2,000 of this was related to
- liquor expenses.

+ Foran Executive Committee meeting on Feb-
ruary 26, 1987, at the Hyatt Regency in New Brun-
swick the Association paid for 10 dinners (average
- cost $20), plus shrimp cocktail, oysters, Caesar
salads, bisque, desserts, wine with dinner (three
bottles at $33 each), and cocktails for a total of
$558 18, including an $84 tip. The Association also
paid $112.17 for overnight accommodations for

Rmd.

~ o AtaLegislative Committee meeting on Feb-
ruary 10, 1987, the Association not only paid for 43
- dinners ($28.50 each) but also four bottles of Korbel
Brut champagne ($23 each) at dinner, and cocktails
before dinner ($97). Reid submitted a claim for
$100.50 for drinks, bringing the total cost of the
eventto $1,738. |

'« Atameeting of the Business Support Commit-
tee on February 4, 1987, the Association paid for 20

dinners ($22.50 each) wine at dinner (5 bottles at
-$14 each), other drinks at dinner ($17.50), and
cocktails before dlnncr ($97.90). The total bill was
$850.16.

 AtanUrban Boards Committee annual spring
dinner and reception on May 27, 1988, to which 18
high school students were invited, the Association
paid for a bartender, 40 drink tickets ($4 each) in
advance, roast sirloin and poached salmon dinners
(the students were fed fried chicken and fried shrimp),
and 16 bottles of wine ($14 each) placed on the

tables. The total cost was $3,407.04,

» A guest check from an Executive Commiitee
meeting on August 28, 1987, shows that the Asso-
ciation paid $320 for seven persons (nearly $46 per-
person) including five bottles of wine at $25 each;
with clams casino and oysters on the halfshell as
appetizers before dinner.

» At one Executive Committee meeting (for
which no minutes could be found) on April 20,
1987, the Association paid for six dinners ($31
each), drinks ($55.75) and cigars. Two officers,
Mueller and Zemaitis, also stayed overnight. The
total bill was $476.03. |

» Ten days later, another Executive Committee
meeting resulted in a bill for nine dinners ($28.95
each) of “shrimp cocktail/filet mignon/lobster” plus
liquor ($19), for a total $389.97. Two officers
submitted separate “entertainment” claims totalling

$38.

» Forthe 1987 national convention in San Fran-
cisco, the Association paid $10,735.76 in hotel
expenses; at least $9,000 in airfare; and an addi-
tional $7,639.58 to Reid in claimed expenses. None
of these expenses were subject to any prior estimate
or justification, or any subsequent consohdatlon or
Teview.

MISCELLANY

Personal Telephone Calls, The state does not
pay for any personal telephone calls. Personal use
of a state telephone or telephone credit card mustbe
reimbursed.

The NJSBA pays for personal telephone calls
relating to non-Association business of its officers.

‘When the Association’s business office billed an
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Association officer for $42 in personal phone call
charges from his room bill at the New Orleans
Hilton during the national convention in March,



1988, Executive Director Reid sent the bill back to
the-business office with the followmg note dated
Apnl 25, 1989:

) “T he phone calls were for the necessary

lunch at the Bond Street Club on October 20, 1987,
that included escargot as an appenzer '

+ Jarvie and two officers charged the Associa- -
tion $84 for a lunch at the Bond Street Club on July

2, 1987 that included crab cocktail, shrimp COCkIall

& conduct of [this officer’s] business from

& which hewas separated as aresult of attend-
~  ingtohisobligations as anofficer by attend-

ing the national conference. Therefore, those

¥ chargesshould be absorbed by the NJSBA.”

‘% Reid testified that the officers put alot of time in

arid “they are the only public officials that don’t get -

compensated.” He called the officers public offi-
- cials (“they are elected by the public”) because they
are originally local school board members.

Retreats. State guidelines for retreats encour-
age the use of state facilities and otherwise require
- obtaining at Jeast three telephone quotes from ven-
dors. - |

Evidence reviewed in this investigation indi-

cated no attempt by the NJSBA to minimize costs -

associated with its annual'retreat for officers which
in 1987 was held at the Meadowlands Hilton and in
1988 at the East Rutherford Sheraton. At the
Executive Committee retreat at the Meadowlandsin
1988, the Association paid $652 for 20 theatre
tickets for officers and their spouses to attend a
Broadway show.

and clams on the half shell as appetizers.

Reid testified that if a meal attended by officers
and staff is “for a business purposc, then reim-.
bursement is appropriate.

Q.Is there a policy at the Association as to
. when it’s appropriate for the Assocmnon to

pay for staff meals?
A.Ican’t refer to a specific policy,

Reid testified that there are no guidelines as to
what constitutes a business purpose. “Our practice
has been to use common sense in that regard, and I
guess we are not incredibly bureaucratic, but there
hasn’t been, that I am aware of, any question about:
abuse in that regard.” He testified, “We are accom-
plishing alegitimate purpose of the Association and

it's an exercise in judgment and discretion.”

“Workmg Lunches.” State guidelines specifi-

cally prohibit expenditures for meals and: other
functions held primarily for the benefit of agency
officials andfor employees, including “working

lunches” and staff meetings (except in connection

with legitimate overtime work).

This investigation produced evidence of fre- -

quent “working lunches” mvoIvmg NISBA staff
and officers.

:3» Reid, his secretary Denise Fitzgerald and
Jarvie charged the Insurance Group $63.87 for
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Staff Largesse. State guidelines prohibitreim-
bursement for social functions held primarily for
staff, but in December, 1988, the NISBA reim-
bursed Reid over $2,000 for costs associated with -
the staff Christmas party. Association records indi-
cate that in prior years the Association paid costs
associated with the staff Christmas party, mcludmg
an open bar, disc jockey and door prizes.

The As_soc_iation also paid $800 in June, 1988,
for 20 memberships to the Total Woman Fitness
Center in Morrisville, Pa., for what the NJSBA'

called its “Fit & Well Program ”

Receipts and Recordkeeping. State guide-
lines require the keeping of a “memorandum of ex-
penditures properly chargeable to the state, noting
each item at the time the expense is incurred, to-
gether with the date.” Asthese guidelines note, “in-



formation thus accumulated will be available for the
proper preparation of travel expense vouchers.”

The NJSBA has no such requirement.

State guidelines require original receipts. The
NIJSBA does not and, in fact, any kind of “receipt”’
is accepted. Thus Reid was able over the years to
submit his cardmember copy as receipts for Ameri-
can Express expenses and submit the American
Express billing copy again as a receipt when he
claimed the expense a second time. On other
vouchers, he submitted as “receipts”™ for air travel
various pieces of paper connected with the airline
ticket purchasing process. Sometimes these “re-
ceipts” show nothing more than a price, and do not
show destination, method of payment, date pur-
- chased, or other detail. By submitting various
versions of a “receipt” for the same expense, he thus
was able to receive duplicate payments for a single
expense on several occasions, Although Associa-

tioni policy requires receipts for all items over $25, _

SCI that she and another Association staff member
had taken one officer and one board member out to
dinner after the latter two had come to Trenton to
testify before the Staté Board of Education. Fitzger-
ald testified that she charged the meal on her card
“because that’s what is customarily done if we take
an officer or a board member out.”

Bids. Unlike the state government, until a
recent change in policy the Association had no re-

" quirement for bidding purchases or services. The

Association staff members were able to claim the

. maximum mea! allowance of ($35) for dinners at
conferences without submitting any receipts.

* Accountability. Itisimplicitin the state regu-
lations that each state employee submits and ac-
counts for his or her own expenses. The NJSBA has
no such requirement. This investigation revealed
many instances in which Association representa-
tives submitted claims mixing their own expenses
with those of other Association representatives.
Margaret Mueller, the Association’s president from
1984 10 1986, ook frequent trips out-of -state to con-
ferences while she was president and alsoduring the
two-year period she was past president. Her ex-
penses for these conferences are frcquently found
on Reid’s vouchers.

Executive Secretary Fitzgerald submitted a
voucher claiming $124.60 for a transaction at Dia-
mond’s Kent Cafe in Trenton. A credit card receipt
was attached, but there was no justification on the
voucher to explain the claim. Fitzgerald told the
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purchase of the Association’s cars, forexample, was
once directly made by the executive director for list
price with no discount to the Association.

In 1986, Reid entered into an agreement to co-
produce a television show, but no written contract
was ever formalized. Records show the Association
paid over $73,000 in production costs for 17 pro-
grams between July 25, 1986, and October 17, 1988.
Minutes of the Executive Commitiee first indicate
discussion of this show in October 1987, more than
a year after Reid received a proposal for the series
from a vocational-technical school district board
member. This proposal contains an estimate of
costs, which were eventually overspent by about
$15,000. No bids were ever solicited, no contract
was ever signed, and apparently no limit on extra
costs was ever formalized.

The producer of this show was also listed as a
guest on Reid’s expense vouchers at various meals,
including meals in other states. In SCI testimony,
Reid said he could not “remember specificaily” the
purpose of one such lunch in San F_ranc:sco in
October, 1986, with the producer of this show, “It
could have been any one of a mllhon dlfferent top-
ics,” he said. :

OVERSIGHT
None of the NISBA officers éver appeéred to

have much concern with expenses.or doing any but -
the most cursory examination of vouchers. For



instance, Finance Officer Didimamoff testified that -

he generally sees a summary bill of expenses of
Executive Committee meetings. “The total doesn’t
have the full detail breakdown,” he said. He also
noted that certain meeting expenses “could be on
somebody’s American Express card and I didn’t see
the details.” And the Executive Committee as a
whole does not review officers’ expenses either.

. Association President Regan testified that he

- gets a computer printout of the total of all bills paid

and checks issued during the month, but he does not

getany of the back-up detail. “The only officer that

sees the vouchers or would see any of this would be
VP for Finance. The rest of us don’t.”

Didimamoff, who testified that in most cases he
~ reviews Association payments before the checks go
out, also testified, “Vouchers are reviewed after the
fact for a number of reasons, because we want to
reimburse these especially voluminous vouchers as
expeditiously as possible.” “Review” of vouchers
means that he sees only the first page of the voucher
but no back-up. He testified, “My review is basi-
cally perfunctory, to make sure that staff is doing its
job and fulfilling its responsibilities.”

By Chairman Patterson:

Q. Most of the items, other than the routine
ones, you don’t know whether the person
. had dinner, went to the hotel, really, unless
you happened to be there?
“A. That kind of thing I wouldn’t srop, no. I
‘assume up front that everybody is honest...

" Former President Zemaitis testified that ex-

penses associated with out-of-state travel came to

“hisattention “perhaps in a global way in terms of the

budget presentation...but not in a specific way.”

Former President Mueller testified, “T actually would

. nothave seen the expenses, however. I1depended on
the staff to do that.”

- Executive Director Reid compared Association
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spending to what he assumed “the rest of the state
government is doing.” He testified:

1look at functions that state agencies put on,
I look at what other Associations do, I look
at what non-profit groups do. Ilook ar what
federal departments have done and the monies
they spend. I don't think in any time I've
ever looked at that that we stand out in the
sense of being drastically different from any

" of those other agencies or groups or depart-
ments.

Q. With respect to your expenses, do you
consider that you are—that the Association
is spending public funds when it pays fora
‘certain expense?

A. I most certainly do. 1 look at that in a
variety of ways and I said to you earlier that
I compared that with how other public agen-
cies spend public funds and what I see them
doing andl assume that if we are somewhere
in the middle of that, we are okay.

Q. Are there any studies that you've ever
undertaken in this area, where you’ve writ-
ten something down?

A. No.

Q. Have you looked at practices of state
_agencies?
A.Well, I think I said earlier I haven tdone
a formal study. We are talking about an
informal kind of comparison, an awareness
of what other people are doing.

Q. Wearing your hat as a taxpayer, is there
“any point atwhich or doyou believe that any
of the expenses have been excessive that you
have incurred?
A. I would be very happy with what we’ve
done. I would be extremely happy, because
~ as a taxpayer, I would be saying to me, as
* executive director, that we've done a phe-
nomenal job in the kinds of things that we



have pushed to save school boards money,
effect economies, to institute systems that
have a difference, to secure additional state
aid that they wouldn’t have gotten, to fight
for federal appropriations that wouldn't
- have been there.

Q. In other words, you look at the total
picture?

A.1 absolutely look at the toal picwure. I
- think the biggest mistake I could make would
be to be penny wise and pound foolish and to
look solely at the dollar amount we are
expending and not think in terms of the

relationship of what we are getting in return

for it. That litany would take me hours.

Asked if the kind of spending would be tolerated

in local school districts, Reid responded:
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The difficulty in answering that question is
- we are

comparing apples and
bananas...because a local school district
doesn’t have the same purpose. Local school
districts don’t lobby [as] we do. :



o
%

* Lobbying with state legislatures and with Con-
gress is an important function of any interest group
and, indeed, is one of the principal means by which
legislators can be educated on various complex
. issues they confront daily. There is nothing inher-
ently evil about the practice solong as both lobbyists
and lawmakers understand and accept the true pur-
pose of the activity.

. InNew Jersey, lobbyists in the private sector are
restricted in their activities only by those statutes
requiring registration and reporting of certain ac-
tivities. However, lobbyists in the public sector,
such as legislative liaison officers for individual

- departments of state government, need not register

or report on their activities but they are prohibited
absolutely from spending public funds to wine and
‘dine legislators. And they certainly cannot spend
public money entertaining colleagues in their own
agencies under the gunise of lobbying, even if a
legislator or legislative aide happens to be along.

~ Since the formation of the New Jersey‘ School
Boards Association, it has been understood that one

of its main functions is to represent the interests of -
local boards in the continuing dialogue that is the

legislative process. Inrecent years, however, as the
_ 8CT’s investigation has uncovered, the NJSBA has
permitted its officers and staff to incur expenses

under the guise of lobbying that are clearly inappro-

priate for an organization funded by the taxpayers.
On the one hand, the Association enjoys several

statutory exemptions because of its non-profit or-

“governmental” status, yet it spends lavishly enter-
~ taining those whose views it seeks toinfluence. And
inithe process, some staff members — especially
Executive Director Reid — and some officers used
the convenient umbrella of lobbying to cover any

LOBBYING

conceivable expense with little regard for the pro-
priety or amount of the expenditure. No one —
neither Jarvie nor the Executive Committee —
questioned any of those expenses. The Executive
Committee never even saw detailed expense vouch-
ers. ' : a

. No written guidelines exist at the Association to
cover-expenses charged to lobbying, which is spe-
cifically exempt from the meal limits otherwise -
applicable to the NJSBA staff. Expense vouchers of
both the executive director and officers, past and
present, rarely identified any specific topics of dis-
cussion at a lunch or dinner.

Former Executive Director Newbaker recalled:

There were always some people on the Ex-
ecutive Committee who were concerned about
expenditures in general. They felt that the
School Boards Association should not be
spending beyond the means of the way.
school boards, for example, would spend,
and entertainment expenses rank way down
[at] the bottom of most school boards’ ex- -
penditures.... And there were others who
condoned and supported that kind of
expenditure...they would justify it as being
necessary and..just a price one had 1o pay,
that you certainly couldn’t take a state sena- -
*tor to McDonald' s for lunch.

Newbaker continue’d:_ '

...[W]e,on one hand, wanted to be effective.
On the other hand, there was a problem of

. legitimate expenditures, and often, when
- bills would come in where our lobbying staff



had entertained assembly people or sena-
tors, the bills, compared o other controlled

- .costs in the Association, were way off the
mark.,

" The FRN Conference. The annual Federal
Relations Network (“FRN”) conference usually held
each January in Washington, D.C., at the start of the
congressional session is considered a major lobby-
ing affair with the state’s representatives in Wash-
ington. It is attended by local representatives from
eachcongressional district, Association officers and
some Association staff including the executive di-
rector. For instance, for the Janvary 1986, FRN
conference, the NJSBA paid $2,085 in room depos-
its and $4,683.35 in room bills directly to the hotel.
In June, 1987, more than a year later, Reid claimed
an additional $3,892.78 in expenses for this confer-
ence.

President Jeremiah Regan was concerned about
the appropriateness of five Association representa-
tives and their spouses attending the inauguration of

George Bush in January, 1989:

Well, I was called by Ted who said that they
had invitations from the Republican State
Committee to — or whoever was chairing
this thing in the State of New Jersey—for he

- and I to go to Washington for the inaugura-
tion. Well, since the last one occurred four
years ago, obviously I had no experience in
it so I said, “Well, the two of us, I guess. If
ir's appropriate, why not?” Subsequent to
that, I found out that there were more than
just Ted and myself going. By the time |
found out, I thought the number was too high

and there was — I called it — brought it to

‘the attention of the entire Executive Com-
mittee because.. was not comfortable with
the number of people going and my projec-
- tion of costs for the whole project...the Ex-
ecutive Committee thought it was appropri-
ate and since all of the leading lights of the
Republican Party of New Jersey would be

down there that it would be appropriate in
connection with lobbying activities and that
kind of thing so we went.

Regan testified, “Ithink it would have probably
been worthwhile for Ted and myself. Beyond that
I don’t see...I would not do it again.” He did not
know the exact source of the tickets. The Associa-
tion did not pay the expenses of staff spouses except
for Rc:d’ :

Reid’s Claims. Reid testified that the members
of the Assembly and Senate Education Committees
are the legislators with whom he has the most
contact, yet his expenses claimed numerous con-
tacts with other legislators and their staffs. In
addition to paying many claims for such meals, both
in New Jersey and at out-of-state conventions, the
Association has also paid claims submitted by Reid
for meals with other lobbytsts and with employees
of state government.

Reid explained these claims:

If, for example, we are working together on
- a project, I might very well offer to do it as
a matter of goodwill.

-Q. Do you think it's appropriate to pay for
lunch for a siaff person from the attorney
general’s office?

A.Yes, I do. Yes, sure. Can't think of a
reason why it wouldn’t be.

Reidexplained one claim for amealata Burling-

~ ton County restaurant as being in connection with

84

“another one of my volunteer activities.” As for his
meals with other lobbyists, Reid responded, “sup-
pose you have a lobbyist from a non-profit
organization...they have a very limited budget. The
Association could afford it.”

No Recordkeeping. Reid told the SCI that he
did not keep a record of the meetings he had with
legislators and others as the Association’s chief



lobbyist, noting that many such meetings were
“spontaneous.”

Q. When you say that possibly 99 percent of
the time you pick up the tab when it's a
meeting associated with a legislative con-
tact, why do. you pick up the tab or the
Association picks up the tab? '

A. Well, you can look at it as I'm David .

coming to Goliath. I'm effectively courting
their favor. I'm trying to get them to see our
point of view and if, inproviding an environ-
ment inwhichl have an opportunity for them

Q. Wouldyou be able to consult any records

- that would tell you that?

A. I might be. I can’t give you a definitive
answer to that, It's two years ago, two-and-
a-half years ago.

Q. As a taxpayer, would you consider it ap-
propriate for a lobbyist to spend this amount

of money on a contact? _ '
A. Yes. I think I answered that question
before. As a taxpayer, I wouldn’t ask that -
simple question. What I would ask as an
informed taxpayer is, if you are spending

‘that kind of money, what am I getting in
return for it? What are you doing for the
public? _ o

to listen while I make the pitch as the advo-
cate for the Association, it requires me to
effectively buy them some lunch so thatI can
get that time isolated with them to push that
cause, then I find that is something worth-
while doing. I do that very deliberately.

The NJSBA does not segregate expenses espe-
cially identifiable to the lobbying function. And .
: . since there is no centralized billing function, there is
The following dialogue isillustrative of thekind  no accountability for those expenses.
of contact claimed, the lack of recordkeeping for B '

that contact, and Reid’s explanation of the expense.

Q. There is a notation on your expense
voucher for the date of 2127186 for a meal at
Lorenzo’s (a Trenton Restaurant) in the
amount of 3206 with two senators and an
aide. I was interested if you could tell us who
the senators were and whether there was -
specific legislation discussed at that meal?
A.No, 1 can’t tell you.
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 TRAVEL ADVANCES

" During the time period covcred by this investi-

gatlon the following policies were in effect at the
Agsoc:lat_lon _

« Advance expense checks may be issued for
official Association business. These monies
shall be properly accounted for in writing
and any excess monies returned to the Asso-
ciation within 10 days upon return.

» Advances will be based onper diem food al-

~ lowances currently in effect and other allow-
~.able out-of-pocket expenses, which must be
noted in the request.

The review of records produced and available in

this investigation showed that for the three fiscal
years reviewed, the Executive Director:

- 1. Requested andreceived atotal of $34,975
in advanccs

© $12,535 in FY 1986

- $10,940in FY 1987
$11,500 in FY 1988

2. Never returned excess advance monies to

- the Association.

.3.. Continuoilsly'can;ied a balance of ad-

vances outstanding and unaccounted for. This
balance reached a high in 1987 of $16,000,
was never lower than $2,900, and averaged
$8,000 for the three years.

4. On numerous occasions, requested and re-
_ceived an advance without having submitted

an accounting for prior advances.
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5. On three occasions (totalling $4,700), re-
quested and received advances not for a

specific conference but “towards expenses”.

6. Received $840 of an advance of $1,000

~ requested on the account of another Asso—

ciation staff mcmber

7. Was never required to account for a
particular advance or to reconcile his ex- -
penses against the purpose for which the
advance had been requested. Expense claims
(including meals unrelated to conferences),
when they were submitted, were applied
arbitrarily by the Association’s Comptroller
(3arvie) to reduce outstanding advance bal-
ances. For example, at the end of the 1986-
87 fiscal year (June 30, 1987), an amount of
$7,373.31 was applied to reduce Reid’s
outstanding advances (which then had a
balance of $10,493.17). This amount
($7,373.31) was the total of three expense
vouchers with claims for transactions that
had occurred in January, 1986, 18 months
earlier. Advances requested and received
for those events had totalled only $4,000.

8. Received credit towards reduction of out-
standing advances from other unrelated forms
of compensation. According to Association
records, Reid’s outstanding travel advance
balance of $14,300 was reduced to $10,300
in June, 1987 by two $2,000 credits for IRA
compensation.

'9. Had an outstanding advance balance of
- $5,268 at the time he became the Associa-
tion’s executive director in 1985. The Ex-



-ecutive Committee did not raise this issue
during the interview before Reid was pro-
moted.

. Although others at the NJSBA requested and
received advances, it was Reid’s account which
showed the most activity. However, the Associa-

tion also permitted its past president, Joseph Ze- -

maitis, to request and receive a total of $4,050 in
advances without ever accounting for them in the
two-year period (1986-1988) he was Association
president. In fact, Zemaitis never submitted ex-
pense vouchers except for mileage while he was
NISBA president. Not until June, 1989, during this
investigation, did he submit any accounting for
these funds. When expense vouchers were finally
submitted by Zemaitis, he too claimed reimburse-
ment for expenses unrelated to the purposes for
which the advances had been requested, and many
claims lacked back-up documentation.

. Zemaitis testified about his reasons for not ac-

. counting for advances:
Laziness, you know, believing that some
" other things took priority, not sitting down
and doing them, given a whole variety of
_reasons, none of which are probably good,
" decent reasons but just failure to do so.

Jarvie Remembers Advances. Former Comp-

troller Jarvie testified that she kept track of advances .

on handwritten records on loose sheets of paper she
kept in her desk drawer. Those records mysteri-
ously disappeared in the summer of 1987. She
testified that she sent letiers to Reid “from time to
time delineating what he owed.” ‘At least one such
letter was also sent to Zemaitis. She also made

' personal calls monthly to all persons who had out-
standing advances

- Jarvie testified that, contrary to Association
policy, it was “very, very seldom” that an advance
was “cleared out” (or accounted for) within 10 days.
She did not consider implementing any changes in
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either this practice or the policy, and as to possible
restrictions on future advances:

I thought about it, but generally, the people
that were the worst offenders were the higher -
ups, and including officers, and if you couldn't
get the officers to respond positively, then it
wasn't fair to expect siaff to respond posi-
nvely .

- Q. Did you ever consider that you, as the
comptroller, had the power to change the
. system?
A. No, I never conszdered rhat I had the
power.

Q. Was there ever any discussion that you're
aware of that a requirement be implemented
. that a new advance could not be obtained
until the prior advance had been cleaned up?
A. It would have been nice. 1 never conszd-
ered it, no.
Q.Didyoueverdiscuss wuh Mr Reidchang-
ing or implementing a new requirement?
A. No.

Q. Why are you smiling?

A. Well, that's sort of like — you don’t ask
 the person who's the problem, how do we -

deal with the problem, because the person .

who has a problem doesn't know he has a

problem, so consequently, he would be the

last person I would ask.

Q.1 guess what I'm trying to get at is if you
had any perception that as the Comptroller,
that you mi ight have the power to zmplement'
such a change? ‘

 A.You have to understand that advances in

* clearing were the bane of my existence since
1973. Executive Directors do not believe
that anybody has any power but they do, but
they, themselves, and they’re certainly not .

- about to listen tomeor anybod} else hop up



and down and say, “Youwill do this and you
willdothat.” They do not take kindly o that.
Neither do officers of the Association who
were the second in procrastination.... |
never had any problem keeping anybody
-else in line. 1 don't know how else to put
‘that.

Jamc testified that she usua]ly received “a bunch”
of vouchcrs at one time from Reid, that she would
apply claimed expenses against advances as di-
rected by Reid, “and generally I either did it by the
burnich or if it wasn’t enough to clear out the clean-
‘ing, I would just journal entry them...and then send
- them.onto the business départment; and there would

“be no money changing hands, in other words, they
‘would just go against the advances.” She testified
that she “tried” to match expenses to advances but
that sometimes at Reid’s direction “it wasn’t neces-
sarily for the same thing that he actually took the
advance for... He'd say, ‘Don’t worry, I'll be
- getting that to you, so I would put 1t against his
advances

Q And this is béCause the d:rectton came
Jrom him to do so?
A.Yes, oh yes

="‘”She lesnﬁed about how she directed the busi-
ness office on December 20, 1985, to prepare a
check for Reidin the amount of $700“as an advance
‘against expenses:” (Exh1b1t C- 51)

Ted had quite a bit ofouzstandmg [ expenses]
and he asked for an advance of $700 against
his money due him, and he said he was in dire
straits and needed the money, and he would

-submit his vouchers immediately after the
holidays to substantiate this.

 Jarvie testified, “I was not exactly happy about
[this form of request] because Ted was & procrasti-
nator and because 1 knew that we owed him money,

1still felt that it would have been more proper to put

the expenses in.’
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She testified, “I mean the man spent money on
a dally basis...he ccrtamly had a lot of money due
him.”

. Q. I that a practice that you would have
tolerated from any staff person below your
level?

A. That's a good question...it never oc-
curred with anyone else.

Reid on two later occasions submitted similar
requests to the business office: On April 13, 1987
requesting $3,000 as an advance “towards my ex-
penses” and on May 4, 1987, requesting $1,000 as
an advance with no stated purpose. (Exhibit C-55)

Reid Explains his Advances. Reid testified
that the purpose of advances is “to provide employ-
ees with money for expenses which they may incur,
so that they don’t have to takc it on as a personal
obligation.” T

In his testimony, Reid acknowledged that cer-
tain expenses when he travels are already paid for,
such as hotel and travel:

. @. And when you go out for meals, are there
not many insiances where you use your
credit card?

AYes.

Q. Could you tell us what you need the cash
for?

A. In many cases I use the cash to make a
payment on the credit card. Keep the credit
card current, because if I was running up
charges incurring association expenses, then
that bill comes due at the end of that month.
If I hadn’t put the expense voucher in andl
was going to take a trip, I would take an
advance and take that advance to pay it to
the credit card company.

Q.Don’t you have a credzt card that the as-
soczanon pays for?



A.Yes,]dof

0. Dbn’t you believe it would be a better

business practice to accountfor the expenses .

from the trip immediately aﬁer. returning
 from the trip?
A. Yes It would be a ben‘er practice.

Reid testified that he kept no records of his own
outstanding advances, but rather “basically depended
on the business oi_'ﬁce_ to do that for me.”

Q. Was there any other staff person who had
this kind of amount outstanding?

A. Certainly not.- No other staff person has
the responsibility I do.

- Reid testified that “in reality probably the only
concernt” he had was not whether he should account
for a prior advance but “always that the amount that
they owed me would be increasing over whatIowed
them.” He also said:

I can state to you categorically that at any

point in time the amount of expenses that I
had paid for out-of-pocket was always in
excess of the amount of money that had been
advanced to me by the Association,

Q. Do you know that, at least on several oc-

casions, to reduce large owtstanding amounts
of your advances, that expenses were used
that did not relate to those advances? _
A.1did not really concern myself with that
kind of detail when I submit my expenses and
submit them 1o the business office. I expected
themio review them andl periodically would
. ask them if there are — how much I owe out
- in advances or whatever, and leave the rest
1o them to take care of.

Q. Well, as the Executive Di}'ector do you
find any problem with an accounting method

whereby there is no matchmg of expensesto

advances?

A.I'mnot really qualified to make that com-
ment, because you are asking me to speak to
accounting practices and prmc:ples and I'm
not really versed in that.

He reiterated, “-The one thing that F'm aware of
is that the total number of business expenses which
incurred on behalf of the Association were alwaysin
excess of the dollar amount of advances that I -
received from the Association.” He said he had “no
idea” whether other orgamzanons pcrmlt a pracncc
of accumulating advances. :

Q. Isn’ ttaking the advances a way of receiv- .
ing an interest-free loan for you?. _

A. It would only be an interest-free loan if I
were getting the money and hadn t already
incurred the expense. :

Tothe contrary, according to Reid, “the interest-
free loan was made from yours truly to NIJSBA,”
because “the expenses far outweighed the advances,
so the advances were here, if you are working on a
continuum, and expenses were always out there.
Advances were wrying to catch up. Neverdid. So,
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no.

Reid recalled periodic remindcrs_ from Jarvie -
about accounting for his advances. .

Q. And it was easier for you to get another
advance as opposed o just taking the time to -
fill out the expense voucher?
A. If you are doing 60 and 70 hours a week
like I am typically doing, like I've been
doing over the last several years, you tend to
want to put your time toward the stuff that is

_ most critical to the Association, rather than
your own personal expenses.... I tended to

. be bogged down with a lot of work. '

Chairman Patterson:

Q. But, the answer really is yes. It was easier
to ask for another advance than it was to—



_[submit a voucher]
A. Oh,. yes, the answer was yes, sir, that's
correct.

# Under proper business accounting procedures
and under state procedures as well, it is the em-
ployee who owes his or her organization money
until he makes a proper accounting for advances.
An organization has no liability for employee busi-
ness expenses until vouchers are submitted by that
employee and approved for payment by tﬁe organi-
zation. Regardless of whether Reid made or lost

. money or whether the Association lost money, the
practice is unacceptable in either the public or
‘private sector and even violated the Association’s
own rules — rules that were exceedingly liberal in

© S0 many respects.
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Finance Officer Didimamoff told the SCI he
was not aware of the amount of advances outstand-
ing to the executive director at the end of the year,
was not aware of the manner in which advances
were cleared out at the end of the year and did not
know “which specific individual had that responsi-
bility.” He saw the amount of advance checks going
out and called them “reasonable” in relation to
where Reid was going and with whom.



* One of the principal ﬁhdings of this investiga-

tion and that which best typifies the problems at the

New Jersey School Boards Association is the lack of |

a(::‘f:ountability for the public funds that support the

Association. Nowhere is that issue more focused -

- than on the profligate spending practices of the
executive director, Octavius T. Reid, Jr., and the
virtual absence of controls on that spending.

< The Executive Committee, which is comprised
of-all the Association officers and the immediate
past president, has failed utterly to demand any
agtountability from Reid. The Committee has itself
béen the recipient of much extravagant spending
and attention lavished on them by Reid. While the

Executive Committee cannot be blamed directly for B

stances of falsification, it must bear responsibility
for its failure to call Reid to task for his misdeeds,
especially when it should have been clear toeven a
chsual observer that Association written policies,
such as they were, were violated regularly. This
chapter will examine some of those expenses in
detail and will also explore the oversight procedures
that permitted many of the abuses to occur,

' EXPENSE VOUCHERS

During the time period covered by this investi-
_ gation, the following policy was in effect at the
NJSBA

Approvedrepresentatives will be rexmbursed
Jor travel and other necessary expenses in-
curred while on Association business as

authorized by Association policy. Expenses.

shall be submitted and accounted for in writ-

REID’S EXPENSES

ing to the Business Office. Staff and Officer
expense forms not submitted within 60 days
require Executive Cormmttee approval for
payments :

In addition to this written policy, two different

expense forms clearly state that expense claims -

submitted beyond 60 days will not be. honored.
Despite these written admonitions, the SCI investi-.
gation showed that the policy regarding timely
submission of expense vouchers was meaningless to
the executive director and was not enforced either
by Dolores Jarvie, the comptroiler, or by the Execu-
tive Committee. .

It is difficult to challenge directly the value to

Reid’s creative expense vouchers and other in- --the NISBA of particular expense claims since only

" Reid and his guest (or guests) know precisely the

nature of the discussions at various functions. Alist
of persons allegedly entertained byReid includes
numerous legislators, state officials in the executive
branch of government, a judge, stockbrokers, other-
lobbyists and assorted functionaries. And there are
many expense vouchers claiming entertainment of
officers and fellow staff members of the NJSBA.

What the SCI does question, aside from the irregu-

larities, are the amounts of taxpayer dollars Reid

spent on wining and dining. In addition todisallow-

- ances by independent auditors engaged by the Asso-
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ciation, the SCI has questions about the legitimacy
of an additional $20,000 in claims. : :

The SCI staff examined 91 expense vouchers
(129 pages) submitted by Reid totalling $133,383.
These expense claims were submitted from July 1,
1985, through July 18, 1988, but included expenses
claimed for December, 1984, and early 1985. Of
this amount, Reid received $128,556.20 in reim-



bursements after Emst & Whinney had disallowed
~ approximately $5,000 from the batch of claims

submitted on July 18, 1988. The majority of these "

votchers were submitted later than 60 days after the
event.

e
h’

% These vouchers consisted of the following total
in"expenses: -

Voticher Submitied  Tota! Expenses Portion Of % of Dollar
i ef ed te Expense o

- £85-86 $3326145  $14.725.76 44%

; 86-87 1 $33,843.88  $13917.58 41%

- '87-88 $2093791 $14418.12 68%

July 1988 84051296 $3966171 97%

$128,556.20 = $82,723.17 64%

The chart in the Appendix sets forth a summary -

of the dollar amount of Reid’s expense claims for
_the three-year period covered by this investigation.
_ These figures include amounts paid directly to
American Express on Reid’s behalf for expenses

charged on a card provided by the Association. In

1986-87, the Association paid around $11,000 di-
- rectly to American Express on Reid’s behalf. In
- 1987-88, this figure was around $6,300.

© $53,602.62 in Old Expenses. NJSBA Presi-
de’ht Jeremiah Regan testified that shortly after he
took office in 1988, he learned of “significant ad-
‘vances” that were outstanding on Reid’s account,

and he “told [Reid] to get them in or he wouldn’t get

. anickeland I gave him until July, I think, some time

" to have him submit it.” On July 18, 1988, Reid
submitted claims for $53,602.62 in expenses cover-
ing a 37-month period.

“ At Regan’s request, the NJSBA’s new auditing
firm of Ernst & Whinney reviewed those claims.
Ernst & Whinney found $3,409.40 in claims that
had previously been paid toReid’s corporate Ameri-
can Express account. (Many of these expenses had
been submitted less than a year previously). This

amount was disallowed, as was an additional
$1,267.85 for lack of receipts. After further deduc- -
tion of $11,500 in outstanding advances previously
paid to him by the Association, Reid received from
the Association a check for $37,425.37 on his claim
of $53,602.62. Incidentally the $11, 500 deduction
for advances marked the first time in at least four
years that Reid’s advance balance was current and
up-to-date.

Regan tcstiﬁcd that, before the auditors’ review,
he brought the vouchers to the Executive Commit-
tee at the July, 1988, retreat:

The Executive Commirttee did not finger
through all of those back-up papers..J gave

~ themthetotals andthey were there available
~ on the able for anyone. I also assured the
Executive Committee that I would refer the
total package to the auditors for their audit.

Q. Did Mr. Reid give any explanation to the
Executive Committee regarding the total
armount, how that gotto be so high for the
expenses’?

A.He wasverybusy, didn’ thave time,would
prefer not to have to submit expense ac-
counts, would rather pay it out of his own
pocket if he could afford it, but he couldn’t
afford it so he just kept putting it off. In
essence, that was the discussion.

Regan recalled his initial reaction to these claims:

I couldn’ t—don’t remember at the moment
the whole thing; just the totality of the thing
is what blew my mind. You know, whenyou
work for the government for 30-some-odd
years and you see vouchers in the $30,000-
$35,000range, you see advances thatrunup
$16,000-$17,000 unsatisfied, ir's a cultural
shock, I guess. That's why I got this [new]
policy. My reaction was to immediately
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prevent anything like that from ever happen-
ing again for anybody.

z Duplicates and Questionable Receipts. Dur- -

ing the SCI staff’s examination of Reid’s expense
vouchers, 'qucstions arose about some of the docu-
mentation submitted for the claims. The initial and
most obvious questions related to the absence of
receipts and any detailed description supporting
many of the claims. The SCI staff discovered
duplicate receipts which had been submitted by
Reid in several different ways as described below to
support duplicate claims. Additional duplicates
were found to exist where a claim (such as hotel or
airfare) submitted by Reid had been directly billed
to and paid by the Association. Because voucher
details regarding the event and/or participants usu-
ally differed, the recognition and identification of
duplicates was made even more difficult.
.-‘5#

» In addition to clear duplicates that could be
identified, numerous questionable transactions were
identified. These were expenses which could not be
verified as occurring at the claimed location or with
the claimed individuals. Included in this category
were claims for meals during conferences where a
registration fee paid by the Association included the
cost of a particular meal.

Reid failed to submit to the SCI any business
calendars (except for 1988) which made it difficult

1o ascertain the validity of the questioned receipts. -

~ The sheer number of transactions also raised ques-

tions that largely remain unanswered: Were the

persons claimed on the voucher actually enter-
tained? Was official business discussed? Why were
there so many receipts from restaurants located near
Rcld’s home?

To try to answer some of these questions, the
SCI staff conducted a limited survey to ascertain the
validity of some of the expenses at Testaurants near
Reid’s home. Of 48 claims examined, only five
could be positively substantiated as having occurred
by the person or persons claimed on Reid’s vouchers
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to have been in attendance,

The SCI staff also reviewed registration mate-
rial received from various organizations that hosted
conventions and other such affairs. This review
revealed a pattern of “extended stays” (prior to the
beginning of a convention or after the last scheduled
day of the conference) that were paid by the Asso-
ciation. ‘For example, the SCI staff identified over
$600 in apparently personal charges accumulated
by Reid after the end of a conference in St. Croix,
Virgin Islands.and over $1,500 accumulated by
Reid and then-Association President Margaret
Mueller after the scheduled end of a conference in
Paris. '

In some instances, it was unclear what costs
were covered by the registration fees for certain
events. The fees for certain conventions were so
high that they could have included meal or lodging
costs, but the Associaton accounting system does
not provxde any brcakdown

The review of these vouchers covered the three
years between July 1, 1985, and July 1, 1988. The
SCI identified 154 claims in Reid’s vouchers to-
talling $20,224.94 which it believes to be either
clearly disallowable or highly questionable, in addi-
tion to the $4,677 disallowed by Ernst & Whinney.
The amounts of these individual claims are listedin
Schedule B attached to the report and are summa-
rized here:

1. No Receipts: $3,049.24 (19 instances
plus 3 groupings of amounts under $40.00).
The expenses were claimed on Reid’s vouch-
ers but lacked supporting documentation.

2. Duplicates: $4,382.31 (33 instances).’
These claims were submitted twice and ei-
ther paid to Reid twice or paid once to Reid
and once to another entity such as American
Express, a hotel or travel agency. o

3. Questionable Receipts: $3,673.99 (47



instances). These were claims for meetings
which could not specifically be verified as
occurring at claimed locations, or with a
claimed individual; where meals were in-
cluded in registration fees, or where cash
receipts were suspicious.

4. Bogus Claims: $1,664.28 (32 instances).
28 claims were specifically disavowed by
the individual(s) claimed in Reid’s voucher
_ to'have been present; and four claims were
for highly improbable “meeting™ places,
* including one newslettér office and an elec-
tronics outiet.

5. Extended Stays: '$7,543.61 (26 in-
- stances). These claims included expenses
prior or subsequent to official events.

Exhibit 1 also contains a claim for $160 in
airfare (under “miscellaneous”) using a travel
agency invoice and copy of the ticket as

 receipt. The same invoice was submitted as

back-up for a $160 airfare claim on the
voucher found as Exhibit 2. In actuality, the
airfare for the particular event noted on the

Exhibit 2 voucher had been directly billed

to and paid by the Association ($148).

" Exhibit 3 shows how airfare ($305) was

claimed twice and reimbursed in 1985 on
two different vouchers submitted only one
month apart. The same travel agency in-
voice was used as a receipt in each case,
although for the second voucher the invoice
had been folded in such a way as to conceal
the bottom section that showed that the
amount had been billed to Reid’s credit card.

" Reid dated neither voucher, and the vouch-
‘ers were submitted to dlfferent persons for

- The following are some examples of duplicates
found in Reid’s expense vouchers. The Appendix
contains copies of the exhibits referred to'in these
and other examp]es '

approval.

3. Duplicate Receipts

l Direct Billing Examples.

Exhibit 1is a copy of Reid’s voucher claim-
_ ingtravelexpenses for conferencesin Wash-

ington, D.C., in January, 1986. This voucher
- is undated but was approved by Comptrolier
Jarvie 17 months after the expense was in-
curred. This voucher claims room charges
($840.14) which had been billed directly to
and paid by the Association in 1986. The
- meal claims on this voucher ($555.86,
$349.90, and $1,227) are supported by
~ American Express receipts without detail as
'to number or names of persons present.
Exhibit 1a is an example of how Reid in
1988 claimed airfare for another Associa-
tion staff member on his voucher; the Asso-
ciation had paid that airfare directly in 1987.

‘2. Receipts Used Twice For Dupllcate
‘Claims.
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a) Same amount claimed twice with dif-
ferent copies of same credit card receipt.

Exhibit 4 illustrates how different versions
of the same credit card receipt were used to

" substantiate a $577.77 claim twice submit-

ted, claiming transactions on two different
dates.

Exhibit 5 illustrates the use of duplicate
American Express receipts (Amexco copy
and cardmember copy) to substantiate claims

for the same amount but for totally different

transactions and, in this case, totally differ-
ent years. In the first case, the four high-

~lighted claims ($62.70; $108.32; $76.50;

and $213.82) were submitted by Reid in
1987 as back-up for claimed transactions in
March 1987; the Association paid these
expenses directly to American Express be-
cause they were charged on Reid’s corporate
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" card. The receipts submitted at this time

were the “Amexco copy”. One year later
Reid submitted the “cardmember copy” of

with different versions of a receipt.

Exhibit 6 illustrates how a credit card re-

- ceipt and a restaurant tab for the same meal

were used 1o substantiate two different claims
submitted in the same set of vouchers for

_ relmbursement

Exhibit 7 illustrates a similar duplication on
the same voucher.

Exhibit 8 illustrates another duplication in
a more finessed variation. The credit card
receipt for $180.77 total appears as back-up
to a claim for a meal at the Teahouse Restau-
rant in Vancouver, B.C,, in July, 1986. The

- the same fourreceipts as back-upforclaimed
~ transactions in March, 1988. '

b) Different or changed amounts claimed

restaurant tab slip appears as back-up fora-

$150.00 claim for dinner in New Orleans in

August, 1986. (The reverse side of this tab

shows an address and a phone number which
the SCI staff ascertained to be in Vancouver,

(“BCSBA”).- BCSBA representatives con-
tacted by the SCI stated that BCSBA had
hosted its annual legislative breakfast meet-

~ ing on the claimed date at the Special Serv-

ices School in Mt. Holly, and that the meet-
ing terminated around 11 a.m. They hadno
knowledge of any official county activity at
the Rancocas Inn on that date.

3. $438 dinner c_lalm (supported by restan-
rant tab only) submitted for a conference in -
Philadelphia where dinner was specifically
included in the reglstrauon fee for the date
claimed.

4. $408.96 dinner claim during a conven- |
tion in Washington, D.C., with no notation

~ as to others entertained and on a date for

which a second dinnerclaim ($49.97) was -
separately submitted. :

5. $22.47 lunch claim at TGI Fridays in
Marlton supported by credit card receipt on
which the date was apparently changed from
a Sunday to a Friday. A $19.90 claim for
lunch at Lieggi’s in Trenton on the same
Friday was separately submitted.

“B.C. The SCI staff was unable to locate a

" The following are examples of bogus claims
- Teahouse Restaurant in New Orleans). :

1dent1ﬁed in Reid’s vouchers

. The following are some of the questionable

claims identified in Reid’s vouchers: Rivage restaurant in Medford with two indi-

1. $232.30 claim for a meal at the Beau = -

- County  School

1. $98.65 claim for meeting at Beau Rivage
in Medford with a state legislator and Asso-
ciation Deputy Executive Director Boose.

Boose confirmed a meeting had occurred on
the date indicated but stated that, according
to his records, it was a breakfast meeting at

" Cledes' Luncheonette i in Trenton.

2. $82 meal claim atthe Rancocas Innin Mt.
Laurel in connection with the Burlington
Boards  Association
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viduals who stated to the SCI that they could -

‘not confirm that they were present with Reid

at that place and on that date.

2. $25.00 claim for a meal at the Peking.

Mandarin restaurant in Cherry Hill withan
~ individual who stated 1o the SCI that his
records indicated he was in Canada on that

date,

3. $29.95 claim for “cocktails” with Insur-
ance Group stockbroker Dan Druz and oth-



ers sﬁpportcd by a credit card receipt from -

“Privileged Information™ at an address in
New . York City. “Privileged Information”
is a newsletter, not a restaurant.

--4. $55.58 claim for “Bergen County School
'Boards Association” brunch, supported by a
claim from Braddocks Tavern, a restaurant
in Burlington County. '

5. $34.50 claim for “Legislative Meeting -
. Hudson County™ supported by a restaurant
. tab from Philadelphia.

Questionable Transactions. In addition to the

questionable receipts, duplicates and bogus claims

identified on Schedule B, the review of Reid’s
expense vouchers indicated questionable claimed
transactions. These questionable transactions were
mainly associated with expenses claimed for meals
and fall into the following categories:

. 1. Multiple meal claims for one day (sub-
- mitted at different imes). Examples:
Meals claimed for January 9, 1986, for
Lieggi’s ($37.78); Peacock Inn in Princeton
($105.30); and Lorenzo’s ($178.62); Meals
claimed for March 5, 1987, at the Bond
Street Club ($50.38); Bobby V’s ($59.66);
and Lorenzo’s ($145). (The last amount was
claimed twice by Reid, the first time without
‘areceipt). '

2. Claims submitted at different times for
the samemeal/restaurant expense for differ-
ent persons in attendance. Many of these
claims (substantiated by a duplicate copy of
an American Express receipt) were disal-
Jowed by Ernst & Whinney in auditing the
July, 1988, vouchers they had previously
been submitted by Reid and directly paid by
- the Association to American Express.

Among the claims disallowed by the auditors in
July, 1988, because they had previously been sub-
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mitted by Reid and paid by the Association were
four claims ($986.77 total) for hotel accommoda-
tions in July, September and December, 1987; a
$176.76 dinner at Tavern on the Green in New York
City in August, 1987, with a representative of a
brokerage firm; and a $129.87 dinner at the New
York Hilton in August, 1987, with the Executive -
Director of the New York School Boards Associa-
tion. :

Exhibits 9 and 10 in the Appendix set forth
examples of Reid’s claims that the auditors disal- .
lowed. Exhibit 9 contains a claim for auto tires
twice submitted; and Exhibit 10 contains one meal
and one lodging claim twice submitted only seven
months apart.

What was most astonishing about the disal-
lowed duplicate expenses was how many of the
claims and receipts had been submitted by Reid
within the same year and also how the details of a
transaction changed the second time around. The
Association’s failure to require accounting in a
timely manner for all expenses incurred in connec- -
tion with a particular event resulted in the payment
by the Association in several different fiscal yearsof -
various claims for the same event, at least some of
which were clear duplicates. In particular, when
Reid submitted claims in July, 1988, to the Associa-
tion, at least some were associated with conferences
for which vouchers and claims had been submitted
and claims paid in prior years.

In September, 1986, the Association paid an
amount of $1,389.04 directly to American Express
in connection with Reid’s attendance at the NSBA
Executive Directors Summer Institute in Vancou-
ver, British Columbia. In July, 1988, Reid submit-
ted additional claims of $1,197.37 for meals and
airfare for that event.

The Association in September, 1986, paid claims
directly to American Express for Reid’s attendance
at the National Conference of State Legislators in
New Orleans in August, 1986, for rooms ($711.23)



for Reid and another staff person ($493.68). In July,
1988, the Association received claims from Reid for
meals, entertainment and travel, photo processing
and tapes for that event ($1,371.87 total).

*-. In December, 1986, Reid submitted claims for
- trainfare ($110), overnight accommodations and
meals ($572.60) at a conference in Washington,

D.C., in October, 1986; the Association paid these

amounts directly to American Express. InJuly 1988
Reid submitted additional claims formeals ($146.09
and $110.29) in connection with that conference.

. Reid submitted claims in July, 1988, from the
Association’s annual workshop in October, 1987.
These claims included two receipts ($614.10 and
$687.68) for one dinner with the Association offi-

cers. The Association, however, pays vendors di- -

rectly for many bills associated with this workshop.
& _ , _

;. When the SCI tried to question Reid about

~ duplicate vouchers disallowed by the auditors, he

balked, saying, “I don’t honestly see the value of

going through a recitation of those now since 1

haven’t received any payment of them.” Although

he was given the opportunity to produce receipts for

- the disallowed claims, he told the SCI he “didn’t go
back and look. 1 dec:ded itwasn’t really worth the
effort .

After he was given the ultimatum by President

- Regan regarding his outstanding advances, Reid " -

testified that he and his secretary, Denise Fitzgerald,

spent hours working at night trying to reconstruct’

his expenses from receipts, calendars and any other
documents they could find. Reid said he kept his

receipts at home in shoeboxes envelopes and vari- -

ous other receptacles 7

Both he and Fitzgerald blamed the pressure of
the process for any errors or duplications in the
submissions. Comptroller Jarvie testified that she
too sometimes filled out some of Reid’s late expense

vouchers. She was also the one who approved them '

at Ieast 75 per cent of the time.

Association policy requires late vouchers to be
approved by the Executive Committee and some of
its members said they vaguely recalled voting for
some approvals. But the SCI investigation could
find norecord in the minutes for any such approvals.
Sometimes notations were made on the vouchers
themselves that they had been approved, again with
nothing in the minutes to reflect this. In at least two
instances, vouchers were noted as being approved
on specific dates when no Executive Committee

~meetings had been held within weeks of those dates:

Secretary Joan Mancia testified that she was the
one who would make such a notation before sending
avouchertothe business office forpayment. Shown
somme vouchers with such notations on them, Mancia
told the SCI that the writing was not hers.

CALENDARS DESTROYED

Reid and his secretary, Denise Fitzgerald,‘were 3

~ asked separately by the SCI to produce the calendars
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they used in preparing Reid’s expense vouchers and
were given subpoenas for the documents. Both said
they would willingly comply.” But in subsequent
appearances before the Commission, Reid said he
had discarded his old calendars after his expense
vouchers had been prepared, while Fltzgerald said
hers had dlsappeared

Fitzgerald, asked by Chairman Patterson about
the calendars, testified:

Q. The calendars don’t exist, so we have no
way of checking or you have no way of
checking, is that right?
A. Nozt at this point, no.

Q. Never occurredto you to keep the calen-

dars because going back two years some-

body might question the expenses?

A. Well, they were submitted to the Execu-
~ tive Committee, as well as the auditors, and

there was no question raised at the time. So



no, it wouldn’t occur for me to keep them.

WHERE WAS ARTHUR YOUNG?

% One question that was raised both by the SCI
- staff and later by several NJSBA representatives
was whether the Arthur Young firm, which per-
formed the annual audits for the Association from
1978 until 1987, had noticed any irregularities. -

 Regan testified that when he became president,
he found that the Association had what he called “a
Mickey Mouse accounting system and Ididn’tknow

that existed before. Ididn’trealize we had a single

entry system with back-up papers in somebody’s
drawer for six million dollars. That was a shocker.”
He recalled alwaysreceiving a “clean bill of health”
“on the Arthur Young audits and never receiving a
management letter addressing any concemns about
failure to adhere to financial policies.

- Arthur Young partner Edward Cupoli testified
that he never heard any concerns about recordkeep-
. ing, expenses, or competence of the Association
" bookkeeping staff during any of the audits. Jon

McCormac of Arthur Young testified that he dis-
-cussed the internal control system and the audit
- findings with the Association’s managementinclud-

‘ing Jarvie each year. He testified, “there were
- ‘always small matters that we would find...but noth-
ing was ever major enough that we would consider
it a material weakness or consider the issuance of a
- management letter.” In fact, according to records,
management letters were issued to the Association
in-1978, 1979, 1980 and 1981 following audits.

- Ernst and Whinney’s Management Letter.

“'The Emst and Whinney audit of the Association for -
1986-87 was accompanied by a management letter.

to the Association’s Board of Directors. In this
letter, the auditors set forth several suggestions for
-management including:

1. Maintenance of the accountmg system on
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an accrual basis with the conversion from a
manual to an automated system.

2. Creation of a position of deputy director
for finance “and filling that position with an
individual having the appropriate account-
ing and financial background to provide the
Association with the financial expertise
essential to the efficient operation of the
organization.” .

3. Officers’ Expense Forms. “During our
review of officers’ expense reports, we noted
anumber of instances where expense reports
had been submitted significantly late with
no clear approval noted in the Executive
Committee Meeting minutes as required under -
Association policy. We recommend in-
creased follow-up on outstanding advances

5 to assure that expense reports are submitted

on a timely basis. We also recommend that
the reimbursement policy be amended to
require approval by the Executive Commit-
tee of all Officers’ expense forms. Also,
Association policy imposes no reimburse-
ment limits for meals purchased in the con-
text of its activities. Due to the inherent sen-
sitivity that accompanies the use of public
funds, we suggest periodic review of such
reimbursement policies.”

4, Requiring periodic time sheets for every
employee “for the effective monitoring of
payroll cost and vacation and sick leave in

~ accordance with Association policy.”



In addition to Reid’s expense vOuchcrs,.which _

account for by far the largest dollar amount of his
fiscal irregularities, some of Reid’s other activities
also bear examination. For example, there was the

- duplicate IRA payment, the payment of nearly $9,000
for unused vacation, the taking of an Association car
without authorization and the trip to Paris.

DUPLICATE IRA PAYMENT

Although enrolled in the State pension system,
thc executive director, pursuant to his contract, re-
ceives from the Association a $2,000 IRA payment

annually. In practice, the Association has paid Reid
not only the $2,000, but also an extra amount equal

to state and federal withholding taxes. Reid also

receives a $92,000 annual salary and a universal life
1nsurance pohcy costing $5,400.

" The SCI staff’s review of NJSBA records re-
vealed what appear to be two IRA payments to Reid
for the same year. The records indicate that Reid
received a $2,000check in January, 1987, as an IRA
payment that was identified in the payroll records as
$2,300, the extra $300 being for taxes. Inaddition

. tothischeck, Jarvie alsoreduced Reid’s outstanding
travel advance balance by $2,000 on June 30, 1987,
with a journal entry characterized as an “IRA”
payment. The SCI staff does not believe this is a
matter of an “overlapping” of calendar, tax, fiscal or
contract years, since it has accounted for all other
IRA payments to Reid.

" OnMay 21, 1986, Reid sent Business Manager
Kathleen Donoher a memo instructing her to pre-
pare a check in the amount of $2,000“for an IRA for
me.” Although his contractis silent on the tax issue,

'REID’S OTHER CONDUCT

he directed Donoher “to calculate the tax obligation
so that the total sum paid results in the net of
$2 000.” -

UNUSED VACATION PAYMENT

During the period covered byrthis investigation,
the following policy was in effect at the Associa-
tion: : : -

Ifbecause of schedule constraints or unusual
circumstances a staff member isunable to
take vacation time, the Executive Director,
. with the approval of the Executive Commit-
tee, may pay the employee for aportion of the
unused vacation days {Emphasis added].

This investigation revealed that in January, 1987,
five staff members received payment for accrued

* vacation days totalling $12,123.57. Of this total,

$8,835.58, representing 28 1/2 accrued days, went
to Reid. Comptroller Jarvie received $2,221.15
representing 10 1/2'accrued days. The balance of .
$1,516.84 representing 8 1/2days wenttothreenon-

executive staff members. The payments were au-
thorized by Reid without the prior approval of the
Executive Committee in clear violation of written

pollcy

Although Reid had been employed by the Asso-
ciation since 1972 and had been executive director
for two years, he testified that he learned of the

~ Association policy requiring approval by the Ex-
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ecutive Committee “after I had already done it.” He
added, “It never even occurred to me that that was
something that the Executive Committee had torule
on. I thought that was part of my authority.”



By Chairman Patterson:

Q. The business office didn’t know that you
had to get the Executive Committee ap-
proval?

A.No. As a matter of fact, one of my disap-

. pointments was ‘the fact that if someone

- there knew that, they should have checked
that and flagged it for me. Normally they do
flag things. Since no one said anything, I

: never-thought twice about it.

By Counsel Hock_]c

Q Don tyou think as executive director that
you should know that such a policy exists?

- A.You know, we have a policy manual that

is this big. The truth of the matter is that if

we were to go through and look ar every

-+ single thing, you could probably find some-
. thing that you didn’t do properly...because,
- interms of operating practice, youare doing
things that make good sense, you think you
are exercising good judgment...now, you

- can always go back and you can nail some-
‘body somewhere on something they didn't

“see. We've got hundreds of policies.

- In conducting its audit, Ernst & Whinney dis-
covered that the Association had no records that
documented actual leavetaken so that the accuracy
of the number of days claimed could not be verified.

THE ASSOCIATION CAR

The executive director is one of five persons at
‘the NJSBA (four executive staff and the president)
‘who receive use of a car. Association policy also
permits personal use. The Association’s practice
‘has been to replace these cars every two years.

Association staff are permitted to bid for and pur-
chase the “o0ld” cars. Bids are expected to startata
car’s book value.
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‘This investigation revealed that when the Ex-
ecutive Director received a new Association car in
October, 1986, he took his “old” one home. Accord-
ing to then-President Joseph Zemaitis, Reid had
asked the Executive Committee at that time for the
car as a-gift for his services, but his request was
denied by the Board of Directors. The Association
continued to pay insurance on this car until the
summer of 1987.

Zemaitis testified that he first learned around
July, 1987, that Reid had kept the car and that he
directed Reid at that time to “take care of it.” Reid
then bought the car for $4,025 in August and paid
the Association retroactively $1,137 for the insur-
ance in September. Motor vehicle records show title
transfer occurred in August, 1987,

In his testimony, Reid first insisted that he had
only “garaged” the car for that time period and that
he had paid the car insurance. He did not mention
that he had paid it retroactively.

Reid testified:

.- Tknowthatl had agreed to purchasethecar.
I think I paid for the car around last June or .
so. I had the car garaged at my house andl
paidthe Association for the insurance onthe
car during the course of the time that it was
there,...there was a statement made about
the personal use of the car, which I think

- -occurred on one or two occasions prior 1o
- the time that I paid for the car, but I had
already made a commitment to the Associa-
tion to pay for it and was paying the cost of
the insurance involved for it.

Q. There was no long time lag berween the
time you actually started using the car for
your personal use and the time you paid the
" Association for it?
- A. I can’t even tell you what the time lag
was..Jt’s not like thatwas a significant item.



When the SCI staff in a subsequent session
confronted Reid with Association records indicat-
ing that he had first paid the insurance in September
1987, Reid explained, “A portion of that time the car
was just plain garaged.”

Jarvie was another NJSBA executive to whom a
car was assigned. In her testimony, she said that she
did not drive because she has a handicap and her
husband drove the Association car.

: In another automotive matter, Reid listed the
NJISBA car that was then assigned to him, a 1987
Chevrolet Caprice, as a $19,000 asset on his appli-

cation for a VA mortgage to buy property in Will-

ingboro.

THE PARIS TRIP

In January, 1986, Association President Marga-
ret Mueller and Executive Director Reid flew to
Paris to attend a three-day education conference
sponsored by the Organization for Economic Coop-
eration and Development. Seventeen months later,

Reid submitted expense vouchers for the trip and

included his own expenses, those of Mueller and
others. The Association paid all the claims, which
included expenses for three full days in Paris after
the conference ended

"The Paris trip is a good example of the differ-
ence between practices at the NJSBA and the state
government. Staté regulations require advance
notice and approval for travel, and, where the travel
is outside the United States, this approval must be
given by the Director, Division of Budget and
Accounting. The state approval process also re-
quires some prior estimate of the costs of and

“justification for travel. No such prior estimate or
justification was given for this tnp by Mueller or
‘Reid.

On his undated expense voucher, Reid claimed
$3,177.44 in expenses for Mueller, himself and
“other guests.” Reid testified that at least one
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expense claim covered a meal for a female friend of
the president who was staying in her room. Inother
instances, Reid claimed meals involving three or
four persons but did not identify them. He attached
no receipts for five meal claims. “Entertainment™
claims paid by the Association included the cost of
a sightseeing tour of Paris. These expenses did not

include airfare of $1,300 for Mueller and Reid,

which was paid separately in two dlfferem ways by
the Association. :

On June 30, 1987, Association Comptroller
Jarvie applied the total amount of the reimburse-
ment on Reid’s expense voucher to reduce some of
the his outstanding advances. (The specific advance
request for this trip was only $1,500.).

Reid testified that he sought authorization to go
on the trip from Mueller when he received an
invitation to the conference. Mueller said that she
informed the officers before she went on the trip,
and the Board of Directors afterwards and that the
officers “were all extremely pleased” about her
invitation. She was asked: '

Q. Do you know that your expenses were in-
cluded on [Reid’s] voucher? '
A. I would have no knowledge of that.

Q. Would you have any concern about that?
A. No. :

Q. Do you know whether your expenses
claimed on the voucher were used to reduce
an outstanding amount of Mr. Reid’s ad-
vances? :

- A.I'would have no knowledge.

Charles Robinson, an officer and a member of
the Executive Commiittee at the time, testified that
he first learned about the trip after it had taken place
when “one of the members of the Exccunve Com-
mittee brought it to our attention.” :



Q.Whenyou learned about the trip to Paris,
did you have any concerns about it? .

A. All of us did. All of us thought it was a
trip, at the very least, that would appear 1o
be unnecessary, perhaps frivolous.

‘Mueller testified that a female friend traveled
with her to the conference and stayed in her hotel
room. She testified that her friend was present for
all the dinners that week and that she “assumed” —
incorrectly — that her friend reimbursed Reid for
her share of the dinner tabs.

Q. Do you know?
A. No.

Although the scheduled dates of the conference
were from January 13 to 15, 1986, the Association
paid expenses for Mueller and Reid through their
- return on January 19, 1986.

Reid testified:
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Q. Did you ever consider reimbursing the
Association forthe time that you stayed over
in Paris after the conference had ended?
A.No. 1 obviously did not..J seem to recall
that we were able to save money in travel
fare by virtue of the extra stay that resulted
in the savings greater than it would have
been if we had come home earlier.

Although both Reid and Mueller testified that
they found this conference worthwhile, neither
prepared a written report. Mueller gave an oral
report afterwards to the Board of Directors. The
Association officers never saw the expenses for this
trip.
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INVESTMENTS

The Adeingstrator shall authorize the investment of 1dle Group funds 4n
interest bearing money dnstruments. The primary concern of investaents

" ‘shall be the security of favested funds, folloved by the interest yleld
and the maturity date. For purposes of this policy, ddle funds shall be

considered all funds in excess of the cash requiresents for operating
expenses and Jloss payments or reserves., The terr of investaente shall be
consistent vith projected cash flov based upon loss payment deaands
projected dy the Croup's 1asurnnce service coutractor.

Investzent instrunents may include all investmeats secured by federal

funds; 1.e., certificates of deposit, repurchase agreensents, treasury

notes, treasury bonds and commercial paper (less than one year
duretion). Investment instrusents specifically omitted are corporate
bonds, stocks and other opeculative securities of long ters duration. one

. year or lon;er.

Authority: !T 11/83

-



INVESTMENTS

. The Administrator shall avthorize the 1nveltnenf of idle Group

funds in a sanner which will provide for bigh yield returns while
continuing to adhere to the guidelines established by N.J.S.A :
18A:18B~4B ("to invest monies beld in trust under any funds in
investments which are approved for iavestment by regulation of the .
State Investment Council for surplus monies of the state®).

-
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B1atr of Kew Jersey

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREABURY

SIVIMEN OF INVESTHRNTY
s Swing ’

TRINTON. & 4 00008 | N | _ August 25. 1983

MEMORANDUM TO: Elizadeth Felker, Assistant Treasurer
RE: P.L. 1983, e, 108

This law provides that a schocl board associastion can ereate a

Joint self insurance fund. T have no quarrel with this; hovever, *

the lav also. grovidu that they can "invest in investments which

are approved for investment by regulatien of the State Investmant
Council for surplus moneys of the State”, : _

z As 3 matter of principle the Council does not 1ike to blindly set
# fiduciary standards for third par:;‘tuvss:nen: organizations,

Investment objectives differ and t may be a good investment for
the Division could be a bad investment for scmecne eloe. This
kind of langusge should be resisted wvharevar it appears in pro-
spective legislation. ' :

Second, 4t will be éifficult for the school board associastion to

know what specific investments are legal. A nuzbar of the Counell
regulations have "approved lists", for exxmple, for common stocks,
certificates of deposit, commercial paper and bankers acceptances.,
These 1ists are ehmged vegularly. Furthermore, even though a
security {ssuer may be on one of cur lists, we may tu:crmllg_put '
8 hold on any purchases and cur changed view would not be reflected

- on the list.

Third, the lav vefers to "investments = of surplus moneys of the
Staze.” This 43 very ambiguous since neither State lav relating
to the Division or Council regulations refer to “surplus moneys

of the State”. In fact, Council regulation carefully defines
dnvestments for trust, dezand, pansion and snnufty, static or tem-
porary reserve funds. Thus, & close reading of lav and the
regulations could indicate that mo investments were suthorized

for the school board association fund., It might ba pessible to
drav an inference that the pew fund could invest &n vhatever vas
legal for the State General Investment Fund, which holds unexpended
state Balances. However, in this case the new fund could be specifi.

-3



cally prohibited from purﬁhntn corporate bonds with more than a

five year maturity, common stocks and virtually all other bonds

~ and mortgages, since all of these investments are specifically

}mzud y the regulations to the pension and annuity group of
unds,

By cogy of this memofandﬁm 1 am expressing my concerns to the g
school board association., 1 believe that they would be better off

4f they were simply subject to thz)prudent wan lav.

RM/kb - Roland M. Machold

Attachzent ot Director .

cc- Peter Pizzuto - - o
NJ School Board Association

-t
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INVESTMENT POLICY REGULATIONS

“2he philosophy ‘of tbe investoents will be for cousistent stable return
and appreciation of capitol.

" Funds needed for short-term cash peeds will be invested in money market

investoments such as bank certificates of deposit, treasury bills end
money market fundsg.

long-term investments will be limited to those acceptable under the
prudent man rule (as it applies to retirement accounts). These
investments include, but are not limited to, individual equities
tecomnended for purchase by a reputable investment firm or advisor,
bonds rated BEB or better by a major rating service, sutual funds
vhose stated objectives are consistent with the long~tern investnment
objectives of the Insurance Group, and limited partnerships which have
been approved by the appropriate regulatory authorities for inclusion
in retirement plan portfolios.

All types of investnents acceptable under the prudeat man rule must be
approved by the Adnini{strator and the Treasurer of the lInsurance Group
on a case-by-case basis.

The Tressurer of the Group will report quarterly to the Board of Trustees

regarding the Inaurance Group portfolio.

-



New Jersey
School Boards Association

Headquaners: P.O. Box 08, Trenton, New Jersey DB&05-0909
. Tolephone (609) £95-7600

October &, 1985

Dan A. Pruz

Dean Witter Rz}"nolds. Inc.
One Palmer Squate :
Princeton, New Jersey 08542

B - _ :
: Re: NJSBA Capital Reserve Fund
NISBA Insurance Group

Dear Dan:

The Board of Directors at their meeting of September 20, 1985 _
authorized the undersigned to cpen accounts at your institutiom.
i This letter will authorize Dolores Jarvie, Comptroller to buy.
4 sell, invest and reinvest securities on behalf of the New

Jersey School Boards Asgociation. _ S

Additionally, please be advised that the NISBA is a tlx?-e'xempt
organization. Our taxpayer ID number is 21-66004401.

. Very truly.yours.-

E /(-7/4(.':4‘..: Tt o e th(
Octavius T. Reid, Jr.
Executive Dipector

_Comptroller
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INVESTMENT CONSULTANT REPORTS

"June 4, 1986

Report

Minutes

"None”

"Dan Druz stated that as of May 31, the
investment portfolio has an annualized
appreciation rate  of 42%...stocks and
~bonds have an annualized return of 25%,
and the limited partnerships portfolio has
a return of 20%.

' September 24, 198&

Report

Minutes

The next quarter and year will probatbly
see less significant rates of return as
we have moved most of the funds out of the
stock market in anticipation of a very
significant downturn...our hope is tc "sit
on the sidelines” until the end of 1986.

Over the months of July and August our
participation in the stock market was
recduced from a portfolio of 45% to one and
a half percent, before the drop in the
market at the beginning of September.
Unfortunately, for the next 3 to & months

- our money is being exclusively invested
in government securities which will reduce
our annualized rate of return to the 9~
10% area. o

November 25, 1986

Peport

Note: -

"aAt tke end of the first quarter of the new
fiscal year, we were invested 73% in government
bond investments and money market funds; 2% in
equity mutual funds; and 25% in real estate
limited partnerships...During the current
guarter we continue to maintain an extremely

~.defensive position...All new deposits have been

invested in government bonds..."

A version produced from the DWR files contained
a listing of the portfolio. This version does
not exist in the Insurance Group files.



Minutsas

Tape

Mr. Druz stat2d the report is the same as given
in Ssptember. The general stock market has not
rebounded, The vast majority of the Group's
money is in Treasury Bonds. They do not want
to risk large amcunts of money until the market
situation is improved, probably by March.

".,..We've got the vast majority of our money
in ah treasury bonds and again it's not making
a great rate, but we're sitting on the
sidelines waiting for better opportunities to
occur and we don't really feel that we should
be risking any large types of money in ah, this
type of velatile situaticon...so I think thsat
we chould avoid the stock market and stay in
safe, ah not very high vielding government
gecurities and um, just kind of last it out.
S5c0 maybe by March or so we'll ‘be able to go
back in somewhat, start t¢ nibble away at some
bargains.” '

The U.S. Treastry Bonds purchased in September
and October 1986 were all sold as of December
31, 1986 (approximately $2.8 million).

Minutes

Tape:

No report in Advance materials {Druz testified
he brought it to the meeting and handed it to
Reid or Jarvie. They both deny receiving it).

"We are in extremely safe, stable investments
with guaranteed returns...Mr. Druz stated that
he feels comfortable avoiding the stock market
and its record highs and taking the safe,
stable route at this time."

...last three reports have been {inaudible)
we've avoided the stock market...Nevertheless
we've maintained our nearly 100% position in
government bonds in the avoiding the stock
market with some very minor exceptions...

The investments that we are in which are very
safe non-volatile government bonds during the
same period have gained approximately 5 to 6
percent. 8o, while we &id not do as well as
we might have done in the stock market, we were
into stable investments getting guaranteed
returns...I feel comfortable avoiding the stock

-11-



Note:

August 29, 1987

market at these record highs and I think we-
should continue to stay in safe stable group
for the time and I'm satisfied we made around
10% or so this year.

The Group at this time had investments in a
government securities mutual fund (plus the
index options and the limited partnership).

Report

Minutes

June 17, 1487

Rerport

Minutes

None

(Druz not present; no statement by Reid noted)

"If one analyzes the performance using weighted
averages, then the portfolio has declined by
several percent...The capital markets have
improved considerably since the end of May
which should improve the actual fiscal year end

‘performance. At that time a more detailed

report reporting the overall performance will
be presented...

An organization such as the Insurance Group
should have five year time horizons. “To this
end we have made certain less 1liquid
investments, primarily in real estate, which
appear to be faring very “well so far. Overall
we are optimistic that the portfolio will
raturn to superior performance over the next
year...

(Druz not present)

~-12-



' EXCERPT FROM NJISBAIG BOARD OF TRUSTEE MEETING 11/25/86

e

ADPIoOX.

2 1/2 minutes

Smith and Dan

Druz:

Fieid:

Bruz:

 'Reid:

Smith:

- Trustee:

Reid:

. Druz:

Based on recent events on Wall Street I should asked

" Dottie to turn off the tape recorder before I report -

um, no you could take my report in September and just
substitute the dates on it. We have avecided all the -
low positions that occurred because of the Boeski scandal

" wWe weren't in there they way down and we weren't in there

on the way back up, ah if you followed whats occurred in
the eguities market recently, when the Boeski scandal
Lroke people sold a lot of stocks and then they said, gee
what are we gcing to deo with the money, and they put it
all into Blue Chips so the Blue Chips have led the Dow
Jones Industrial Average back up to today just a few
points below its all time high but, the general stock
market has not rebounded, its still I'd say a few percent
lower than where it was 5 or € months ago, so we've got
the vast majority of our money in ah Treasury Bonds and
again its not making a great rate but we're sitting on
the =£ide lines waiting for better opportunities to cccur
aihd we don't really feel that we should be risking any
large amounts of money in ah, this type of volatile
situation.

How lcng do you see that going on?

wWell, vou know ah, I think that

How do ycu answer that? -

'Very quickly

(Laughter)
Right

Um, I think that there is ah more scandal to ah be
unveiled and that ah will have some negative impact on
the overall market. I think that the hundred million
dollar fine that Boeski paid which seems so ah so large
by any standards historically is going to by the end of
next yvear ah, not rank number 1, may not even rank in the
top 5 in terms of the amount of scandal they uncover from
his ah wire tapping escapades er or whatever you want to,
wiring escapades over the last & weeks Lefore they broke
the scandal, so I think that we should avoid the stock
market and stay in safe, ah not very high vyielding
government securities and um, just kind of last it out.
So maybe by March or so we'll be able to go back in some

~ what, start to nibble away at some bargainms.

-13-



EXCERPT FROM NCSERIG BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 1/21/§&7

Smitl:

Druz:

Were going to skip ahzad to Dan's report because he has
to leave at 7:45, 8:457? Time flies when you are having
fun, '

Ok ah, last three repofts have been (inaudible) we've
avoided the stock market and I think in the (inaudible)

“pie in the sky. Nevertheless, we've maintained our

nearly 100% position in government bonds in the avoiding

‘the stock market with some very minor exceptions. If I

could just put the most recent steck market rally inte
some perspective from July of 1986 to today the, Dow
Jones Industrial Average has increase approximately 10%,
the broader market averages have gone up 6 to 7 percent.
The investments that we are in which are very safe non-
volatile government bonds during the same period have
gain=d arproximately 5 to & percent.

So, while we did not do as well as we might have done in
the stcek market, we were into stable investments getting
guarantee returns and had this meeting taken place cn
Decembar 21st when the stock market was scome rrobable 10%

"~ lcwer than were it is today...

I would have reported to you during that period cf time
~he alh our investments which were fairly stable would

“increase about 5 t¢ 6 percent rate over that 6 moath

period while the steck market had actually declined
somewhat (insudible) so, I feel comfcertable avoiding the
stocXx market at these record highs I think we should
centinue to. stay. in safe stable group for the time and
I'm satisfied we made arournd 10% or so this year. If the
stock market were to crash? I would change that
sucgestion, recommend that we increase our (heldings) to
25 or 40% c¢f the portfolic (inaudible).

-14-



EXCERPT FROM NJSBAIC BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 6/17/87

Field: I gather our investment income we're assuming is going
_ to be significantly lower (this year)

Reid: - well we've given you a conservative estimate which is the
way we prefer to go. If we do better than that, fine,
‘but, you know one can't assume that the path up or
continuous path down - and my sense is better to look for
the worse case scenarioc and to build upon that.

Unidentified

Male: Look for steady money {inaudible)

-Reid: Fairly stable, yeah we're not setting the world on fire.
Unidentified

Male: Inaucible
- BSmith: As long as we're not drowning.

Reid: Nali, I don't think we are totally underwater at this

point so.
Smith:  Any further discussion? Hear ye now, all those in favor?

Trustees: Aye
Smith: Opposed?

-

Trustees: Silence

15~



FOR:

-

FROM:

_SUBJECT:

C-P7

New Jersey School Boards Association Insurance Group

413 West State Street. P.O Box 809. Trenton. New Jersey 08605
(609) 655-7600 -

 ADVANCE MATERIAL NO. 13
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING
SEPTEMBER 24, 1986

(x)f Information

{ ) Action
OCIAVIUS T. REID, JR., ADMINISTRATOR

. REPORT OF INVESTMENT CONSULTANT

iThe attached report is a synopsis of our investment perfomnce as of June 30,
'1986. An oral update, given by Dan Druz of Dean Witter Reynolds, will be

-available at our neetins
‘A report of our investment comsultant will be ipcluded as part of our mtetial

at each meeting of the Board during the 1986-87 fiscal year.

-d

!
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DEAN WTITER REYNOLDS INC. .
One Palmer Square, Princetan, NJ 08542 ..
Telephane (605} §24-1000 1 (800) 524-0850

DAN A DRUZ
Sanior Vice Presidant, Investments
Rrunch Manzger, Princeton Office

INVESTMENT FERPORMARCK FOR PERIOD ERDING 6/30/86

_ At the end of the fiscal year, we were invested 452 in
equity~type investments, about 302 in fixzed income and the
rezaining 25% in limited partnerships. Excluding the limited
partoerships because they have no sasily ascertained market
value, the portfolio increased in value over the period at an
annuvalized rate of approximately 19Z, with the equities moving
*ahesd at about a 35% annual rate and the bonds at about an

112 annual rate. .

The next quarter and year vill probably see less significant
rates of return as ve have moved most of the funds out of the
‘stock market in anticipation of a very significant downturn,
caused in large part by an unexpected increase in interest
rates. The first quarter of the new fiscal year will probably
see an annuslized yield in the area of 1072 on the portfolio.

Our hope is to "sit on the sidelines'” until the end of 1986
or beginning of 1987 at which time we expect to re-purchase
equities at significantly lowver levels. —

-17-



EXHIB!T

New Jersey School Boards Association Insurance Group |

345 West Siate Sreer PO Box 909 Treaiss New Jersn peed
602 685-7600

ADVANCE MATERIAL NO. 9
BOARD. OF TRUSTEES MEETING
* NOVEMBER 25, 1986

FOR: {X) Information
() Action
FROM: - Octavius T. Reid, Jr., Administrator

SUBJECT: Report of Investment Consultant

The sttached report is a lynoplil of our investment peifomnce as of
Octo'ber 31, 1986.

-
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CEAN WITTER REYNOLDS INC. _ .
1 Palmer Square, Princeton, NJ 08542 . .
Telephone (609} 8241000

INVESTMENRT PERFORMANCE FOR PERIOD ENDINC 9/30/86

At the end of the first quarter of the nev fiscal year, we were
{ovested 73% in goveranment bond investments and money market funds; 2%
in equity mutual funds; and 25% in real estate related plrtﬁ:ﬂhlpi.
Because the current return of all these lnvcntaéntl is 72 or less, cur
overall annualized return since Dean Witter began managing the money has

dropped to slightly under 17%.

Puring the cufrcn:-éhnr:cr we continue to maintain an extremely
defensive position. All nev deposits hav; been invested in government
bonds, paying sround 7%% which means our cverall return will contioue to
decline until ve see the egquity market become a morTe attrcétivc insvestaent,
Although ve are reducing our projections for the annualized return du?ini the
first quarter of the fiscal year from 10% to 6%, we still are ahoot:l.nk for

~
a 152 return during the fiscal year.

=19-



1602) 685-7600

ADVANCE MATERIAL NO. 7
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
For Meeting of June 17, 1987

FOR: (X) INPORMATION
() ACTION _

<FROM: . OCIAVIUS T. REID, JR., ADMINISTRATOR

fsumcr: REPORT OF THE INVESTMENT CONSULTANT

ks

“The attached report by Dan Druz will give you an overviev of
- dnvestment outlook. .

.
By

New Jersey Schoo! Boards Association Insurance Group

413 West State Street. P O Box 309. Trenicn New Jersey 02525

our current

-
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DEAN WITTER REYNOLDS INC.,
] Palmer Square, Princeton, NJ 08542
Telephone (609) 824-1000 -

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE POR 1987 FISCAL YEAR

_ The period from July 1, 1986 until nowv has been particularly
difficult for the capital markets. The month of April saw the steepest
decline in bond prices since the disastrous bond markets of the sarly
'80's, and in the sane month the stock market gave back 50% of the gains
it made during the first quarter. It's been & volatile, unpredictable
market fraught with peril.

Against this backdrop, the Insurance Group portfolio bad a difficult
year as well., From the beginning, we have suggested that during certain
periods the performance of the portfolio would not always compare favorably
with the initial returns. 1f one analyzes the performance using veighted
averages, then the portfolio has declined by several percent. On the
other hand, since Dean Witter began to help manage the account, its
unveighted return, including all {nvestments, is approximately +5%.
Although this performance is disappointing, it's important to remember
the long-term ocutloock. The capital markets have improved considerably.
since the end of May which should improve the actual fiscal year end
‘performance. At that time a more detailed report reporting overall
performance will be presented.

Over the next six to eighteen months, many experts feel we could
see counsiderable stock market appreciation for which the Group is well™
positioned to take advantage of, and if the dollar continues to stabilize,
the principal value of our bond investments should increase back to their
previous level. Even so, during the drastic April-May collapse of long~tem
bond prices vhich amounted to nearly 12Z, the Insurance Group portfolio
of government bonds declined only approximately S5Z.

An organization such as the Insursnce Group should have five year
time horizons. To this end we have made certain less liquid investments,
primarily in real estate, which appear to be faring very well so far.
Overall we are optimistic that the portfolio will return to superior
performance over the next year, and will continue to perform favorably
for the balance of the first five year period.

June 8, 1987



. promissory bemand Note SRS

e
’
.

1, Octavius T. Reid, Jr. promise to pay the sumo//c'lfm’o

» receipt of which is hereby acknowledged,
———
to 2@;& A DHIZ- , at f/,ﬁl.ﬂf(fn ,/JJ .

, on demand, together with interest on the said

. principal sum at f per cent per annum through the

date of payment.

I also pledge as security for said loan my interest in real property
know as 286 Northampton Drive, Willingboro, New Jersey 08046, or

my interest in real property known as 524 "Pfeiffer Street, Camden, )
New Jersey, and I hereby pramise to delivér to the above-named | L s

pranisee, a mortgage instrument on either or both of Ehe above-described
real propei'ti.es upon demand,

Loctavius T. Reid, Jr., Promisor



”} DEAN WITTER REYNOLDS INC. - 408 668 12541

MORGAN GUARAMEY TAUST
HEW YORK
PRINCETON, NEW RASEY . :?:’l‘l’l"lﬂ:l'
NEW YORK, NY
- RV

E DATE ‘_lj:q-fccnum numstn 668-99010-0-01 C o AMOUNGEag]2 000 N0R 4
i PaY 10 THE ORDER OF
i r ¥ m inc.
! " DCAN WITSER REYNTR
' #%4Dan Druz

(23 ( '

‘vian ”“I e Dl"

*GLAB 254 2021000238 ORB° 07 E Ly L +#000 1200000+

ey
£C— )

Lemesnes

= »
a3 e o

- e ———p———— 3 mEMORE
H

1 oy

“?--!' =iy M“’ I mrmnuuu&mm

Lo :jlu smou“-’
[ 4 = -
7 [ 4 .-’\\
i : V) .
; p i ! n-"‘-" LN S * :
- ¥ S
< * \ D]

?a?t-'da.




%‘ e o e tnal
OCTAVIUS T. REWD, JR. o 127
8057361
t LANCELOT LN. ‘é‘ /,/ﬁ  Jr wn
MT. LAUREL. NJ 08064 —é’ — 19 iz 1

PUSEE o) B '8 /2 200" ~

o Zue. % Jed DOLLARS . |
i CoroStates T

Mational Bank
Ty
11031200730 L220385*8 017

.
v

D £ At
-




‘ - o . 040270
New Jersey 5573
_ School Boards Association *
Hesdguerten: 413 Wen Stite Street, PO, Box 003, Trenton, New Jensy 09805 . .
DATE ) f_- CNE-CK ®o. FAY TO THE ORDER OF .__'_', A - . AMOUNT
=15/30/B7 4@270 CENTRE ‘BRIDGE' INN ;'j" $1077901

BOX 74 STAR ROUTE S . ¢! ._'_.' :
. NEW HOPE,: PA 18938 . °

NEW JERSEY NAT!OHAL BANK A‘IT_N' JAN LEUIN

TRENTON, NEW JERSEY .
Main Office

vnoooouoa?nu- H 0342007301 1105a 23
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Centre 590075
: ‘7vpp Pa _
®Wox 74 btar Route, feo Wope, Pa. 18038

215-862-2048
215-862-9139

June 24, 1987

Ms. Roberta Levine

N, J. School Board Assoc.
413 W, State St. -
Trenton, N. J. O08605

Dear Ms. levine:

Pursuant to our telephone conversation of this date, the
revised billing 1s as follows: :

Room #1, K. Donoher $ 75.00 :;
Room #3, N. Field 70.00
Room #7, G. Burns 60.00 ¥
Room #9, T. Reid | 100.00 ¥
POTAL LODGING - 8§305.00
Pinner check #34 7
(copy attached) : $762.40
Bar check #39 P
(copy attached) 10.50
=1

TOTAL DUE $1077.90

I trust this will meet with your billing reéquirements, and
I wish to apologize for any inconvenience., If 1 canbe of further
assistance, now or in the future, please do not hesitate to
telephone.

Thanking you again for holding your meeting at Centre Bridge
Inn, I remain

Cordially yburs.

DATE PAID 5@eﬂ_
CHECK # SR Jan Levin,

PO £ . Office Manager
J BL‘:. .::;'.?;.;’ At o _/f!/ ,
Enc.:| 2 AMOUITL 107772

PAID

$tephen R. Buban, Innkeeper
-30-




 NEW JERSEY SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION
- | INSURANCE GROUP

BALANCE SHEET
June 30, 1987 and 1886

_ - ASSETS - 1987 1986
Casgh $1,079,938 $ 445,542
Certificates of deposit 700,000 300,000
Marketable securities, at market (Note 4) 6,564,731 3,489,113
Prepiums receivable 406,437 563,600
Interest and dividends receivable 52,669 37,298
Prepaid expenses 119,588 46,879
Furniture and fixtures, at cost 5,723 4,780
Less accumulated depreciation (1,897) (1,324)
Organization costs, net of ' ' '
accumulated amortization 8,108 16,212

$8,935,295 $4,902,100

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)

Liabilities:

_ Estimated unpaid claims and _
' settlement expenses (Note 2) $ - $3,533,017
" . Unearned premiums 844,023 621,963
Other accrued liabilities 35,148 50,677
Accrued dividends to policyholders : o 148,000

Due to New Jersey School Boards ,
Association (Note 3) 259,847 - " 283,100
Total liadbilities , - 4,637,757

- Fund balance (deficit): _ ‘ il

Valuetion adjustment for unreulized
geins on marketable securities

(Note 5) {108,103) 144,809

Cumulative excess 0f revenues )
over (under) expenditures . . - 119,534
Total fund balance (deficit) . 264,343

§8l935‘295 $4,902,100

See accompanying notes.




NE¥ JERSEY SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION

INSURANCE GROUP

: ' _
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)

Years ended June 30, 1987 and 1986

Revenues:
Premiums written
Decrease (increase) in
unearned premiums

Prémiums-enrned,
‘Investment income

Claims and expenses:
Claims and claim expenses (Note 2)
Management fees .
Agents' fees
Salaries apd fringe benefits
Depreciation and amortization
Consulting and professional fees
Dividends to policyholders
Meeting and travel expenses
Office expenses
Interest expense
Miscellaneous

Excess of revenues over expenses

Realized (loss) on investments
Excess of revenues over expenses
and loss ©on investments

Cumulative excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures, beginning Qf year

Cumulative excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures, end of year

. . S S

DRAF]

FOR DISCUSSION USSION PURPOSES ONL

1987 1986
$9,266,696 $5,578,0901
(222,060) (479,196)
9,044,636 5,098,895
553,961 233,014
9,598,597 5,331,909
_ 3,466,316
1,211,764 704,027
345,000 202,934
141,362 85,760
8,679 8,584
25,459 16,525
486,666
119,209 5,163
51,413 17,325
24,0086 - '
1,462 835
5 004,135
327,774

(884,083)

-(123,255)

119,534

kS

See ;ccomp:nying notes.

204,519

- (84,085)

$ 119,534

£
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Let us extend our thanks for choosing the ]W Marriott Hotel for your trip

- T to the Washington, D.C. area. We trust your experience with our hotel has ,
- . o included warm and gracious service, and the type of accommodations you
T LT would expect at a Marriott Hotel. Your candid critigue of our performance
} : Vs is always welcome, _ . . '
r i :
; _.’," . ‘J ; = Itwould be a pleasure to serve you again!
i ° '
! . -
! " é43 REID/OCTAVIUS/T JR  105.00 01/29/86 = B8:20 ACCTS
2 ROOM 7YY RATZ DEPART ™E 19059
KNG NEW JERSEY SCHOOL BO 01/24/84 _
TR M OR GROUP | - AN APRIVE ™se GROUP

47 413 W STATE ST -

7144
TRENTON N . sC @AC/AX37101140?D
08405 * PAvMENT
REFERENCE | cnamoes | caems | saancsoue
GTERRACE 562 70.16 =By a s
ROON. 643, 1 105.00 o
RM.TX 443, 1 10.50
DC TAX ' 1.00

LNG DIST 0020-4609 4.06
LOCAL ofz28-L0C .50
LOCAL 0117-L0C « 50
LOCAL 0224~L0CC «90
LNG DIST 14608-609 14,75
LNG DIST 16467-503 10.51
LOCAL 1773-L0C « 20
LoCAL 2554-L.0C « 50
LOCAL 2589-L0C « 50
LNG DIST @ 2498-4609 6.02
ROOM. 643, 1 105.00
RM.TX 643, 1 10.50
IC TaX 1.00
LOCAL . 0616-L0C 290
ROOM. 643, 1 105.00
' 01/28 RM.TX 4643, 1 10.50
01/28 DC TAX 1.00

458.5¢

The undersigned agrees to maks immediste payment upon recsipt of statement. In the svent such payment la

not made within 25 days sfter receipt of the original staternent, it Is sgreed that the hotel may immedistety

impose s LATE PAYMENT CHARGE at the rate of 1%% per month (ANNUAL RATE 18%), or the maximum
‘ aliowsd by law, on the unpald baiancs, and the reasonable cost of collection, including attomey fess.

Signatune X,

\

Oc Pmoryivanls Avass
Tss'{'rlmfﬂ‘n—n
Washispion, DG 30080

02355 S508

vz%)

----- —

- -

- wm—yt g et F ew = s
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L)

g .. . . . ‘ . e
¥ MARR! ' ’
. Pﬂ_!my! f Am,‘
;;h;;;m} 1 i A . r :
VAR Avense NW
ashingson, D.C
02 393 2000, Xé7og " ‘
oo Udah
" UNEU JERSEY SCHOOL Bumnwa' ASSN  « DATE  02/07/8¢
MARY ALICE DURHAM ACCT $6P 2157
413 WEST STATE ST-P D ROX 909 e
TRENTON NJ 08600 UsA ..
- . M&tmummmmmm.mﬂl
DATE . REFERENCE CHARGES CREDHTS BALANCE DUE
2/04 NEW JERSEY SCHOOL BO  4554.09

2705 DVERCHGE ON KM.RATE 11.00 4543.09
: | 4543.09 . bacikp
e hill

Fivtagg o
.-:h;-_“'.

" E_g_ll-m.!
'“=“‘-"I-‘~l#

. CURRENT 20 10 o DAYS )
4543-09 - -'-00 - .oo o -00 WP )
Payrurt s e b v N “such payrrane i rot madle within 25 i receipt of the :
i plduomi SRR A =<7 fvi- ot et i pmadanabirre - S
RATE %) ot e : : Jngd the resscrmbls cont of collaction, inchuding stiormey e,
Pemcomct il va» this st .
.-u-'rn‘ - L. St S Wamengean. L. NONNS X

Gon
fet? ¥ .
%808+05 ] o
 4.683-35% mm—
#1700-10 NES -

251-81+ i

1
. a

P . it e ndhe ool ol

TR A asas B
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New Jersey SN AN
School Boards Association ~~_ . ot e O e

Heacquarters: 115 Wes: Siate Street, PO Box SOR Trenton, New Jorney Opany,

Talephone (809) 8357600 - - ‘e » 2 -
- . . - . ‘._ "’ FaE. -
. R . - - . . WL .' “ - L}

£ - Py — - b Y ? o .
g Vendof . PURCHASE . ; RNt
J. W. Marriott 5 ORER .\n::"
] : ————— S 5 T 1 8 s g G
I $ 1331 Penneylvanis Aveus, N.W.  °, | DATE neou:smouzo%. 2
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THANK YOU FOR Y

W

OUR BUSINESS

-51-

CRIGINAL INVOICE



— T

- e ——— e

et it it

MOBA - Adod

sisl . o UM = pulu0
_ . e L S
L () o LS NOIHO 'VBSTN 3HA OL GIND SV EIINON oo N\ : 7¢ Y6
' - . S3ASN3dX3 JO diva . INLYNDIE DNIAOUAIY
! 101 IHL KOS V101 GIONVAQY 3HL 1IN030 \D\u Yy \v.wv‘w“u\\,. > :
' -1 44— :S3IONVAQY 40 Wi0L aivg . &\ \ W IUNLYNDG
1 B » .
33A0TdW3 OL HSYD GIONVAQY ¢ . ~
. \#ﬁm\..\.ac \N§.\k\\ FHONOA
. SIONVAQY 6 146 £ TP/ S 1 HiNOW
LI . .
a mﬁ ool ¢ S3SN3dX3 W01 A8 Vo orF, /\ 1 ON ‘%D
| - wove w0 Wvidd SISNIXI INIWNIVIHIIND prooenw AN 350 300440
; + 3ISN3dX3 di¥L SSINISNS V101
! )
: Tw y3d » SIUN 29VITIN OLNV BNIL 35300 UOS BI4IDR HIVLLY 3BVIU.
" w m m m
i m n m '
T 1 : “ :
R _ : : ' H
286 N s | | T e [ [, EC * bz[
£oisol X5 097) | o> 7 WOE Nl L AT4
LT T - - . ? ¥ g
s 1SFE T |\ open eee) ) o b sl sidh sid € p
’ ’ . — T, N . :

37 m orb Fe b L, fee= Sis o s4L bAE zmnm. 2 ) 7 a8 i n..H-\A
KL=~ L) X7 Y ] - H h G 1 ’
dﬁn\w*“ 1{1\-\&'&” o_vm |§ A\\.@ 9?2 Q “ \m/ 7 m»n\ﬂ.\mh.l \..Imllll H M OI Q% - M\A
i ; it IR ' - =i'b A = hz{

N ¥ ¢ =gy N7 7 T * d g 7
(e O " A TR m STV VESW [ 5%
2! 74 <z A ! = ' : i - . ) 1. Nm
SIvioL  [shomeairade] .omeuva  |svior] san | avivwoou, | wanwo Honmy | .asvaivaue 50N Avoron
NN S3SNIAXI ditil H3H10 ONV 1310H .SISNIJXI VI _ 31va
D nuv\& [ . 7% \lﬁ. e

| ol e Z TS L TR

Q3uvdiyd . 3ivo Q3IW3IA0D GOId INIWIHVAIO NN
40 39vd . : ‘G3HONOH 38 10N THM o 1001000 e
~ AN3A3 O SAVO 09 ONOA3E Q3LLIWENS STSNIXI LONBI0SSY _m?mo..m._.m..op.ﬂuml! —

: , T aj ma,

- AUViQ T3AVHL HAOIH440 GNV 44VIS Adsiaf MmN @

—_=n_



——

Rz

' + Jsm‘ i mur s
R . R
, . iy ra x ) ivm—“
. : .th...r N .%* nb w mu = J#

R ) - T~ v . — = -\
_ .

. | i L m— - ' _lr. o
A...:E [l B

el ‘ b " 0
' [N BT - 4 -
L T T S g
“ e . ~
v ‘ \ : WIOL ) ey v mase e “a *.
™ %JJ v H I N L f4
! ,
1] ) X! . I s .- v A
T T i -
[ [
_.h. — N | F ._.——‘.l Yy Y A0 R . !
LA - 4 ] —. YT .....1.._ 0, | A ”u ...— T ..lu... ..:q,. .1: 3 s |
S T AL N I S B IS
U N A R I R N ERRERENCEE
B “T - ”..... ._._ n b [Ty ... )
T TS B S |
ey Rl T ~. ‘B
© ANIMNIVIEIIND SSANISNE HLIY BO - 11D 9043 MUVIAL INVUVIEER dnvil .
w0420 _.oa&.oen BOANEND ANY SO INIYN L INNOWY _ ' wO(.E _Q3INIVIHILND mzomzwu Y
" L | T .
. *.
s

be WUOd 40 30vd NO - ' A H‘ " roge § Ampm ooooguy (R4 l.-l-lll-‘ ... l--ﬂ"

-y
———
-

EHEL

| ) ._.\ .. SOVIUN OLNY LUOdIY

RS )

¢ {

N q a— q_1 ..—.. w..

| - T i ]

1 H ; . lﬂm m_.q

Al o 030D v paaat | R e .g. w

\ . - - frre ln.ll..ll-l e e e m m ,._T

4 1 . t—pt =] we, ameaa - oy — “. ok

i apor ST TP o] [T X L H

TV f & T pd "y .
LAMN.J..GNU_HM .s.cl:-..\ul ﬁw\vh i -

D ™ : R

R IR TN O o |- . 5 b
TR TS YRy ] , =1 =

Wy . q!c\—l.LFnét{ l&Nk“...‘ ] - .. ] . _ -
t..w:iile ~plesoph | oo ! _
- "
v U 3 PO[,
- —— \.I—Il R i
i PR T NIA T
e Nowwnviaxd ot T v, NOLLYWGOINI WNQLLIOOY S3UN —

o 1SgINISNG]
= S3SNIdxI m:Osz._uUm_: T ] St . - 3OVIUN QLY .
= e e —— X - © - —— . iy
o N . P S e .(. s~ r Ea
P h ' . . . - m_q , : PR T S ...-"_n“-.- - .:mru_”.M " w_
- .h.... a T I . o ! 3 WNF & wdn .ﬁ'h..l il .dt?:

=53



P L

L
SN

e T

“'ﬁﬂaREVERE é@_ A T 2 W

SATRAVEL S . T

noenaa. 1T INE] nnv MNUM Y CE
'llﬂ NOITH OLPEN AVENUE o TRENTON, NJ). 08438-319) . Unless praviously am‘tg mg eli pail due ac-

*| 609-382-0672 _ sounts ef 30 doys or mete Bre sbject 1o on annuel in-

terest rote of 189 or 1X % per

oL YO : SENTTO

NJ SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOC ' r . 1
MS D JARVEY - T o . -
918 W STATE ST . - . S . |
TRENTON NJ 0B&10 ~ v g 30

. gETRZOCTAVINS Y o EA L Tem e = .

e et bR T L e B VR L N R S R Y e T

3 tehw  twan
P TP
RS R
. i - _1.4&-,, 'b-.rb-\.n.\q‘-y' ",_—'2 Rk
,":-" A KRLUNEL IS W Rt MRS L

R fa,_aq..mrg_l.v unsamarmnm. -
PR P ARPHILADELPHM-H-I. .

HE 2PJAN LV HASH/NATIONAL ‘,y» 230? NEH YORK AIR

306Y uc_

& o "- “R NEW .' S e e :.' ) m 3.'_'-;_"'.:::,;‘}.'_ -f: -"“'-« -"..';-t'_‘i’.
e "TICKET NUMBER($)S osnuemos’ 7
g Trrar A S ‘Z' e -‘-'5"_“','- gt I

AIR FARE
T - IR AR RPN L Tie “"; LLLITRN BT A
B e T e 0V 1oTAL AR FARE AR

-

'THANK YOU AND HAVE A PLEASANT TRIP,,,PEGQY =< ot = wrduleid
PLEASE RECONFIRM ALL RESERVATIONS 24 HOURS pama T0 pgpmrmg

i i 8 AMOUNT WILL' BE cumnzb'ro:"
l"” 91......"....' __,‘_,._,:a:_«t’ ."*_ (‘:RE rr'ténn Ax’ o**u:m mooo

. o 2
- .- P (LA T l.‘.(.t:,.f RO LA e

"’"’-’*"* & mm Fm vm.h ausmzss

i r.ﬁsr- 5--@

t' j,\?‘,- -5' - '_.:‘{‘-.

3 \'---- f.. [N Y T

~54-



L 2" -
(3]
51:‘
Mmoo
l‘..-“sa’; :
_ ’!x Lad | |
0 T T SO _
| ]
w WM 5
n_H 5
o R, ._
i'!..- “'
’ _‘ * ‘ ... |
‘ 3‘1\ lt , t |
ﬁwu. rii . !
, i 1}
1" ; .
” m il
) 1, = 5
. £ ... “l\v ‘."h.
LD S AHUVONC, ) 2 M ..u.
#I«»Edcﬁztw i m
L TR0 T LUN/H ¥ - n . -
ol

e e

b



AEN Advis

Mmopep -  Adod . . TWADM 4V iva
ShiA — B0 . - % -
_ | | LY

o' o0k |wodidiy/
1NNOWY 190V _
250 301440 §SINIENE

Wi0os nz«:@ —3JC G
WESTN 248 1O J0G 40 Psndu] 100 sosutds a0 3y 10N 441183 §

1= ~

(%

<o 8%\ 2T | ;unw.vm}uuw._w\ﬁﬁ WITA nﬂ@qg _

ON 122V v L0l (3203 41) "OSIN SIvaw  [S1ou ADvVaITinN IS0Hdund

oL - [T A0

S553Iwaay {34A 1 MO ANIML) ANVYN

50090 Aoss0p MoK -Lotuasy spieog |00YOS
S MO U] ..
e gL S rod L, A3s13( MAN

WHOL4 LNJINISHNAGWIAY ASNADXT = e L e

-56-



PLEASE RETURN YEUOW, COF‘Y ‘WITH IEMITTANCI

-..’.'i 1 A A REVERE- g5~ e S—
e %@35 TRﬁ‘JEL |«

00B229  ITINERARY ENVOICE].

LAP‘C‘ H"i

-

Unless previously ogreed 18 in writing, ofl post due ot
county of 30 deys or more are subject to an annval in-
terest rete of 18% of 1% % per month,

StNTTO

-

L

.-—L-:”ﬂﬂﬂ—-—' SO e g

. Tem2020° 1. z20CTes .

& FR OINOV LV PHILADELPHIA-PHL 1010A 'DELTA .. = . 898V OK N
. AR BOSTON - % .. ‘11124 STh Lo ROt OSTOP 767 )
A FR™OINOV LV’ BOSTON' LT q210 TDELTRT O T 1777 OK. |

o AR BURLINGTON-BTV “» 110P - -+ .00 7.7 . '0STOP PRP
€ FR OINOV- BURLINGTON-BTV . U NaTIoNAL. e T '
b OBNOV. ‘ we - % STANDARD .;.'=,;. S o
we :-"’.~»ﬁ.:-ta_i o7 e, (802 8687841 1T o ST
Teoo U ca e Tliteli @D 4 paTE as.00m.TT h00 L L L.
| s S CONFO NBR- 01813231880, ., -

A su oaNov LV BURLINGTON-BTV ... 2309 anocxuav AIR . 335K oK
" AR PHILADELPHIA-PHL S40P " Do DL ZSTOP'PRP

L ) ' ?ICKET NUHBER(S)I '0067609971862-863 S

sy : WER - kg ARt

P '" _AIR FARE Tk Qiu._ 282. 480
e ' TAX - e ST T22060
ST TOTAL AxR FARE -7 308,00

7'395.00

Tt __.'a_-_?_'. '.-|;_ ' ,i_ _.‘L ., ‘.1..
- .

w.: VP 10/-“&57,, g pupucne CoPY
M -..g Tpa b <
) . .._'- 5 - !‘}“ . -

-57-

Ten.




¢ i \
) \q...l..j;w . ASIA N23IHD 'VaSTN IHL o_.m.m.,rwzwqum_h__.&‘hu«.mwwu n&\ L \ / ,m
Lo 249 = SISNIAXT 40 i
IL\ W01 IHL WOHS WWL0L GIDNVAQY N1 1ONA3Q : WWD Wm T L 4 ,_H
00, 005 | 44— :SIONVAQY 40 WI0L 3va 1
B Q3MO ONIHYIID HIHIO T o it ™
t PP1"025~] 33801ama 01 HSVO G30NVAQY 't 5% . onka w
T ] H :0_5’
“ /v 2| B
. ) 'SIONVAQY 000 S )| O WL/ \M\\.\\\%\ HINON. :
e TN R . SISNIEX3 WVLOL ; ‘oNN3" ).
oy ¢ 3 I oo et GRE MWL
am ] S 0eowa w0 Wes3d SISNIAXT LNIWNIVIBIINT p—— - ¥
“ 1nn02y JATNO 350 301440 §
, a9 testr 3SN3dX3 ditil SSINISNA V0L
! e ‘Swils 38344 P
) NI P SINN wmﬁm.m‘_ﬁ.mmﬂ.u : o4 HVLLY F5VIN.
s : B “ ¥
) H [N ] o :
“ ] : . m P
; H ; P xl | i
H . ’ ] .
’ m m 1 m mu i : .
; " ! “ m 3
Ld . -
_ " “ m L
m i " ! “ m
4 ; ; * v = 1
V% v €61 | 05708 | 00)9¢ o0 s | ! ) s6169 ! £/
> €7 1°£99 , 08°€TS m ' 08 19 7 Sm Yz ! . yehny;
- | 7 H ) .
P oo " ] H 007y 'S A T i JUONIIA YUOIBuTang
] H ! ] HEl — :
00 onw 00°S0¢$ H i ' : : T34 UojSey JeuaIIoN VESN| §/1T
7 - \\. 'l ! { ! % :
5ivioL  |Gnoamarsase ]l .omwavd | s104] San | .xvi ¥ woou HINNIG HONM LASVv3u8 T AvrOn
, NN S3ISNIdX3 ditil HIHIO ANV 1110H .S3ISN3dX3 WIN 3va
6861 *L 12quaaoy £ ‘a0 T a0y 337330 aajInaaxy ‘af ‘prad ‘1l enjAaRlQ
) - 0l LR '
. Q3uvalbd Itva Q3Y3IA00 A0INId ANIWINVAIQ INYN _
740 T 39vd ‘Q3UONOH 38 10N TUM - _ ..........-........u..........".a......uﬂ. .
. 1N3A3 30 LAVQ 09 GNOAIA Q3LLINGNS SISNIAXT HOLRII0SSY SPIEOR |0OYDS . X h.
. N . . >u.rw M3
o AUVIQ 13AVHL HIDIJH0 ANV-34V4S - { N

{

'

-58-



.,'

- N\REVERE
1% 5@9 TRAVEL &

1991 hom ou:mavmu: * TRENTON, N.J. 084383191 .

ACCT.NO, DATE

PAGE INVOICE

- Q0R22? ITIN‘ r\ARY

[NVOICE

counts of J0 do

Uniess previeusy ogruiﬁ in wnf ing, off pest dye oc-

A FR OINDV L& PH:LADELPHIA-PHL "1010A
' aa BOSTON ) 1112A

A FR OLINOV LV BOSTON . - 1210P
. * AR _BURLINGTON-ETV 110P

c*?R OINOV . -

BU RLINGTON-BTV.
o3NOV - |

CONFO

NATIONAL Az

~ STANDARD

sesmrzs S et o o1 T o ih o e v o0 gnnual i
., ) L] hd -
)l sowte : .‘., ) eNTTO .
] | r |
. * . . F »
REID/CCTAVIUS/JOAN L |
642020 . 2205TES
ettt oo e v ot + e ay - i ST e Srmgren, grem o e e

DELTA 855V 0K _
. o~ OSTOP 7¢
DELTA 17770 OK

‘ OSTOP PF

802 .86477441
RATE | ~-4%5,00%

NBR- 01813812530

L —

230P
540P

A SU OSNDV Lv BURLINGTON—BTV
: . AB. PHILPFDELPHIQ*PHL

T, EAO (o’ ..,
d R
.:

Bhoﬁkunv-nzn
‘ .-

T ‘J' ICKET NUHBER(SJ:!-’ 067609971852-363

'535& oK

ZSTOP P.

LA LT . )
P I R i St AIR..FA‘RE wid 232.
- 0 F] .'.. ,?:,. _- I TAx . ' 22.
T R T :;-TOTAL AIR FAHE*" - 308,
B Y VL S e e U . Syly ey -
- - ;‘ig““ pr— - .? — """" o . .-.—\-'-n-—c-—-ﬂ-r'hr'-* - "'“""-
- Y. ”""' - o el ten ‘:'#' r = _'-‘.- PR
ol T T AHDUNT S . 305.
3o Ear " -Ft-¢=' R TS
S N G T
THIS AHOUNT u:uL bE CHARGED Tos”
caeprw:caan AX 3710 114090 3xooo :
. THANK 'You FOR YOUR ausznsés" o
. Y R, 1 Ponat oo .
..-:\_,_."" ::1_ :: . :..---'. R .. ; :‘:.- .‘7‘ — .
= e : ;



6461

Mo|eA —  AdOD
S — Puii0 %

" TVYAOH 44V » jivd

" AGN J4VLS

INN.. ‘A0 P 70°0/¢/
LNNONY Ralel
SN 321440 SEIANISNES

vi0L nzng

- — |||.—.i.|.. |— L - gy gy i
Eshean

usoco..oi.nzlo_.-.u!!.!

ES0ETh s e oy gses

w Uy} Patiadyy IV a‘w

. D

& rN 14

.m :nl&lh..nmhlﬁk :rsﬁ-s~m“s“nww.ﬂw

¥ i dﬂ&ﬁ% bid. _.: "BIS J &+

Wv.....”.s.ut..m..fs.__...;sc \\......._us..:ai_s_:( oai.nu-uolb - .-Dhr -C“Qﬂ .

§ C 79/99_ 99/ TR

z AT CGHU WP .eaﬂ%nﬁnum-. |

& = Qi3 L SRIANLD0
..\\\l-

\ . . €500 G2€8G8 SSBE |

S E— \../\“w 1l ot 3TN - < ’ ;
Jo ors/ AN Y i bz (VT ,.

"ON LIV WioL (3ZI1WaL)) "251N $Iv3in [s1702 DvITUIN 4 asodund

H:

$53400V {3441 MO LN} INVA

| 0001569600 | spieog |00YydS
G lﬂ mgg_. ;e--_t:..-a-_am.h es ¥of§l ‘'O'd | | >@£— ;Uz @
Y \\" WuO4 INJW3SHNAWIFY 3SNadxa = P

-60~-



661 ™ e =~
%iuﬁe - . : o o
M s =2 7.4 70 K. 47 o — . =
Iyl.s..u%\ ourgr| -

et e By

AVAOUSIY 11vg

moyss = Adod
Sy~ PuB0

IUNILYNDY
LNOONY

gt

AN 321440 S$3NI1END

._ﬁo._,e..v_c 9], ﬂ | _ ARSI O I NS O PRI S0k NS G038 B IO ANIIS3 )

P

3.”2M~ Nh..hﬁw h.. - _ § . _ - m , \\\

L
SV 099 | ~mprvp | . - g/
. 1 m.. %% ) y .. " iy . .

-

)

. - v
" [RLEH sy | e i
T .Q\v&f\@ 2o, A mmom.ﬂ. | 1

o dn.@.\ . T bbb A N il S E

— m Fppar, | e Srre. (P VT0
uo @Yl Ty : L sk .n._.._\w._Sm._.:...?..‘w...“._w.r paoron | v/

i N“\ : Q.BN;Q B 105 14103 by [ s 20 o O . P— htMﬂt(J ..gl._
e o7¢l mw,n.\m. € o h Dl medo| ) 49790 99790 " sn g 98 | g
/ '~ oA - SGU-NDS. N ¥01D3uia d3x3-. A
1 9Ll g TS T T 0L s B
SOSIET |02 254 . Yoy . -~ -ED00_S2€808 SSEE. ). &

.OZ “420V IvL0L .wN_!w.—_-. il ] SAvaw s1od ElsL Rl USLS}’ oL o - [l T L

$S3auaav ey / : .w&i.:bu.zw&w ANVYN

N 2 )

| 0092569609 ! . '
S0990 Aosier moy ‘uojun) ‘gog X0Q "0'd
0} Juqng _

WHOd LNIWISHNEWIIY ISNIdXI



1 wum
. IVACHIY

moyep - Ado)

.Y = 0 g.sn.pﬂr %é\l - . . ' P. : Jm
fud

! IN-“II.::Q;

- N L\-:N.\NQ “‘Q“a“.ﬂw ‘ . . ASN Jdvi!
- Pl hE T
| L -r..... \ | .wn... 301340 §S3INISNE ) . . \Vﬂ r . . qr . & .
. Y101 ON WQ.%QW . g.ﬁsoﬁiiiighl{ggi
N 7 IR _ | |l : : _
A TOLOL | 0 fE ooty | 2/
ATITUET | STER |y ezt )P an _ /g
RN CZZA &z e G| 29
\" oz (s | ST N, I3
VAR LAy Y)Y %
{10 L | I e 4 23
BEEGAZ AN AN A TSGR HE]
- € N - K4 2
: ) e .\Qh.“k § : 1, ¢ - B
A o B - EE ) QU ) T T 4
MR o .. o
s %.u&\h\.%h rEPpnd “GLATTI QM
AW A AN e || e o
A 7 2 R 7 W W, A e a7 Y
\ \NLWNL-“”“M“\.\@\ — [3ZimaLN) OS5I . SIYIAN  |STT0L Wﬂ(m.-w* WHOL---.-L mowd N

t
"’A:‘\l"h:f""" e So e
T i ' -

TR A
Pt

: : $S3uoav : yr 7 (3dAL MO LN TNV

: \U\%\ | D09L-S60-600 . . RQ..wmu._mmm_u_oo.._m .
\\m T : uSS;,S!..tz uojuesy ‘608 Xog "0'd _ l_»w.m._w— Map, |
o s Y 45

.,. o:—:_:-sm, v
o gy Sy ' WUYOd LNIW3SHUNEWITY 3SNAdX3 ™ ~
-. \.'h\mtuQJmJGﬂﬂw k | : J

! ———AL

-62—



31
IR

3182 456218 11001 '

os;as THRU 03/88 86

(1
& |e
-
S e
il B |
< {5
3_; Jge 8
X

:'_I: riik t
- J§x
M i"- E

IMWVEBRIG84T

..
.
o L, -
- B G Wty o

e — T

[ .

5 OCTAVIUS T REID JR
R - | . s _’ J SCHOOL BOARD ASC T N
: } L fl 3 ‘"-:'5??-'.:7"53-1"'"-"?5—--1?.‘:.":?.:—-'.-'-.'.'55' DO stghennA g
A 3 £ SN e P A ]
H ﬂ l!g % O‘UU“J) Ii CRASD.BE P iLES T 1 Da & 3
n t - P 436:412090 A3 #8320 8T SRl |
g ' g T 403101596 . 2 &
.:.: s —ﬁ E 5 . . - . Pt o Charpe __.1—-——':.“““"“;"‘. e
? = ' e T et Aereaan oy “"’A“H’:‘F:‘&'S’fﬁu’f"‘.'? el "'“‘2:' ;: J‘"“"”“' L g
<% pUrChBSO of fhus carc &hal” net be et o sk e f
- ST gLy T . Topsi m:n;aé—-f
2 ‘i‘ it o ’ m:u;‘ﬁ?fﬂm!
e n ©
. ,% 8 B 00 058220
) - -ﬁ- "“i ? l lgg“\?
2 e :{ s !Q
- ' ¥ X
o 3za ;gﬂi - 3182.456818 11001
| B sEm i i} M3 _: g/
R-ARET T e Es {03786 THRY 03/88 86 41
' & 2 v B - foecTATIUS T REID SR :
wosEE E 33 A ' %) scx00. BOARD ASC
_" L BN b ] .
3 g :::ﬂ ™, ;.3 gi\ s _ r!Eth*tr—‘u ;‘_-"' DE~TTIEd - s
Am R fae 32 ‘S o~ 2. S0l.717 prrrery Ty ey e g
; cum . 3§ E ! =3 MRRPRETE RE NPT - "3 €1 ijlj 0T
. . 'fé: ;§ i o ‘-.f.w)ull HId Taes un.n-]uug.
L e L BN LY L -
. Pl el o7
M TN (2 TorZ
syt Ve Py
3i":f""';"':,-' Mueoccw
HH I 00 512966
11e%et 0ol
-l'\.-;-'-v"i“t:'.* 4P 2
.‘c“,- v Vo P ys
w 0l X

3182 455818 11001

"3/t THRY TR}
ccTavivs 1 RETT IR

N J SCHOOL BOARD ASC
'Eﬁﬁullu—auﬁ—ﬂlu;—ﬁﬁ*mL

COULTY LINE 0K I —
031681 2N s" .

*0129034974
. 84064705
4910106442 NJ

00 3057p5

A S+ = S —" - pm— tt we - — - ]
-
b4 -

-63-



000000000 AS0iny Meyd ‘wopstil ‘308 10Q °0'd WEAS NG 1N £i9 Mamambpesy ; !
uoHeIDOSSY spieog [00YIs

L vd
. - '
n SINNOAY
» “sioz 39008
o #0d
® # %0IHO
- avdalva )
” JuBWYOR3 IV o —

PoL

0LZT-T0TLO N ‘YIemaN

‘ 0LZT X*od °*0O°d

*oul ‘*o) 890FA195 pajeiay joAell
88axdxy ueoyIdwy

103" Yoayo aY3 Trew
=8T89S¥-T8LE# FIUNODDY)
«B89xdxq uedtaauly, o3 arqeded yooyo
o)jew 88WaTd . *pILd FTPIID XIAWY
ejexodrod Lw 03 pabieys sasuadxa _
sjuegexdax Ioyonoa payowile ayl '

| -64-

tAyzen

SO Y T Y T T T AT Y T Y T I T T Erxasrc3ne:

X

L86T “¥z Tradv

ap M._u._m.m_ ‘L SNIARIOQ woy

3 :
Auﬁv.
3

-

¥
F
# .
- sl o e

[P .,...,. [ TIPS lwﬁh...u.

j.




A

T — . A .o AN it i adny.  won, e

.t S S e . I~ — . —
[ 7111 . MO A - Ado)
’ . . N~ BUSHO
17 HIHMOA SiHL ANV 0V
‘ \ LSO NOFHD VASTN 3H1 OL HIMO Suv SIINON o1 310N
¢ g & S3SN3JXT 4O Jiva . FUNIVNDIS ONIACHIAY

V104 3H1 WOHI V101 G3ONVAQY 3HL 190030 7
4— :SIONVAQY 40 W1O0L  ava . \ \v m , “ ﬁ,
|

03MO ONIHVITD HIHL0 2

— 3300143 O1 HEVD GIONVAQY '} MQ\ %Q\ﬂ» T /L/ ._ﬁﬁ\ 7/

mu_oz<>c¢ o v&h\% QQ%\Q | HINOW
| Ngﬂﬂ 4 SISNIdXI WI0L . . \W %Nm. M %.Q. . | _ | ON N

.N.bﬁ n\\m | P .\u..- sE p

! - | tovano w30 SISNIAXT INIWNIVIHILNG = " _
JALTAR ISN3AX3 dIL SSINISNE V0L ‘ “AINO 350 30140
w S kads 3 wwﬂm .ﬂ._ﬁ.,..o_wﬂ__ﬁc. | "SW3L 353HL ..uE Sididoau zu«u..pc. um«ut.
wROUG | . o1y 30 {Lavs 1] QM‘\WD'JW“ AL | _
P B 0T u B ST A S R > o il e
w Y585 .m D 5290 i OYIAA 674
$505¢ @Né m C LT T Ligte | 72 ~
. gt “ A m A o |
,{ﬂ \Jv_ ' ; Y u = . : -y
) e.L i ' ! l 7, ~yy/ - h
o VP%H GLE || e

: -
e
-——fmmed e - .-]

M t
ool _“S&Rv\ i ” i N0y s -b9spr
m.m__ﬁpoh SNOINVINAISIN -DNDIIVS |, | STI04F Sl | XYL R NOOY «HINNIQ ~HINA ASVYILE 350duNd YOron
h ~ S3SN34A3 dibfl uIKO0 v NI10H .SISN3dX3 VI 31va
C )
AL, /20 230G wh =GR D qssEbQ
G3uvd3ud . Juve’ | . dEu3A0D QO3 1NIWiHVdIa T
\ 40 / 39vd - 4 "O3HWONOH 38 10N THM FRCE——
: ' AN3A3 40 SAVA 09 ANOAIE OFLLINGNS SISNIDXT OUDS Leistf St Sowwey 808 +08 G
o L, .. N . UONBIDOSSY SpieOg |0OYIS |
—~  + AB¥IO 12AYH] HIOI440 ANV J4VIS _ Aasiof man ««. .
o Ty » ...”..4_‘4 xm . B L) » L3

ﬁ 4 N

—65—



/

. —
. . _ ) "_.-. ,
—.“ ) O .—WU_..O .n. L2 W

Q.'..m n_‘“r‘unrt

wmrzn:zxu—

T ——"

[

hb9b93

B
m %) QI . .
g :
g ! —. q\ .Hss_!i-u B__.Ss—u.sv_s_t:! 100 peys !-u-.......e__-u_..s._ o”s
™ .....,.._a«. _\ CTL TR s heapa ity s v meion g b A T S L T ...‘
"B . _.-.w....l.lll\. . - e n...ll....l.-:h.i—.-..
m..k_....z__..d. AN u..._r_ eq Hsys opoSPoreor  lg T sy -
NN - AT 4_HSY” 6egrce ~gn : 51200100y
m.r.u -o.l...._ nesd ﬂ ﬁ— ﬂ o Nphao._n:.aan‘ . .M - Vhﬂasabmnﬂ
™ ) 3 0 o S .ME‘J.UF. L. v\ e (LRI |
wb 0wy o eivg 0 wohsgemns | F ‘27 A1 o
. . . . .‘.. ¢ m -
LY L3 TP ) ...on,“—-n._"“n T00HIS F » M ool ' 3 un-ll“?.-l.. ELA
; 013 1 SNIAYLDO —=Ssme 99 00435 ¢ i
AR ‘ 4C QI3 L sniAviag’ F
. o, 1 ae M opsen byshiAYa0 )

“mx-_“.rcruu 622850

sebieyd Ay 4

V0 W YL T S

0 psoday wild 0sEO4
OB "
: a0 osssioneor | | premme=r oot |
1SYA 06821 ¥89CY " g putoma L8ATED YL69006710 -
! oz 54_ n—cnzoao—ﬁ. m.a__.u.lfin.a i hh.lw-!!tﬁi: NNS$ 3INIT A$%100)
lo_.....u_:. _-u_h.." ' sliayd 1o 4t oy ..“rw.....—.d...ﬂ-._.w-ﬂtoa N&:ﬁ%ﬂm{ﬂﬂ ...u. . aluay) 10 o0 Hidunaeiry $3ame
, _ 3SY QHYOS V0GHIS [ N ol ! 2SY gUvOoq 100HIS © &
fwﬁ - Tup al3¥ 1 SHIAVLO0" IMHVW&H . . ¥F Qi3% L SNIAVLI0
-38 . /5 . ] ol : : 1
4 - '3 N av . . . .
- ['voort s18ash este. (bl | A% | . T00TT BTBASK 28LE-..

-66—



4

1

e S
P

e emter e ———p—
AT AR AW LT ¢

? 4239 0071 3021

12/85 ¢V

NCTay*s

444B04LULY 1. .
CReZCL" ..

0129946513

AR AIAYED

BRI

—T —

502% .77

CURL/WTR,

- Joar
. . A
AUTEDE JENTA NON, et
2 - Bl
TSR
=0

- ‘ 3 I’f_’
Tl b 2l the CONY men1iliG oA VAR AW B avihenrmd T AT The MR AT . k
el T e et L e | SALES (28 22)
m.l.;’m-upmll_-_,lhul'uiﬂ/ 5 . J'. ) .
a’&_’g ) Bl ALV AL S'C-..’ M SLIP (2'

- §
2
2

TRAVEL & ENTERTALIMENT SALES sup

-

m

L YsA

CUSTOMER ¢OP

EY.Fo

TOTAL AMOUNT

. . Ruay 501 $92-4323
THIS AECEIPT IS PROVIDED FOR YOUR CONVENIENCE FOR TAX & PERSONAL RECORDE. )

-67~



6461

MO|IBA - Ado)
SiyM — Bulisg

S, iAo

99 HL s

X374

LNnowY

*130v

a80 31440 §SIAINISNE

aiva

44/ A1Ju

WEN J4ViES

| IMNLYNDI

VESIN S 10 4] 60 Prisaduy aiem Msusdss 84000 8y} Joy) A3 |

.3

_ $§U ‘\x . p
FIA? T8 T Wy "W 4
AT P B X 0 [ 7 oy ‘ 7%

24 % *5 viv 79
Yo7 S RIS AV ATIrR g TR A
! "y TV A fr T %,
'ON "100V .—(...O_.P an.—a.w.P:.Um_E \m..(wi 5104 30VIUN 35044Nd ' oL - nowa [ AWO/O
ssadaav (34A1 HO AN} INVN

=y L gy |
0000 Aense ooprsevcos spieog] JOOYOS A
| | “ommn et il Soler, 428 04 04, | Aas13( MO

Q3LLINENS 3AvG w . ¢ .

{

WHO4 INIWISHNAWIIY ISNIdXT

=-(8—



MO = Ado)
Sy — EuitlsQ

m..

=R T3

E HJA

OMdd¥ iivad

\:\\.\\\\

SN J4ViE

o [T
M\w | btrtd
VL0l ONVUD -
£s
Al
1€ 7}
02 x4 |
\\m.du .
\\\..\\ T e
—A9E
.T\Nﬂl o ey
AN 245 _ bﬂww_.\i\_\\zg .1..186\ e \S\
LoAc) s 8 7 e Wt/ A4 % ST Y P T . |“%
AV TP Y Frggm o ) H
Vo7l | | WTTT VP - o “A
7 00 3¢ erF- }_‘nﬁ.wﬁ st o' 37) \3 Y | ;é\\«
. AL TS 7 i 7 ‘ .\\um\l\ﬁqwx\ i‘-ﬂuﬂvﬂ\r . g
N . VR
STTFET T op 70 (P77 poviy 2| ¢4 A9 = Nxs.at\ e
TON A0V \. ..-(.-.D.-. (32NN OSIN —nm.—twi 101 NOG_WJ_”.s 2504dNd oL - NOoMd - E
SSIWOqv (3dA L HO LNt} INYN
Pd LT
. 0091569608 - . ~ Spaeog |jOoYyog Y
50980 ssier Mo oiuely ‘606 X8 “0'd - Aasiaf may é
O3LLIWENS JLVa ’ &

- WHO4 LNIW3sHnawiay _mwzwuv.u .

e
. -



NN\

oibi

moyes =  AdeD
siium — Bullo

75070057 ) PO

depp” 1./ %

[2.57¢

o'y

el

\a\l\ I8N D140 BEINIENG \ ) .
Ivios nzc:um\l% - . gu\ igoe‘oiiliinrg!i:i.-s Ajjaseay
Ay ._
I I PO & 212 s
n | 0658 406 gmﬁ.&@ 7 “““
b 10 9rg/¢ mW cC A .
TN TEA m.@ 152 L7E4E
n (56l ST
wp
A10°01) 1979 W ET .hm
¢ 1Y% st Fid
| ShHas 15408 -
T WAL =] ‘1B
1| 047 24
TOIST [Py /
ON 400V wi0L [ErdlLETT1] .Uﬂ.ﬁ“\r\. m..(wl S1704 303 UN

dns .PT!QU

do¥y omy  LaSI0l vie #72)

£53400QvY

N #A) © YOeeRanh e

Forer s 13y o aem Ty

S0wi0 Aessap meN ‘uoiueiy ‘608 X0G "Q'd

0092-569-609
O} Jwgng

Emon_ LNIW3SHNEWI3Y 3SNIdXI

. ==cy

-70-

{3dA 4 HO LNIHE) INVYN

Sripy L))
spaelyg |ooYyds .
., ‘A9SI3[ MaN




CALLAY, ¢

N Dileqfcr.ame N R o
1151.:106001656 T 5
13.201459 -°° 110 15 B~y K|
235100573: RY )?, 5] E
— S'vf-a" Toul .m -
._9.3’.5/@5,,,!_, o E

Piease Print
Firmly

45499 =i

-
190.THAME
. . S STREET
NEWPORT, Rl ¢ 2840
* 849.6334
.P. Reservations: 849.8924]

.- ﬁ-'-—-;—\--: n.a-o\v u‘- PP .s—uv-c-- L--: L’o

ﬁ;g:xxmmmmuux:xuzmoo
‘. - - -&.l-".l.le:ELc t’..
G.'.‘-T""'.‘.?.‘T‘-‘-:".'."“_..r“\ M e s e o]

- Tae L Sl
bl . o IR Y

-71-

‘J"'\-A L 4

2 -k s Ba L"'f--ﬁﬂ XI.‘
J.LJ-:M—:L&'-}‘_MJ N EIS® O

o ‘-,.

S ITINAT. KLCFE‘.".
X I Kﬁl:l'l!,"'.

— e T
. ——— ——



- — -
- — — o —— =

o0 m‘rm rwrm-nrrx—rﬂs ..
@8 133 WLAIMIT AN X 2 "0@AN 1 DI
OO LN ER NIRRT E LR T ::-.‘:..m.cr PO

o J‘.‘iﬁ:’ 1.-'(;‘\1’.‘-1234-.‘ :.:'-_»._.'_t‘..'r‘.'_:::'fh
0O XXM UGSILII I I3 @G 3 oo
€ "IN T LENCIZZ TS 0 T

xxxzzxfinuﬁau KXIN X 2 @@LK XX

=4 gy - -
. —J-..- -\...- L
-——

-=’="'—.. T SIS TE G e e e iam

¥

1
n{-‘

i'?

-

H10-6334
LU I L Rc-svr\'.'llic‘m.-s: RA9-829]

NEWPOR T, R1 02840

TN HAMES STREET

e, .

l idT rrr.rr A s AR A A AL A _= O

JiiuH “'“"h?ﬁif"* e 1!:? T X L KK

‘.xdh!-:hu{l-[ h"'{d- - é.h.l;r-:y'+_:‘..g‘.“..

..1':1‘3.3‘1"7- ‘L‘,'*“{_ . ""”":t‘-hj).pv -

..(id!:!.!‘l L‘—(Ari;’d:--“n_ﬁva\u—‘:.; 3
OO I 2T UNILTSTT :-':'.:.. % TV CE '.:.

oA T AR T T SITZETAAT XX RS D@LE T D
. .LPU%&:L:"\—:L'L LLL l‘h--u-?-‘:."l :' -K . i ‘! o, S

i
v
.';

S —

-72-



\,\-,\\ 5 ‘\,\> \\\\,\;. \ \

. alo ERAhERSRARCERT S,

\ w“uﬁ ’ 1’:.’1 _
- sne/
6261 \ Wi = putng
P
! p : A i
“ e woamo vasen ans o1 NSNS || 7 M4 RS L7272 _
] = SISNIAXI 4O . uva TEET FUNLYNDIS DNIAOHY
‘ V101 JH1 WOH4 V101 G3ONVAQY 3HL 191030 ' —
T B e T _'SIONVAGY 40 V101 auva . -
- | - T > Sou——
" 12 _G3MO ONIMVII0 BIHIO 2 STTTIES W0 i ~
i 33A0TINI Q4 HSYD QIONVAQY '} _ _
SAONVAGY _ T
o] 4 _ S3SN3dX3 V104 TV o w57
. = (¥Ova N0 Wvi30) SISNIAX LNIWNIVLIEILNG - -
m , INAOWY  ANNOODV *AINO 3SN.301440 ..
! +  3ASN3dX3 dil SS3NISN V101
! o tNIVE HO T30} A Y . X
! Tun g s 3w Jhova e Po31124U0D BIB[IOpP UWTPYUR] _c,n:m: w.o.wu:cqzmt.wo_wz HOVLLY 3SVald
8Z ! 86L¥ i h29} 0601 | H i W u w |0E/L
CLTIET¥ ; 7T+ rtdto8t mamme - T w06
L 77016 % | : L €91 Y21 {  : |og basanopusp ¢-asuy *ayq "oexa vasy 87/t
7T 9% | (FR1TanH | "W 3033} 7T | 9%t N ' " o " w (92/L '
886 + ; 03886 : - L. — —yeew— T 0
EE } 8T ! g s : £ 897 V™ funyy 'y " w |9Z/L \
96 1 012 1 P Y | S 96 012 i R S P M w |7eIT
) 'L - R ik ' ' !
A e 1 ) i " ;
LL) 98 fﬁl E " Ll 98 o m.un. - . LR " w-|ET/L
0§ z€ I " i vd ‘o8etq| uss «+83x] eeavas eya 3o +swmon-+onpa| cz/L
."m | (surf1oR |1 203) zc} 88z m : ; u " w |welt
- 6976 05 6t H H ' ! ! " » - D) —
m ere._|- : g9} 1€ ] | ] e -
:" 76€ ' ' LT! 96¢ | Ausfidyeied ‘3p0) ‘8340 33835 Jo TFIUNO nuwh
ts! 60z § |, 1576028 i ! L m | 9T/T
SWV10L  lsnodnmeiaaaim| -onwuave  1s101] san | .xvivwoou HINNIO | JHINM ASVanvaua 360duNd AVOION
aNn S3ISNIdX3 ditl H3H10 NV 1310H .SASNIdX3 VIN 31va’
9861 ‘T1 *3dos SU8 o 9/ ous 907130 @aFINOaXY “1f ‘pYeY "L UNFARIDQ
Q3dvd3ud aLva Q343000 GOM3d LN3WiHVd3Q . A . INVN -
ag hOZ TUM ’ DOBI SO0 LOON Sumummdy ,
Z 410 T 39vd ' . [Q3HONOH - T T S0080 MR wigy viiuly 808 o0 G4
IN303 30 SAVG 09 GNOA3S G3LLIWENS SISNIAXT uoney uom..,< SPIEGR 100435

>m<_a._._m><m+ H301d40 NV 44VY1S

13




|

'h Ot‘

3182 95b818 11001
: 3;‘5'{“’ '{ggo cuas” 86 ;m.m_ﬂc—-a-,“—-&m o
) : ‘Y, ! M-n...::;..:-

Ry $TEOOL BOIRD AS A T

. NE or voury tctume

™ ﬁbfﬁ' * |—n ¥ ‘ -
it - ﬁ-— b
-.A. uU E RED Wasthoraiar e Sk =\ Erpn #i3" It

e
i

wd
-+

f
i

638 1015976 3 ' 3 :

p 662206Cx0030 07 S M|
VAKCOUVER BC Do ot s _ "' g
LT S e 1018 .s

SublecnoCondniuﬂs on Reverse m.-.mp- [\J rom i E

' Sum Aux Coniditions Auversd L é -I ! ‘
) e = BegnATITe G Sudes ) " !

ol
» m Mg foun et
- Amevio Copy Jisemplaire §Amsnce

A et Lk Ll
i mha he g da s.hu

00 1425}—__

-74~



MO A — Adoy
sSjum — pEulio

\

d

}

1s \w%
73. 6

Y

&)

N
%
S

@.w&

- -

. "YIHONOA SIHL ANVANODDV
Qﬁ\ ) .—.w:—.‘ HOAHD "VASTN IHL 0L QIMO IHV SAINOW 41 ‘10N
&Q. m = S3ISNIAAX3 40 EFY ] wzatzm!a DONIAOUdAY
A %101 3HL WOH4 TVL0L 3ONVAQY 3HL 101030 FL)
T B s IR I ‘SJONVAQV 40 V101 wl —
L 5 ] .. . 03MmOONIVII0 uIHIO 2 ior
T i . | 33A0dW3 OL HSVD GIDONVAGY 't
. ] SO ETE —— "ON HIHONOA
H Y .
] - - .
g . ar w0 T STONVAGY HINOW
n.\»mm.cm.\* K3 . Te . v C,SISNIMXA WLOL ‘ON D
_ “1
. - Ve NO WL mwmzmaxw INIWNIVAHIING “a
e ANACWY  INRODDY b an0 380 301440
ﬂnqm\ . N .wwzu&m_ dis mmuz.m:m Wi0L
H o © tidve NG Tva3al - - "
P IMNMEI] . SIUA EL R _m.h:( 4531404 SL413334 HOVLLY ASVI
N p ot u.q R .. m o . . m D
u o m i ¥
: : ! :
" -" m m
[} b . | L)
(0 SR R U7 R o\ W
Dadll /A A S o - o
RN AT (o
[CAN s ¥ ” L9 i &
i. 1
: |
)
:
1
H
]
]

v NO NYa30H

S10L «XVY1 % KOO

§Iv10L  lsnoanviT3oam]|  ~ONDibvd Sdis * 43NN HON .iSvaivaue |
3aNA SN3dX3 difi1 H3H10 ONY TI10H_ ,S3SN3aX3 AN
Wi AR N a7, D i sﬁ&m‘ Yok
034vdayd aIva Q343A0D Q0I3d INTnidvdaa En
40 ~ 39vd , ‘G3LONOH 38 JON TIM 0004 540 400 mvtess

ece! 2

/

.

Uiy QMEMUM.E iy

cae  ANIAQ 4O SAVA 09 ANOAIE GILLINENS STSNIAXT

AHVIQ 13AVYL H3DI440 ANV 44V1S

\

SOPE0 APLINT sy bty 80800 Oy
UOIIRID0SSY SPIeOg |00YIS |
nﬁv ~A9SI3( MIN
Y . -



76—

w7




"y

3182 456818 1100) A

" 03/86 THAT c:zaa 13 . Devrion o
BETAYVIL Ao

JE ftyp L S
] ,_,!‘__."J__i’hom. BOIRD Asg“‘-‘“““‘“‘m—

mwumkm’
)
H LIS X

! “A‘ U- ‘ ? ‘-‘mm'i? % —
| 6622000 cx003p $0°*7 &0
Ij VANCOUVER go B st

§ s —t— 1
Subreﬂta!:ondaumonﬁm : ' e T

hﬂ‘ﬂ“ﬂlfof rJ Novmay Tacs'
Suiet Aux Conditions Auverss L ' é Z | ‘ l
| zn.sz.\.-_:nx}" T

' - 1 (]
L. .Y & : _ M} [y h.ﬂ!hin!wiiiﬁ : é@;‘l‘-’m‘mﬂ_
: -d -;--)\‘ ‘n. !"I- -3- ‘ x . A Copy J§ phandfl.lu
R A ERNrS-{ . oo 142572

HOT Fom COPP0n i0om, Yy

.A

N S .

PRy .-; ;_l.“-. ‘.-.Lc...o-l‘ﬁ- ol _A'_A—Mv .- J ) .
o urirts TR ST I F Y P ) J_ >re

. - 103560
gheleabouse e = /fg'i’ 77

LLEN "D- ‘ '_":_-.i- Jﬁ‘

PX X Ry A Point

“r= "-- T ' ‘ - .- ()
z.etea N T Aae—Terguson

SHIE AN EE ¢ ple ng'\ LEY pARK

be o Nddie : %

i 669328
FY B Igs.l-';tnl
WD I LT

-.-—'I-bﬁ —— - d——

-7~



A,

R
- 8

24 Io3p  P.0. Box 909

00
.595-16 Trenton, NJ 08608

" NEW JERSEY
SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION

fary February 23, 1988

Ta American Express : ‘ Dats Ordersd Dec. 1987-1/88

grgveg Reig;.gd Services Company, Inc. Youy Ordar W,
’ s Uae oxX \
Newark, NJ 07101-1270 Ovdered By Octavius Reid

808,05 Overnight accommodation for 0. Reid for

| FRN Briefing 1/13/88 $100.70 'd
405.02 Four snow tires for Association automcbile 218,36 “/.
Total D

I declars that the goods or saxrvices Atemfsad {3 thig b1l have boen
delivered or rendered] that a0 boucs had besn givem ot vecsived Wy )
sy persow of persond with the kmowladgs of the deponest] sod that ﬂ
tha sbove bill 1is tTue aand correst,
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TILIFEONT P.0. Box 909
6957600 Tranton, NJ 08605
SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION
. o
' fars  January 7, 1988
¥ .
T&  Amers Ex ! Duts Ovdered
erican Express ' .
Travel Related Services Company, Inc. Youx Ovdar Bn,
"~ P.0. Box 1270 : Ordered BY Octavius T. Reid, Jr.
Kewark, RJ 07101-1270
802,01 Breakfast meeting w/ officers, Board of Directors members v
and alternates (Sept. 18, 1%87) , $66.71 o
1315,05 Mtg. w/William Kaufman, Donald Percy & Edward Coyle 126.85 ~
1310.01 Mtg. w/linda Leopardi, Californis Sch. Bds. Association 27.05f}
1315,05 Mtg. w/Robert Gamble & Craig Whitehead 80.80v
803.05 Trainfare to Washington, D.C. (9-26-87) . 37.007
" Mtg. w/NSBA Staff re Federal Policy Coordinators Conf. 180.77 4
" Overnight accommodation for FPC Conf. (one-night) 113.84
" NSBA FPC Conf. (mtg. w/Sandra Henningburg, NSBA) 112.96/
" NSEA ™ " lunch mtg. w/State Associatien Execs) 168.163/
n NSBA " " dinner mtg, w/Assn. Execs. & NSBA staff 214,017,
o Hotel accommodations (NSBA FPC Conf 0/27-29) <] 385.57¢
700.02 Cassette Recorder 51,947
1310.01 Executive Staff Retreat 38.11e2
825.01 Mtg. w/Dean Witter Vice President (train fare) 28.00:/
1310.01 Mtg. w/Gregory Stéwart . 67.95/
" Mtg. w/Steve Audubate, Louise Stanton : 8 T TR
1¢ 3111 bave been ([ $1,794.02
1 daclare that tha goods or services ftemiszed ia this Q______
dalivered or rendared] that a0 boous has besa gives of ""::“.:: .
£ty parTsca ot perscns with the knowlsdge of the deponsas; sad t -;452524Z¢4¢c,1___--
- the above Bill 48 trus and cerrect. 7
mTRR\’EL Cardmember ’
FERIEAED  Copy E 00515 .
5 Pravious 3 &
_éhllnu N
New Crarges ﬁzzioa.oz} s
. - "
Othar Debits B ) . . . kK . . .
[ S— ' DATE TADD - Z/{?/}y71
ST o
Other Cradits c}---it # /H#&q
. i PO & ‘
M p—— BULSTT ATCTS T 4L,
bt 3782-456818~ ~rr —t e S .
11001 AMOUNT, /7 o o
B T, Sone | -
10721787 A
| AlD
EEre s
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‘JCIJVIgg # Ig JF ' AHE!{ 9726 /87
413 ® A T —rT—
SRIMANE L —2 C Fd-L 8AH05~ § In —%ped ) 58- T35 5599
. LT T L [, T ——
- THe SHAKPER IMLGE. 4084604550 '
929 14TF STREL W :

LASRINGTON DL 20045
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REFORM?

During the course of this investigation, the NJSSBA
adopted some new policies designed to correct past
abuses and close some loopholes. Despite these

"laudable efforts, some of the reforms today are
honored more in the breach than in the observance.
And Reid, who never let written policies stand in his
way before, is ignoring the new ones while the
Executive Committee continues to sanction those
violations by inaction as it did so many times in the
past.

That these new policies were even proposed at
all was largely the result of efforts by the Associa-
tion’s current president, Jeremiah Regan, who in
turn credited the impetus generated by the SCI
investigation. Regan testified:

Naturally, I regret the circumstances that
led to this investigation,...but the Associa-
tion has used it as a stimulus to engage in
self-analysis and policy reform.... We've
seen where we need improvement and we
have improved. We shall continue to imple-
ment management techniques to tighten our
operation and to ensure greater accounia-
bility on the part of officers and staff. I am
confident that when this is all over, the
‘ Association will be even stronger and more

% sound than when all of this began.

» Many of these policies are designed to prevent a
recurrence of what happened in July, 1988, when
Reid presented $53,000 worth of expense vouchers
covering a three-year period. Regan testified about
new policies he has implemented:

Q. Have you taken steps to effect changes?
A. Oh, yes. I have a number of policies that
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we've put in, and they've been restrictive

types of policies. I've put in policies in

competitive bidding which we didn’t have

before. It's hard to believe, but we didn’t
have a competitive bidding policy. I've also

had a policy put in having to do with pur-

chasing to make sure we do cost effective-

ness studies on purchasing because today

you can lease an awful lot of things cheaper
than you can buy them. We had a time and
attendance reporting system put in which
now gives us positive information as to
whether people are in the building or not in
the building. Limited advances to anybody...to

3500 and you don’t get anymore until you

satisfy all you've spent that first $500 and
there are no exceptions to that.... Reim-

bursements for travel and expenses incurred
on behalf of the Association, normally you
have to get them inwithin 30 days. We allow
60 if youappeal to the Executive Committee.

After 90 days youdon’t get it no matter what
your excuse is. We have a control over
unused vacation time which didn’t exist
before. Now, it's got to be appealed to the
Executive Commirttee and the Executive

Committee can or cannot grant you payment
for unusedvacationtime. There was no limit
before.... You had 1o do it.

The Association has also adopted a new conflict
of interest policy for officers and directors that

-would require disclosure of a business relationship

over $1,000 with any Association contractor, such
as the $12,000 loan from Druz to Reid.

Regan testified:



The only resistance to any of these policies
really has been in the competitive bidding
area.... I was notaware of it. Maybe I should
have been but I wasn’t. It never occurred to
me that in this day and age that...an organi-
zation that...spends as much money as we
spend wouldr’t have some rule and regula-
tion governing competitive bidding. We have
it on school boards. It's a state law.

Despite the new policy restricting advances to
$500, Reid requested and received a check for a
$1,000 advance in the fall of 1988 at a time when the
new policy had gone through its firstreading. Regan
testified, “As far as I was concerned, it was imple-
mented on first reading.” Reid subsequently reim-
bursed the Association $1,000 and submitted a
second advance request for only $500.

» As of January, 1989, the following travel policy
has been in effect at the Association:

Out-of-state travel of officers and Associa-
tion members shall require the prior ap-
proval of the President.

"~ When Regan appeared before the SCI, he testi-
fied, “From now on, no officer goes out-of-state
without my approval.” Despite this new policy and
Regan’s good intent, the SCI staff learned that one
Association officer traveled to a conference in
Monterey, California, in July, 1989, and as well to
a conference in Washington, D.C., without clear
prior approval by the President. Reid wrote a note
to the business office that the President had author-
ized such attendance when, in fact, he had not. The
Executive Committee later approved payment of
this officer’s expenses.

Under a new policy effective December, 1988,
expense formsnot submitted within 60 days require
Executive Committee approval for payment. Ex-
pense forms not submitted within 90 days are not to
be reimbursed under any circumstances. Again,
despite this policy, the Executive Committee, on

October 9, 1989, approved $10,200 in late expense
vouchers submitted by Reid for the previous sum-
mer. According to SCI sources, Reid has also
recently interpreted the new 60-day requirement to
start from the time he receives his American Ex-
press bill rather than the date an expense is actually
incurred. In another case, Reid recently submitted
expense claims on a “purchase order” rather than on
the usual expense voucher, thus avoiding having to
list actual dates of late claims.

The Association still has a long way to go in
some of its written policies. One local school board,
the Verona Board of Education, recently wrote-to
the Association expressing its opposition to the
Association’s policies of reimbursement of travel
expenses for officers’ spouses and guests, and reim-
bursement of expenses for alcoholic beverages.
This Board wrote: ‘

The Verona Board of Education believes that the
expenses of the Executive Committee members should
be reimbursed by the Association; however, all
expenses incurred by spouses of Executive Commit-
tee members should be borne by the commitiee
member and not the School Boards Association,
The Verona Board of Education also believes that
the expenses of guests of Executive Committee
members should not be reimbursed by the State
Association. The Verona Board of Education also
expresses its opposition to the present policy, which
reimburses expenses for alcoholic beverages.

Other NJSBA Board members have also ex-
pressed concern about the reimbursement for per-
sonal business calls, spouse and guest expeases,
certain meal allotments, and payment of alcoholic
beverages other than with meals. The only change
to come out of these expressions of concemn to date
was the substitution of the word “entertainment” for
the words “liquor” or “alcoholic beverage™ in Asso-
ciation written policies.

104



CLOSING OBSERVATIONS

Obviously, the Commission believes strongly
that Octavius T. Reid has both abused and neglected
his position at the New Jersey School Boards Asso-
ciation. But his conduct has been permitted to
continue because some members of the Board of
Directors and of the Executive Committee, all of
whom are members of local school boards, have
failed to ask the right questions and declined even to
consider evidence of wrongdoing by Reid.

In recent months, the Association has made
some efforts to reform but has stumbled occasion-
ally. The Commission believes that for effective
reform to take place, the Association officers must
find an executive director who is trustworthy and in
whom they can have confidence but also one who

takes direction willingly and who is scrupulously

honest with the officers.
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Board members must assert themselves, not by
becoming involved in the day-to-day running of the
Association but in being active overseers of that
organization, to protect the dues that local school
boards pay.

Finally, the current leadership must vigorously
protect the rights and reputations of those who
“blew the whistle” and those who cooperated with
the State Commission of Investigation in its inquiry.
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